07" September, 2023

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) The Listing Department
Exchange Plaza, 5" Floor BSE Limited (BSE)
Plot No. C/1, G Block P.J. Tower, Dalal Street
Bandra-Kurla Complex MUMBAT — 400 001
Bandra (East)

MU =400 051

Trading Symbol : KOHINOOR

Serip Code 1 512559

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the Financi 1 Year 2022-23

Please find enclosed herewith a copy of Notice convening 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company,
through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means (*“VC/OAVM™) facility, on Friday, the 29"
September, 2023, along with Annual Report of our Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

The above is for your reference and records, please.
Thanking You
Yours faithfully,




ANNUAL
REPORT

2022-23

SINCE 'I""---—'-‘°N"-'-: 1981 ®
A LEGACY OF TRUST & TASTE

(S

Kohmoor, ¥, . YOT;
o oo
ey

BASMATI
RICE

KOHINOOR

o
@)
KOHINOOR



Contents

Chairman's Message 02
Directors' Report and Management Discussion & Analysis 03
Auditors' Report (Standalone) 57
Financial Statements (Standalone) 65
Auditors’ Report (Consolidated) 92

Financial Statements (Consolidated) 100



ANNUAL

KOHINOOR REPORT

FooODS LIMITED

Registered
Office and
Share
Department

Works

Wholly Owned
Subsidiary
Companies

Joint Venture
Company

Listing of Equity
Shares

Depositories

: Village  Sultanpur,

2022-23

Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th
Floor, Shooting Range Road,
Surajkund, Faridabad, (Haryana) -
121 001

CIN : 152110HR1989PLC070351

* wef, 16th August, 2017

Tel: +91-129-424 2222 (30 Lines)
Fax : +91-129-424 2233
E_mmL._lnfu@Imhmmn‘nQdS.mM!l. ohinoorfoodsi
50-51 Milestone, G.TKamal Road,

: Murthal, Sonepat (Haryana) - 131

027

42-42 Milestone, G.T. Kamal Road,
Bahalgarh,
Sonepat (Haryana) - 131 021
Kohinoor Foods USA INC.

« 285, Durham AVE STE # 01 South

Plainfield, NJ 07080
Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited
Old No-25, New-33, G/F JMD

" Kohinoor Galleria Masjid Moth,

GKAI, New Delhi - 110 048

Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC.

 Post Box No. 15542, Al Quoz
" Industrial Area, 3rd Interchange,

Sh Zayed Road, Dubai, UAE.

_ National Stock Exchange of India
" Ltd. (NSE)

: BSE Ltd. {BSE)

National Securities Depository Ltd.

* (NSDL)

. Central Depository Services (Inclia)
" Ltd. (CDSL)

Board of Directors
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
Mr. Satnam Arora
Mr. Gumam Arora

Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan

Mr. Sunil Sharma

Mrs. Mani Chandra
Bhandari

CFO

Company Secretary

Auditors

Cost Auditors

Registrar & Transfer
Agents

Bankers

 Mfs,
" Cost Accountants

:  Chairman
:Jt Managing Director
: Jt Managing Director

_ Non-Executive Independent
" Director
_ Non-Executive Independent
" Director
_ Non-Executive Independent
" Director
» Mr. Chashu Arora
: Mr. Deepak Kaushal
M/ss. N C Ra & Associates,
: Charted Accountants [appointed wef,
12/08/2021]
Cheena and  Associates

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Put. Ltd.
D-153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial

_ Area, Phase-l, New Delhi-110020

" Tel: +91-011-4045 0193-197 | Fax:
+91-011-2681 2682 |
Web:www.skylinerta.com
Punjab National Bank

: (erstwhile Oriental Bank of Commerce)
. State Bank of India

Indian Bank

" (erstwhile Allahabad Bank)
. 1CIC) Bank Ltd.

. IDBI Bank Ltd.
: Bank of India




@ ANNUAL
KOHINOOR REPORT

FooODS LIMITED 2022-23

Chairman Message

DearMembers,

It is my privilege to write fo you and present the Annual Report of your
Company forthe financial year 2022-23.

I hope this letter finds you safe and in good health.

My letter of introduction to your Annual Report last year that demonstrate
the difficulties faced by the business and performance delivered in difficult
circumstances. The Rice industry has always been considered by its
fluctuating nature, but the combination of various factors in recent times
such as climate change and geopolitical fears have keen the level of
volatility inthe industry.

This year, despite of continuing challenging ahead, the Company has
delivered optimum operational results while continuing to invest for the
future.

We are committed to doing all this in a way that drives long-term
shareholder value by creating shared value for all of our stakeholders,
including customers, associates, suppliers, business partners, and
communities.

In late 2017-18, we set a goal to overcome from the financial crises and
work towards regaining the glory of your company, which requires time,
courage and trust and encourages others to work towards the same goal.
The Board reinforced this commitment in 2022-23, which sets forth our key
goals and strategies towards overcoming the situation.

Your Board is committed to maintaining highest standards of corporate
governance and will continue to review and strengthen these practices and
your Board endless efforts towards strategic transformation during this time
of rapid change. Where, it gives confidence that the Board experience to
serve our company and to continue to guide us inthe yearsto come to meet
the Company purpose — Building a brighter future for all —our fundamental
and the role in supporting economic growth, contributing to prosperity, and

helping customers achieve their goals.

The global basmati rice market is being aided by the rising export demand for rice,
globally. Basmati rice accounts for 2.1% of the total rice production. The global
basmati rice market stood at a value of around USD 6.09 billionin 2022 and expected
to grow ata CAGR of 2.1% in the forecast period of 2023-2028 to attain a value of
around USD 6.87 billion by 2028.

The rising population is also acting as a catalyst for the growth of the global basmati
rice market. The increasing disposable income in the major consuming nations is
driving the market growth. The rising disposable income is leading to increased
consumption of premium products and, thus, is providing further impetus for the
global basmati rice market growth as basmati rice is perceived as a premium variety.
With the increasing health consciousness among the consumers, the basmati variety
is being increasingly preferred due to being rich in nutritional value and having a
lower fat content. The increasing export demand from the Middle Eastern countries is
also propelling the global basmati rice market forward. The US and Europe, too, are
significantimporting countries.

Your Company achieved a total turn-over of INR 825.42 Million (Mn.) as against INR
985.65 Million (Mn.) of last year, the rice business turnover stood at INR 185.55 Mn.
as against INR 720.87 Mn. of last year, the food business tumover stood at INR
575.18 Mn.as againstINR 236.93 Mn. of last year.

Recently your company had added scaling up its operations. Exploring more
potential in the food business to make best use of its marketing network and
strengthen it further to regain the market share. Now your company has started direct
exports to different countries for both rice and food products.

Nevertheless, Your Company have been started evolving with your trust and support,
as in the last few years, your Company could not perform well because of financial
constraint, ongeing economic pressure and pandemic. On the hindsight export
market was low on sentiments & actual realization due to economic instability around
countries beside our own constraint of business operation due to liguidity crunch.
However Kohinoor is still striving to grow steadily and place its presence around
world across renowned players.

KFL participates across nations and around world, under its few prestigious brands
forsale of rice and processed & packed food business.

We further inform the members that with an objective toimprove the financials of the
company, your company is exploring the possibilities such as:

a. Monetising some of the assets of the company.

b. Looking for Investor to infuse funds in the company.

¢. Executing with the Banks forrestructuring of borrowings or settlement ofloans.
The company is working aggressively on the said lines to improve its
financial/business to achieve the seemless working.

With the objective of bringing authentic Indian flavours to the people all over the
world, we want your company Kohinoor Foods Ltd. fo become aleadingname inthe
food business globally as well. In pursuit of our vision to make Kohinoor the most
trusted & preferred food brand in export markets, we would continue to develop
products, increase operational efficiency and follow our successful strategies.

| am grateful to the Board of Directors for their unwavering support and guidance. |
also take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our consumers, business
partners, employees and stakeholders who have shown their trust in us and have
extended their constant support.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your continued trust, confidence,
and supportas we enter a brave new decade—one that is already rewriting the rules
ofthe past.

With best wishes,
Sincerely

Sd/-

Jugal Kishore Arora
Chairman
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Directors’ Report and Management Discusslion & Analysls

The following report should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements and notes for the year ended March 31, 2023 and
the audited financial statements and notes for the year ended March
31,2022. This report contains forward looking statements, which may
be identified by their use of words like 'plans', 'expects’, ‘will
‘anticipates', 'believes’, 'intends’, 'projects’, 'estimates’ or other words
of similar meaning. All statements that address expectations or
projections about the future, including but not limited to statements
about the Company's strategy for growth, market position,
expenditures, and financial results, are forward looking statements.
Forward looking statements are based on certain assumptions and
expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that
these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realized.
The Company's actual results, performance or achievements could
thus differ materially from those projected in any such forward looking
statements. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly
amend, modify or revise any forward looking statements, on the basis
of any subsequentdevelopments, information or events.

Company - In General

Synonymous with the fine taste of India in its absolute authentic form,
the sole objective of Kohinoor Foods Limited, since its inception, has
been to make the world experience the true Indian flavor. The
Company offers an extensive range that caters to consumers' need in
all parts of the world — a wide variety of Basmati Rice, Ready to Eat
Curries & Meals, Readymade Gravies, Cooking Pastes, Chutney's,
Spices and Seasonings to Frozen Breads, Snacks & Paneer (Indian
Cottage Cheese), healthy grains, edible oils. Today, the most powerful
brand of the Company “Kohinoor” is a household name in the
countries like USA, UAE, Canada, Australia, Middle East, Singapore,
Japan, Mauritius & other European countries. As of now, the brand
'Kohinoor' is known worldwide.

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 34th Annual Report
and the Audited Annual Accounts of the Company for the Financial
Yearended 31*March, 2023.

Financial Overview

The financial highlights for the year ending 31° March, 2023 are as
under:

(Rs. In Million)
Particulars FY'23 FY'22
Total Tumover 842.51 1034.83
Profit/(Loss) Before Interest,

Depreciation and Tax (PBIDT) 131.24 31.12
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (48.43) (55.06)
Less: Tax Expense -7.26 7.98
Profit/(Loss) After Tax (41.17) (63.04)
Total Comprehensive

income for the year (40.60) (61.90)

The Board's Report has been prepared based on the stand alone
financial statements of the Company.

Operations

During the Year, your company focused on the restructuring of the
company operations due to various constraint faced due to financial
crisis, various measures have been taken for reduction of the cost of
operation. Despite of the factors faced by the company during the
yearyou company remain committed to providing world class quality
product to its consumer, focused in improving operational
efficiencies acrossits functions and enhancing its reach to the global
consumers.

For the financial year under review 2022-23, the contribution made
by Rice to the Company's business is INR 188.55 million as against
INR 720.87 million in previous year while as the Food Business
stood at INR 575.18 million as against INR 236.93 million in the last
financial year.

The year saw an increase of 142.76% in food business in sales in
value terms in comparison to last year sales. Sales market was
down due to instability in country such as pandemic and the financial
constraint faced by the Company.

Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic

Details of the impact of Covid-19, have been provided in the notes to
financial statements forming part ofthis report.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture
USAOperations

Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. was incorporated in year 2000 in the state
of New Jersey, USA, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Kohinoor
Foods Limited (KFL), India, to cater to the markets of US & Canada.
The brand 'Kohinoor'is wellknown in USAfor its quality rice and food
items.

However during the current year this company did not carry any
business as their as no export sales for KFL India to US & Cananda,
atpresent the office is closed due to no business.
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FoodBusiness

During the year 2022-23, in processed & packaged food products the
company did the business of around INR 575.18 million as against
INR 236.93 million in the previous year. The food factory has
continued its operation effectively inspite of the liquidity problem which
improved our production & revenues from food business.

Australia, USA, Canada are major markets for our range processed &
packaged food products.

Overview - Ready to Eat Industry

The global ready-to-eat (RTE) food market has witnessed significant
growth over the past decade. Ready-to-eat products are pre-
packaged foods that require minimal or no cooking before
consumption. These products offer convenience, time-saving
benefits, and cater to the fast-paced lifestyles of consumers
worldwide. The market's growth can be attributed to changing
consumer preferences, urbanization, busier lifestyles, and
advancements in food processing and packaging technologies.

The ready to eat food market in India report forecasts market growth
by revenue at global, regional & country levels and provides an
analysis of the latest trends and growth opportunities from 2017 to
2027.

Product Outlook (USD Million. 2017 - 2027
« Frozen food

» Ready-to-heat

» Ready-to-cook

Convenience: The primary driver of the RTE food market is the
convenience factor. Busy lifestyles, increased dual-income
households, and the rise of single-person households have led to a
growing demand for quick and easy meal solutions.

Diverse Product Range: The RTE food market has evolved from
basic canned foods to a wide variety of options, including frozen
meals, curries, sauces, salads, snacks, and more. Ethnic cuisines and
healthier alternatives have also gained popularity.

Innovative Packaging: Manufacturers have focused on developing
packaging that maintains the freshness and quality of the food without
the need for preservatives. This has extended the shelf life of RTE
products and enhanced theirappeal.

Health and Wellness: Consumers are becoming more health-
conscious, leading to a demand for healthier RTE options.
Manufacturers are responding with products that incorporate natural
ingredients, fewer additives, and better nutritional profiles.

Online Retailing: The growth of e-commerce has allowed RTE food
manufacturers to reach a wider audience. Online platforms provide a
convenientway forconsumers to access a variety of RTE products.

Globalization of Palates: Consumers are increasingly open to trying

diverse cuisines, driving demand for international RTE food options.
This trend is also supported by a rise in travel and cultural
exchanges.

Regional Market Insights

North America: The North American RTE food market is mature
and well-established. The United States and Canada are key
contributors, with afocus on convenience, frozen foods, and healthy
alternatives.

Europe: The European market is characterized by the presence of
numerous traditional RTE options alongside innovative products.
Countries like the United Kingdom, Germany, and France are
prominent consumers of RTE foods.

Asia-Pacific: Rapid urbanization and changing dietary habits in
countries like China, India, and Japan have propelled the RTE food
market in the Asia-Pacific region. Ready-to-eat noodles, rice bowls,
and snacks are popular choices.

Latin America: The Latin American market is witnessing steady
growth due to rising disposable incomes and urbanization. The
market is characterized by a blend of local and international RTE
options.

Middle East and Africa: Urbanization and an increasing expatriate
population have driven the RTE food market in this region.
Convenience and a mix of traditional and modem options are driving
factors.

Quality and Taste: Maintaining the quality and taste of RTE foods
over extended shelf lives remains a challenge. Some products may
sufferfrom texture and flavor degradation.

Environmental Impact: Packaging waste and concerns about

the environmental impact of disposable packaging materials
have led to calls for more sustainable packaging solutions.

Hypermarkets/Supermarkets segment is expected to expand at
asignificant pace

In terms of distribution channels, the ready to eat food market is
segregated into hypermarkets/supermarkets, convenience stores,
online retailers, and others. The hypermarkets/supermarkets
segment is expected to account for a key share of the market in the
coming years owing to retail behemoths like Walmart, Tesco,
TEleven, and Aldi extending their locations intemationally and
boosting their productchoices to entice customers.

North Americais expected to dominate the market

On the basis of regions, the ready to eat food market s classified as
Asia Pacific, North America, Latin America, Europe, and Middle East
& Africa. The market of North America is anticipated to dominate the
market CAGR during the forecast period. The regional market
growth can be attributed to the rising demand for frozen pizza and
portable breakfast.

O
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Convenience: Busy lifestyles and the need for quick and easy meal
solutions drove the demand for RTE foods. Consumers, especially
those in urban areas, sought out convenient options that required
minimal effort and time for preparation.

The frozen segment holds a major share and is anticipated to
dominate the market over the forecast period. The demand for
prepared foods is expanding due to increased urbanization, creative
packing, and growth in the desire for convenient meals. Further, the
segment benefits from customers' growing need for convenience and
comfort as a resultof their hectic schedules.

The shelf-stable segment is expected to hold a considerable share
throughout the forecast period as these meals do not require freezing
or refrigeration, making them easierto store. Further, shelf-stable food
meals are more affordable than other alternatives, contributing to the
increasing demand.

Changing Demographics: An increase in single-person households,
dual-income families, and a rise inthe number of people living in urban
areas contributed to the growing demand for convenient food options
thatcould be consumed on-the-go.

Innovation and Diversification: The RTE food industry had
expanded beyond just basic microwaveable meals to include a wide
variety of cuisines, dietary options (such as vegetarian, vegan, and
gluten-free), and healthier alternatives. This diversification helped
attract a broader consumer base.

Improved Quality: As consumer preferences shifted towards
healthier choices, RTE food manufacturers started focusing on using
higher-quality ingredients, reducing additives, and incorporating more
natural and organic options into their products.

Technology and Packaging: Advancements in food processing and
packaging technology enabled the development of products with
longer shelf lives while maintaining taste and quality. This contributed
to the growth of RTE food sales, as consumers could stock up on
these products without worrying about spoilage.

Owing to the rising working population worldwide, busy schedules,
and time constraints, there is significant adoption of convenience
foods like ready-to-eat (RTE) and ready-to-cook (RTC) that need
minimal time and ingredients to cook. According to the reports, during
the period of 2022-27, the global ready-to-eat food marketis expected
to grow at a CAGR of 4.8%. In India, the RTE food market share is
projected to increase by USD 751.43 million from 2021 to 2026, and
the marketwill grow ata CAGR of 18.63%.

Globalization: The availability of international cuisines in RTE
formats allowed consumers to explore different flavors and dishes
without having to cook from scratch.

Retfail and Online Presence: The expansion of retail distribution
channels, including convenience stores, supemmarkets, and online

platforms, made it easier for consumers to access a wide range of
RTE options.

Food Safety and Regulations: Stricter food safety regulations and
labelling requirements in various countries led to an increase in
consumer trustin RTE food products, further driving sales.

The Ready-to-Eat Food Market size is expected to grow from
USD 383.93 billion in 2023 to USD 488.60 billion by 2028, at a
CAGR 0of4.94% during the forecast period (2023-2028).

The market is witnessing a shift in consumer preferences from
home-cooked food to ready-to-eat products, owing to working
individuals' busy lifestyles and hectic work schedules. This change
in consumer behaviour will likely uplift the market studied
significantly in the forecast period. Ready-to-eat products are
considered the closest altemnative to regular food, which can be
consumed at any time (such as during breakfast, lunch, ordinner).

Consumer interest in new products and ingredients is rising and is
expected to witness positive developments. Besides traditional
cuisine, consumers are eager to try different meals from other
ethnicities, such as Indian, Thai, and Italian. Therefore, preference
for ethnic ready-to-eat food has driven the demand for these
products.

Millennials and the young generation are the easiest targets for
ready-to-eat food manufacturing giants as they spend most of their
income on such food products. Thus, such products' convenience
level is increasing the global market's total demand. Furthermore,
the rising health consciousness among consumers, the
predominance of lifestyle disorders, and the nutritional value
associated with fresh food are restraining the ready-to-eat food
products markets.

Reports suggest that the world is witnessing a wave of demand
surge for convenient and instant healthy foods and the market is
highly competitive.

« Ready-to-eat foods are considered the closest alternative to
regular food, which can be consumed all day, from breakfast to
dinner. This is causing a consumer shift from home-cooked food
to RTE foods.

«  After the pandemic struck, RTE/RTC foods have come to the
rescue of work-from-home employees. On days when the
schedule leaves no time for cooking, consumers turn to
RTE/RTC foods for nourishment, creating opportunities for the
market.

« Thedemand for convenience foods like snacks, meat products,
instant pasta, rice, and more is growing at a fast pace. Higher
expenditure onfood and drinks, awareness about healthy foods,
changes in meal patterns and eating habits, and evolving social
and economic factors are all reasons why the desire for instant
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foodsis ontherise.

« Theaware consumer oftodayis eager to try out new cuisines from
other regions. Ethnic RTE foods are driving the demand for such
foods.

» InlIndia, the RTE marketis dominated by domestic companies, but
global players have also entered the space with vivid flavors and
varieties. Organic food companies are also offering RTC foods to
cater to health-conscious consumers.

« Unique packaging to further sales is also a step towards
increasing the consumer base.

« Good taste, high nutritional content, and good-quality ingredients
encourage consumers to try out RTC foods day in and day out,
causing a sharp growth curve for the market.

« The target demographic for RTE manufacturers is the millennials
and the young generation, who spend a considerable portion of
their income on convenience foods. This trend is promoting the
global demand forthe market.

« The demand for RTE products is also rising due to the
convenience of consumption followed by quick disposal of the
packaging. Working professionals imbibe this concept into their
lifestyle seamlessly.

Growing popularity of private-label frozen food is the primary
frend in the India RTE food market.

Private-label frozen products are becoming an important area for
retailers. Some retailers promote their own brands by offering more
shelf space for their products compared to branded products. For
instance, in 2019, the sales of private-label frozen foods increased by
3.8% compared to the previous year. Consumers are more inclined
toward private brands to save money without any compromise on
taste, selection, or quality. Retailers also offerin-store promotions for
their own brand frozen products. Online retailers such as Amazon
have also been rolling out private-label frozen food products, while
consumer value stores (CVS) are expanding their frozen food section
by adding private-label frozen food products to grow their grocery
businesses. Some private-label brands are also launching their frozen
food products in paper-based trays to reduce the use of plastic
packaging and attract consumers by projecting their environmental
awareness initiatives. Therefore, increased demand for frozen food
will positively impact the RTE food market in India during the forecast
period.

India Frozen Food Market shall experience a CAGR of 17.46% in
the coming years 2022 to 2028Ready meals are estimated to grow
fastest in India frozen food market

Fruit & Vegetables (Peas, Mushroom, Carrots, Beans, Corn &
Others), Potatoes (French Fries, Tikki, Potato Wedges, Potato Bites,
Smileys, Others), Frozen Bakery Products (Biscuit & Cookies, Bread

& Pizza Dough, Rolls & Pastry, Others), Ready Meals, Soup, and
Others are the product types prevalentin India frozen food market.

Improved quality and taste, driven by advancements in technology
and packaging, contribute to their popularity. Increasing disposable
income and current retail availability has further fueled the market. In
addition, changing eating habits favor quick and portable meals.
Ready meals also provide a reliable and safe food option due to
growing awareness of food safety.

Additionally, staple foods appeal to abroad consumer base, formthe
foundation of daily meals, and offer convenience and time efficiency
in meal preparation. Furthermore, the long shelf life of frozen staple
foods, cost-effectiveness, and accessibility through various retail
outlets make them a practical and attractive option for consumers.
Finally, frozen staple foods can retain nutritional value when
properly frozen, making them a preferred choice for health-
conscious individuals seeking convenient and nutriious meal
options.

BasmatiRice

Indian Basmati Rice is presently placed on a congenial platform
from where it can only go one-way and ie northwards. Perhaps it is
for the first time in its history since 1970s that there are 'nil'
carryforward stocks. Couple of factors are helping basmati rice to
maintain its premium stature & ever-increasing prices; high
domestic demand due to constantly increasing purchasing power of
the teeming millions, constant pressure on quality products fromthe
foreign markets, even globally people are moving from coarse non-
basmati rice varieties to Basmati rice, which has always been
considered food of the elite in the past, itis nolonger the case.

India in the last few years has emerged as the world's largest
producer of the product rice per se', the Government of India closely
monitor the domestic prices and have in the recent past used
various measures to contain the rising prices, either by putting 20%
duty or completely banning some non-basmati rice varieties. This
has obviously stirred the world as India has disturbed the supplies to
the African continent, which were anyway effected due to Ukraine
conflict. This againis benefitting basmatirice as market prices are at
all-time high and heavy rains due to changing weather patterns have
ensured the prices shall notcome down any time soon.

In the faceable future basmati rice shall remain in high demand and
aprofitable business one too.

Risks & Concemns

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under section
13(2) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, in the month of July,
2018 to May, 2019 and in the month of February 2020 to September
2020. The Company has replied to the notices received from the
Bank within 60 days from the date of notices. The Companyhas also
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received Notices from the Banks under section 13(4) of The
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security InterestAct, 2002. The Company has already
approached Banks with suitable resolution plan for their consideration
which the consortium has sanctioned. The Banks has also served
letter for failure of resolution plan submitted by the Company. An
extension to the resolution planwas also granted by the Lenders.

The Banks have filed petition against Company before Hon'ble NCLT
Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting the matter and the
petition is yetto be admitted.

The Company has filed an appeal before Hon'ble High Court,Punjab &
Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Courthas granted Interim stay.

The Company has received an ex parte interim order from Debt
Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delhi dated 25/06/2020 restraining the
company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with
respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable properties of the
Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter
against the ex parte interim order.

The Company has received a Notice through speed post from DRT-I,
New Delhi. The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT Delhi against
the Company under section 19(4) of the Act. The matterislisted before
the registrar for completing of pleading on 03/08/2022. The company
is contesting the matter.

The Company has received Legal Notice from the Punjab National
Bank, Hong Kong in regard to outstanding indebtedness due amount
(inclusive of interest up to date). The matter is now being taken up
PNB Dubaiand the Company had submitted its OT S proposal and has
deposited the upfrontamount and requested to process the Company
OTS Proposal and forward the same to their Board/Head Office for
approval, whichis at presentin consideration.

The Company's vendor has filed an execution petition before
Faridabad District & Session Judge. The Company is contesting the
matter. The Company has also approached Hon'ble High Court
Shimla for stay on above matter. The Hon'ble High Court has admitted
ourapplication and granted interim stay.

The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of Pinnacle
Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at Surajkund
Faridabad. The Builder had obtained interim stay on the order of
Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon'ble High Court Punjab
and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition against Municipal
Corporation & other before the Civil Judge, Senior Division, Faridabad
with regard to stay of proceeding against order of Municipal
Corporation, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Faridabad Court has stated that
already interim stay have been granted by the Hon'ble High Court,
hence no ground to grant relief prayed for is made out at this stage.

The observations of the Auditor with regard to the management

assessment ofthe Company's ability to continue as going concem in
view of the liquidity problems/decrease in business. The
management of the Company believes that it can continue as a
going concern, based on the Resolution Plan and after of one time
settlement submitted to the Banks by Company and the interest
shown by Prospective Investorsin the Company.

Macro-economic factors like recession, subdued demand and
political uncertainty may affect the business of the Company andthe
industry atlarge as well. The Company is aware that uncertainties in
business offer opportunities as well as downside risks and thus has
identified and put in place mitigation tools for the same. Some key
riskareasare:

Procurementrisk

Ina country like India, where more than 60 per cent of the area under
cultivation is not irrigated, farm production is highly vulnerable to
fluctuations in rainfall. Beside production risk, Indian farmers also
face high market risk. Farm harvest prices in the country show high
inter and intra year volatility. Price variation is quite pronounced in
the regions and commodities where price support mechanismis not
operative. Further adequate availability of key raw materials at the
right prices is crucial for the Company. Being a generic natural
product with low yield concentrated in a small region of the World,
production of Basmati depends on the vagaries of nature. Therefore,
any disruption in the supply due to a natural or other calamity or
violent changes in the cost structure could adversely affect the
Company's ability to reach its consumers with the right value
proposition. However, we are ready with plans that might help us at
such times. However, the Company's long term relationship with
farmers built on trust ensures constant supply and thus over the
years ithas notfaced any procurement problems. Also, adequacy of
irrigation facilities in the Basmati producing regions mitigates these
uncertainties.

High working capital requirement: Basmati rice requires to
beaged for 9-12 months before selling, leading to huge working
capital requirements. This results in low ROCE for the industry.
Combating this risk, efficient working capital management system
has been setin place by the Company and cash flow is monitored on
daily basis.

Intense competition from unorganized sector: Another
characteristic of this industry is the presence of unorganized sector
offering basmati in loose unbranded form which intensifies
competition. The Company is moving towards branded products
and has invested significantly in building a strong brand which helps
indifferentiating their product.

Dividend

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year
2022-23.
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Re-Appointment/Resignation of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.
Satnam Arora (holding DIN — 00010667), Director of the Company
retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your Directors recommend
thisresolution for approval ofthe members.

The Re-Appointment and Remunerations of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
(DIN 00010704}, Mr. Satnam Arora (DIN 00010667) and Mr. Gumam
Arora (DIN - 00010731) had been approved by the Shareholders in the
31"Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th December,
2020 for the period of three years subject to the approval of the Central
Government. Now the Company wants to renew the appointmentand
remuneration payable to these Managerial Personnel on the same
term and condition as approved by the shareholder in their Annual
General Meeting held on 30th December, 2020 for further period of
three years starting from 1st October, 2023 in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, subject to the overall limit as approved by the
Central Government.

Your Directors recommend this resolution for approval of the
members.

SEBI vide its notification dated 10 May, 2018 has amended the SEBI
(LODR) and, inter-alia, has inserted new Regulation 17(1A) which
mandates that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the
directorship of any person as a Non-Executive Director who has
attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years unless a Special
Resolution is passed to that effect by the members of the Company.
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan will attain the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years,
accordingly, in view of the above amendment in the SEBI Listing
Regulations, it has become imperative for the Company to seek
members approval by way of a special resolution, to continue his
directorship as an Independent Director, in terms of provisions of the
Actand the SEBI (LODR).

Your Directors recommend this resolution for approval of the
members.

Subsidiary, JointVentures and Associate Companies

Kohinoor Foods Limited enjoys its global presence and has well
managed to build a premium brand name for its quality in Rice
Branding and Ready to Eat Food and with a view of expansion and
diversification; it has created subsidiary companies for facilitating
these operations in various countries.

A statement containing the performance and highlights of Financial
Statements of subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies is
provided in Form AOC-1 attached to the Financial Statements forms
part ofthis Report and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

In accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
have prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company

and all its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. The
Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost
convention on going concem basis and on accruals basis unless
otherwise stated. The name of companies which have become or
ceased to be subsidiary or joint venture or associate companies, if
any, have been mentioned in the notes to the accounts. The financial
statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“Holding Company of KFL")
together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“Group”) are consolidated to form Consolidated Financial
Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial Statements consolidate
the financial statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

The parent company has not received audited financial statement
from its Joint venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. The
Management considers that the parent company is notin position to
exercise control over this entity. Hence the results of Joint Venture
Company have not been considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, in which, KFL hold 25%
shareholding, has closed its operation.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Audited Financial Statement, including the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related information of the Company and audited
accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available on our website
www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor. These documents will also be
available for inspection during business hours at our Registered
Office.

Further these Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
pursuantto section 133 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016. Thesefinancial statements forthe yearended March 31, 2023
are prepared under Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the
yearended March 31,2017, the financial statements were prepared
in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter
referred to as 'Previous GAAP') used for its statutory reporting
requirement in Indiaimmediately before adopting IndAS.

Further the Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved
by the Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

The details of business operations / performance of major
subsidiaries are as below:

Internal Control System

The Company has in place adequate internal control systems that
facilitates the accurate and timely compilation of financial
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statements and management reports, ensures regulatory and
statutory compliance, and safeguards investor interest by ensuring
the highest level of governance. The control system ensures that all
assets are safeguarded and protected and that the transactions are
authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

A CEO and CFO Certificate provided by Jt. Managing Director and
CFO, included in the Corporate Governance Report confirms the
existence of effective internal control systems and procedures in the
Company Internal audit function evaluates the adequacy of, and
compliance with policies, plans, regulatory and statutory
requirements. The Internal Auditors directly report to the Board's Audit
Committee, thus ensuring the independence of the process. It also
evaluates and suggests improvement in effectiveness of risk
management, controls and govemance process. The Audit committee
and Board provides necessary oversightand directions to the Internal
audit function and periodically reviews the findings and ensures
corrective measures are taken. Inthe opinion of the management and
the intemnal auditors, there exists adequate safeguard against fraud
and negligence within the Company.

Our Offices as well as the manufacturing facilities endorse the highest
health, safety, security and environmental standards.

Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place well defined and adequate Internal
Financial Controls which are tested from time to time for necessary
improvement, ifany required.

Listing at Stock Exchange

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd (During the Year Status:Active)
your Company have applied for revocation of suspension of Trading of
Securities of the Company and the Suspension of Trading has been
revoked with effect from 06/04/2022 vide Circular ref. No. 0368/2022
Dated 29/03/2022. The annual listing fee for the Financial Year 2023-
24 hasbeen paid by the Company.

Corporate Governance

Your Company has taken adequate steps to ensure compliance with
the provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated by the Stock
Exchanges. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015, a report on
the Corporate Governance, Certificate regarding Compliance,
Secretarial Audit Report and Jt. Managing Director (CEO) and CFO
certification along with the Auditors Certificate has been made part of
the Annual Report.

Auditors

M/s N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountant (FRN: 002249N),
New Delhi, Statutory Auditors of the Company was appointed as
auditors of the Company for the first term, to holds office from the
conclusion of 32nd Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of Fifth

Annual General Meeting to be held till the year 2026.The Board of
Directors has received their consent and they have confirmed their
eligibility to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be
within the prescribed limits and they are not disqualified for re-
appointment. The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,
142 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has considered the
appointment of M/s N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountant,
New Delhi (Firm Registration No. 002249N), as Statutory Auditors of
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of ensuing Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of Fifth Annual General Meeting
to be held in the year 2026. The Board of Directors accordingly
recommends their reappointment as Statutory Auditors.

Auditors Report

The Company has received the Auditors Report duly signed by M/s
N C Raj & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi and took
note on the same. Further as mentioned in the Auditors Report,
attention is drawn (Emphasis of Matters) to notes to the Financial
Statements, the same has not been reproduced for the sake of
brevity as the remarks given by the Auditors are self-explanatory,
however the Board has discussed the same in details as had been
providedin the notes to the Financial Statements.

CostAuditors

The Cost Auditor M/s Cheena and Associates appointed as Cost
Accountants of the Company for the year 2022-23 and has
completed the audit of the cost record of the Company. The Cost
Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force),
has approved the appointment of M/s Cheena & Associates, Cost
Accountant Firm to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024 and
remuneration to be paid subject to rectification by shareholders.

Secretarial Audit

The Board of Directors pursuant to the Provision of Section 204 of
the Companies Act, 2013, has appointed M/s. MANK and
Associates, Company Secretary Firm, (having FCS No. 10248 and
CP No. 19684) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the
Financial Year2023-2024.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Secretarial Auditor M/s MANK and Associates, Company
Secretaries, appointed for the year 2022-23 and has completed the
secretarial audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report as
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received from the Practicing Company Secretary is annexed to the
Annual Reportas Form No.-MR-3. As per the Secretarial Audit Report
the Company has complied with all the applicable acts, laws, rules and
regulations and does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

Internal Auditor

Theterms of M/s. NNA & Co, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, who
was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial
Year2022-23 expired on 31" March, 2023.

Your Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee have
approved their appointment in the Board Meeting dated 29" May,
2023, forthe financial year2023-24.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any
deposit under Chapter V of the CompaniesAct, 2013.

Share Capital of the Company

During the year under review, the Company did not issue equity
shares. The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to Rs.
370,715,300/~ comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each.

Board Meetings

The Board is headed by an executive Chairman. As on 31* March
2023, the Board of Directors consisted of Six Directors, including
Chairman, Joint Managing Directors, Woman Director, Independent
Directorand others.

Six (6) Board Meetings were held during the year 2022-23, i.e. on 27"
April, 2022, 30" May, 2022, 08" July 2022, 31" August 2022, 14"
November 2022 and 06" February, 2023 and the gap between two
meetings did exceed 120 days as per relaxation granted under the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No.
11/2020 dated 24" March, 2020.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met Six (6) times
i.e.on 27" April, 2022, 30" May, 2022, 08" July 2022, 31" August 2022,
14" November 2022 and 06" February, 2023 and the gap between two
meetings did exceed 120 days as per relaxation granted under the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No.
11/2020 dated 24" March, 2020.The minutes of the meetings of the
Audit Committee are noted by the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee met One(1) times i.e. on 14" November, 2022. The
minutes of the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are noted by the Board.

Remuneration Policy

On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board has formulated Remuneration Policy for
appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and their remuneration.

The Remuneration Policy of the Company forms part of this Report
and may be accessed on the Company's website on the
link:www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor.

Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilmechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and
Employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or
ethics policy or any other grievances, the details of which are given
in the Corporate Govemance Report. The Whistle Blower Policy
may be accessed on the Company's website on the link
www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor.

Particulars of Loan Given, Investment made, Guarantees given
and Securities Provided

Particulars of loans given, investments made, guarantees and
securities provided under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
are provided in the notes of standalone Financials statement and
wellwithin the limit approved by the Shareholders of the company.

Present status of litigations

During the Financial Year 2022-23 the Company went through some
litigations in taxation, banking and rice business. Brief of the
litigations is mentioned below:

Contingent and Other particulars:-

Contingent Liabilities not provided for
(Rs. InLacs)
Particulars 31-Mar-2023 | 31-Mar-2022
A Claims against the company , not acknowledged
as debt
i |Income Tax 10,322.02 10,322.02
i |SalesTax - Delhi 122.00 122.00
iii | VAT-Haryana 740.07 740.07
iv | Excise & Taxation Department, Punjab 455.62 455.82
v | Excise Duty 42.91 42.91
vi | Service Tax 9.12 9.12
vii | Vat-Dehi 963.94 963.94
viii | Legal Cases against the Company 2263 2263
B | Bank Guarantees 19.75 19.75
Surety Bonds issued to Govt. Agencies under
¢ EPCGIAdv License scheme 208234 208234

Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A),
New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi/ Hon'ble Delhi
High Court against the tax demand raised in impugned Income Tax
Assessment Orders as per detalils given below :-
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AY Tax Interest Total
2002-03 10 2008 -09 298.03 106.00 40403
2009-10 -
2010-11 2,331.25 1,347 86 3679.11
201112 83577 780.20 161597
201213 127498 1,019.99 2,294 97
2013-14 406.83 264.39 671.21
2014-15 798.05 453.85 125189
2016-17 27578 129.05 404.84
Total 10,322.02

As per the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of merit
of the case, there is a high probability that the aforesaid impugned
orders will be set aside and the demand will be deleted. Accordingly,
management is of the view that no provision in respect of the above
demands is required to be made in the books of accounts.

Further to above, for assessment year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-17, We
had contested the matter before CIT(Appeal), based on our
submission, our appeal was considered, the addition on certain
matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer Pricing Issue. On
Corporate Issue complete addition was allowed to be reversed and
thus the addition was nullified. The appeal effect against the order of
CIT (Appeal)is awaited for all three assessment years.

An appeal has been filed with CIT (A) on 11-08-2021 against an order
passed towards addition of Rs. 2860.54 Lacs against transfer pricing
adjustmentin respect of A.Y 2017-2018 although there is no liability on
the company since no demand has been raised by the department,
but, this hasimpacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

An appeal has been filed with CIT (A) on 07-12-2021 against an order
passed towards addition of Rs. 791.57 Lacs against transfer pricing
adjustmentin respect of A.Y 2018-2019 although there is no liability on
the company since no demand has been raised by the department,
but, this hasimpacted in the reduction of losses by the above amount.

An appeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner- Appeals, New Delhi is
lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of Rs.122.00 Lacs on
sale of REP Licenses made in earlier years.

Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate
Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn. 4 against the
impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision Order passed by the
assessing authorities as mentioned in column. 3 of the table given
below :-

Demand
Particulars raised Assessing Authority | Appellate Autharity
(Rs.}
(Cal.1) (Col.2) (Cal.3) (Col.4)
Sales Tax Murthal - AY 2008 -09 73235 Revisior-Faridabad | Tribunal -Chandigarh

Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009 -10 772
Total 740.07

o

Revisior-Faridabad | Tribunal -Chandigarh

Note : The Appellate Authority has remanded back the above cases
to Revision Authority, Rohtak / Assessing Authority, Sonipat

Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation
Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from
Excise and Taxation Dept., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and
2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs.450.41 Lacs towards the cess
imposed by the State Govt. on exports. The company has
challenged the validity ofimposition of cess onexportin its appeal as
the same is not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution of
India. Further demand has been raised for Rs. 5.41 Lacs after
completing the Sales Tax assessment for AY 2011-12 against which
appeal has beenfiled.

An appeal before the Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, New Delhi is lying pending against the order of
Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals), Delhi -lIl in respect of
additional excise duty of Rs. 42.91 Lacs demanded by the Excise
department in connection of dispute over classification of goods -
food product produced at Bahalgarh Factory- as per the Central
Tariff Act. As the matter is still pending before the Tribunal, no
provision in the books of accounts have beenmade.

During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an
order from Hon'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, New Delhi (CETSTAT) against the order passed by
Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication), New Delhi demanding
a service tax of Rs.2569.25 Lacs. The Hon'ble CETSTAT vide its
order dated 16/02/2017 has granted major relief of Rs.250.13 Lacs
against the aforesaid demand.

VAT-Delhihad raised the demand of 726.93 Lacs againstpending 'F'
forms in respect of years 2015-2016 & 2016-2017. Pending F forms
were related to six quarter out of the above, for five quarter all F
forms were submitted and an order dated 16-08-2022 has been
received, nullifying the demands of these quarter. For quarter one
for the year 2016-2017 F forms are pending there a demand of Rs.
22.63 Lacs has been raised by VAT-Delhi. Appeal against the said
order has been filed with VAT-Delhi.

The Company has received Notices from the Banks under section
13(2) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets
and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002, in the month of July,
2018 to May, 2019 and in the month of February 2020 to September
2020. The Company has replied to the notices received from the
Bank within 60 days from the date of notices. The Companyhas also
received Notices from the Banks under section 13(4) of The
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002. The Company has
submitted its resolution proposal with the Consortium Banks and the
same is sanctioned by the Lead Bank and was presented at their
respective consortium meeting.The Banks has also served letter for
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failure of resolution plan submitted by the Company. An extension to
the resolution plan was also granted by the Lenders. The promoters of
the Company deposited the interest towards sanctioned resolution
proposal and requested another 90 days' time to meet the
requirements of the sanctioned resolution proposal, which is at
present under consideration with the Consortium Lenders.

The Banks have filed petition against Company before Hon'ble NCLT
Bench Chandigarh, the company is contesting the matter and the
petition is yetto be admitted.

The Company has filed an appeal before Hon'ble High Court,Punjab &
Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Courthas granted Interim stay.

The Company has received an ex parte interim order from Debt
Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delhi dated 25/06/2020 restraining the
company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or
disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with
respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable properties of the
Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter
against the ex parte interim order.

The Company has received a Notice through speed post from DRT-I,
New Delhi. The Lead Bank has filed petition before DRT Delhi against
the Company under section 19(4) of the Act. The matterislisted before
the registrar for completing of pleading on 03/08/2022. The company
is contesting the matter. The Company has filed an appeal against the
honorable DRT, Delhi PO order before honorable DRAT, Delhi. The
Honorable DRAT, Delhi accepted the petition of the company, and
granted reliefas per the petition & costRs. 50,000/- to company on its
hearing and accordingly the petition was disposed-off.

The summon/notice hadbeen received summon/notice received inthe
name of the Jt. Managing Director, Kohinoor Foods Limited, from the
Directorate of Enforcement, Government of India, to appear before
them along with various document. The Director/authorized
representative of the company have submitted relevant documents
before the authorities/ offices / departments.

The notice had been received from Central Bureau of Investigation in
the name of The Director, Kohinoor Foods Limited to produce
documents/information in person before them. The
Director/authorized representative of the company have submitted
relevantdocuments before the authorities/ offices/ departments.

The Company has received Legal Notice from the Punjab National
Bank, Hong Kong in regard to outstanding indebtedness due amount
(inclusive of interest up to date). The matter is now being taken up
PNB Dubaiand the Company had submitted its OT S proposal and has
deposited the upfrontamount and requested to process the Company
OTS Proposal and forward the same to their Board/Head Office for
approval, whichis at presentin consideration.

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money suit for

recovery of Rs. 9.64 Cr. towards alleged outstanding demurrage
charges against which the Company has filed its counter claim of
Rs. 10.88 Cr. towards the financial losses, interest on the
investment, refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage
charges, compensation and damages etc. The matter is still
pending.

The Company's vendor has filed an execution petition before
Faridabad District & Session Judge. The Company is contesting the
matter. The Company has also approached Hon'ble High Court
Shimla for stay on above matter. The Hon'ble High Court has
admitted our application and granted interim stay.

The Municipal Corporation has issued notice to the Builder of
Pinnacle Tower for vacating of premises Pinnacle Tower, at
Surajkund Faridabad. The Builder had obtained interim stay on the
order of Municipal Commissioner, Faridabad from Hon'ble High
Court Punjab and Haryana. The Company also filed a petition
against Municipal Corporation & other before the Civil Judge, Senior
Division, Faridabad with regard to stay of proceeding against order
of Municipal Corporation, Faridabad. The Hon'ble Faridabad Court
has stated that already interim stay have been granted by the
Hon'ble High Court, hence no ground to grant relief prayed for is
made outatthis stage.

All other litigations are mentioned in the note on Contingent Liability
inthe Balance Sheet for the financial year 2022-23.

Contractand Arrangements with Related Parties

In terms of Section 188 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder
and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, your Company has in
place Related Party Transactions Policy for dealing with related
party transactions. The policy may be accessed under the Corporate
Governance section on the website of the Company at:
http://kohinoorfoods.in/pdf/Policy-on-Related-Party-
Transactions.pdf. ~ All the related party transactions that were
entered and executed during the year under review were on arm's
length basis and in the ordinary course of business and within
permissible framework of Section 188 of the Act and Rules made
thereunder read with Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations. There
were no materially significant related party transactions made by the
Company during the year that would have required the approval of
the shareholders. The details of the transactions with the related
parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.
There were no related party transaction made during the year that
are required to be disclosed in the Form AOC-2.

Conservation of Energy, Research and Development,
Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

The particulars as prescribed in sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
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are enclosed asAnnexure B to this Report.
Particulars of Employees and Related Disclosure

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a
statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules
are givenas under:

i) There are no Employee, employed throughout the year and in
receiptofremuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000/- or more perannum.

i)y There are no Employee, employed part of the year and in receipt
of remuneration of Rs. 8,50,000/- or more per month during any
partof the year.

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required
under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel)Rules, 2014, are setoutinthe annexure-D to this report.

Having regard to the provisions of Section 136(1) read with its relevant
proviso of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board's Report is being sent
to the members without some annexures. The said annexures are
available for inspection at the Registered/Corporate Office of the
Company during working hours and any member interested in
obtaining such annexures may write to the Company Secretary and
the same will be fumished free of cost.

Extract of Annual Return

Inaccordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
extract of the annual retum in Form No. MGT - 9 is enclosed as
Annexure Ctothis Report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations), a
Management Discussion and Analysis Report and a Report on
Corporate Governance is attached in a separate section forming part
of the Annual Report.

ACertificate from the Statutory Auditors ofthe Company regarding the
Compliance by the Company of the conditions stipulated in
Regulations Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is also
attached with this report.

Adeclaration by the Managing Director pursuant to Regulations PartC
of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations stating that all the Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have
affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, during the financial
year ended 31 March, 2023, is also attached with this report.

©

Directors' Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to section 134(5) of The Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors confirm that:

a) inthe preparation ofthe annual accounts forthe year ended 31°
March, 2023, the applicable accounting standards read with
requirements set out under Schedule Ill to the Act, had been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March,
2023 and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a 'going
concern' basis;

e) the Directors had laid down intemal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)y the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Awards & Recognitions

Since its inception, the Company has been earning awards and
recognition like consumer validated Super Brand Award (thrice in
series), Reader's Digest Most Trusted Brand award (4 times in a
row), Power Brand Award, Guinness Book of World Record (for
making World's Largest Biryani), National award for Export
Excellence, Brand Equity Award & many APEDA awards.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, all
companies having networth of Rs. 500 crores or more, or tumover of
Rs.1,000 crores or more or a net profit of Rs. 5 crores or more during
any financial year are required to constitute a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board of Directors comprising
three or more directors, at least one of whom should be an
Independent Director and such Company shall spend 2% of the
average net profits of the Company made during the three
immediately preceding financial years.

Accordingly adetailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company with
the approvals of the CSR Committee and Board. The Policy, inter
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alia, covers the following:

» Philosophy

« Scope

« Listof CSR activities

« Modalities of execution of projects/programmes
« Implementation through CSR Cell

« Monitoring assessmentof projects/programmes

CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects or programmes which
are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.

The composition ofthe CSR Committee

A Committee of the directors, titled 'Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee’, was constituted by the Board with the following members:

1. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari(Chairperson)
2. Mr.SatnamArora
3. Mr.GurnamArora

As the Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for last three financial
years prior to 2022-23 comes to average net loss and therefore the
Company is not statutorily required to spent amountas prescribed for
CSRexpenditure.

Kohinoor also envisions to improve lives in communities we live
around, protect workplace rights, respect people, support missions
that help people have a better life, provide good jobs, world class
quality products and a healthy environment to all of us around.

At Workplace, Kohinoor Foods maintain high standards for fair and
dignified treatment of all the people who work for our Company. For all
of its employees, it is not just a place to work, but like another home
and everybody initlike a big family, closely bonded with each other.

Kohinoor Foods also believes that a Company is as good as the
people who work for it - their combined talents; skills, knowledge,
experience and passion make acompany whatitis.

Hence, Company's continuous goal is to inspire and motivate its
people to hone their talents, increase their knowledge & skills and
achieve extraordinary results at their workplace. In this endeavor we
have offered subsidized meals to our employees at a very nominal
cost.

Adherence to global human rights standards, No minor labour, Fair
trade practices, complete Medical facilities for its people, Safe &
sound working environment are the things that Kohinoor Foods take
utmost care about.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the
link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the
workplace. The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy
in compliance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013. The Company always endeavors to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment
including sexual harassment. The Sexual Harassment Committee
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment.

The Directors further state that during the year under review, there
were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual HarassmentofWomen at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from all the
Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of
independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulation, 2015.

Board Evaluation

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it is mandatory that the Board
shall monitor and review the Board Evaluation Framework. The
Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs
to be made by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 (10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 states that the
performance evaluation of Independent Directors shall be done by
the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being evaluated.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
reviewed the performance of the individual Directors on the basis of
the criteria and framework adopted by the Board. In addition, the
performance of Board as a whole and committees were evaluated
by the Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis
ofvarious criteria.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of
Non-Independent Directors, performance of Board as a whole and
performance of the Chairman was evaluated, takinginto accountthe
views of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The
evaluation process has been explained in the Corporate
Governance Report section ofthe Annual Report.

Training of Independent Directors

The Company Secretary of the Company conducted a detailed
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training programme to provide/update the changes in the SEBI
(LODR), Regulation, 2015/Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant
actto the Independent Directors.

Further, the Company issues a formal letter of appointment to
Independent Directors outlining their roles, responsibilities, functions
and duties as an Independent Director. The format of the letter of
appointment is available on the Company's website at the link:
www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in
respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these
items during the yearunder review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

2. lIssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employee of
the Company underany scheme.

4. lIssue of Employees Stock Option to employee of the Company
under any scheme.

5. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of
the Company receive any remuneration or commission from any
ofits subsidiaries.

6. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators
orCourts or Tribunals whichimpact the going concern status and
Company's operations in future except as disclosed in the
Annual Report.

7. Business Responsibility Report as per Regulation 34 (2)(f) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, describing the initiatives taken by them from
an environmental, social and governance perspective is not
applicable to the Company, for the financial year 2022-2013 as
per the SEBI Circular SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/27 dated
22" December, 2015 and Frequently Asked Questions issued by
SEBI on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dated 29" January, 2016.
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assistance and co-operation received from the Banks, Government
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ANNEXURE 'A’' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT - REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Corporate Governance Philosophy

The Company has always maintained an integrated way of thinking, which is reflected in the functioning of the Board and
corporate governance framework. A Company's relationship with its investors is an important component of corporate
govemance. The Board of Directors believes in upholding the highest standards of accountability and actively participates in
overseeing risks and strategic management. The board fully supports and endorses corporate governance practices in
accordance with the provisions of Regulation 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. The primary objective of corporate governance is to create and adhere to a corporate culture of conscience and
consciousness, fransparency and openness, to develop capabilities and identify opportunities that best serve the goal of value
creation. Our corporate govemance framework ensures that we make timely disclosures and share accurate information
regarding our financials and performance, as well as the leadership and govermnance of the Company. Over the years, we have
strengthened governance practices. These practices define the way business is conducted and value is generated.

Our corporate governance framework has helped us to be aligned with the new guidelines of the Companies Act, 2013 as well
asthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. We believe that an active, well informed and
independentboardis necessary to ensure the higheststandards of corporate governance.

2. Board of Directors

As on 31% March, 2023, the Company is managed and controlled by Board of Directors which has an optimal combination of
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. The Board is headed by an Executive Chairman, the Board of Directors
consisted of Six Directors, including Chairman / Whole-time Director, Joint Managing Directors, Woman Director, Independent
Directors.

As on 31% March, 2023, none of the Directors on the Company's Board was a Director in more than 20 Companies, neither a
Chairman of more than five Committees nor a member of more than 10 Committees in accordance with Companies Act, 2013
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, all the Directors have made
necessary disclosures regarding their Directorship and Chairmanship/Committee Membership in other Companies as per the
requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The
Board members possess the requisite skills, experience and expertise to guide the Company.

None of the Directors had relationship inter-se, except Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora,
being related to each other as brothers.

The Board Members are provided with necessary documents/brochures, reports and internal policies to enable them to
familiarize themselves with the Company's procedures and practices. Directors are periodically advised about the changes
effected in Corporate Laws, Listing Regulations with regard to their roles, rights and responsibilities as Director of the
Company.

The familiarisationprogramme along with details of the same imparted to the Independent Directors are available on the
website ofthe Company https:/flwww.kohinnorfoods.in

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises highly qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and
competence that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.

While all the Board members possess the skills identified, their area of core expertise is given below:
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Nature of Skills/Expertise
. : Risk
Name of the Corporate Industry Financial | .. . Gover | Techn
Directors Leaadership Expelll'lenoe ;cumeln Diversity nance | ology Hanagemen

Shri Jugal Kishore

Arora ugal R v | v v v v v
Shri Satnam Arora v v v v v v v
Shri Gumam Arora ¥ ¥ ¥ N ¥ ¥ ¥
Shri Sunil Sharma v v y N y v N
Shri Yash Pal Mahajan v v v N y N y
Smt. Mani Chandra

Bhandari v | v v v v ¥

Six (6) Board meetings were held during the Financial Year 2022-2023 and the gap between two meetings did exceed 120 days as per
relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 24" March, 2020. The dates, on
which the Board meetings were held are 27" April, 2022, 30" May, 2022, 08" July 2022, 31" August 2022, 14" November 2022 and 06" February,
2023.

Dates for the Board Meetings are decided well in advance and the Agenda, along with the supporting documents, explanatory notes and
information, as enumerated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation, 2015, are made available to the Board
along with the notice of respective meetings or soon afterthe notice. The Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to
the Company. The Company undertakes steps to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, along with their attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year ended 31
March, 2023, and at the last Annual General Meeting, and the number of other Directorship and Chairmanship/ Membership of Committees
held by them, are given below:

No. of Board | Whether Committee position
Name of the Director Meetings attended | No. of other of other No. of Equity
attended during| the last |Directorships®| Companies** Shares held
Executlve (Promoter) tenure AGM Chalrman | Member
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
{Whole-fime Direclor, 4 No Nil Nil Nil 1,053,484
designated as Chairman)
Mr. Satnam Arora
(Joint Managing Director) 6 Yes 3 NIl 2 5,749,191
Mr. Gumam Arora
(Joint Managing Director) 6 Yes 1 NIl NIl 6,289,204
Non - Executive and Independent

Mr. Sunil Sharma 6 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari 6 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

*This includes Directorship in public limited companies (including subsidiaries of public limifed companies) and excludes Directorship in
associations, private, foreign and Section 8 companies.

**Represents Chairmanship/Membership of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship
(Shareholders/Investors' Grievance) Committee, this includes Chairmanship/Membership in public limited companies (including subsidiaries
of public limited companies) and excludes Chairmanship/Membership in private, foreign and Section 8 companies.
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INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SEBI(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS,
2015, RELATING TO DIRECTORSAS ON DATE OF APPROVAL OF DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN-00010704) Chairman of the Company.

He is associated with the Organization since its inception and has completed his Graduation from Punjab University. He has been
looking after and is in-charge of Procurement as well as the Production of the Company. His vast experiences of more than three
decades in the rice industry, together with a sharp eye for detail, have reaped rich dividends. In fact, he has been largely
responsible for the wide acceptance that the Company's Basmati Brands enjoyed all overthe World today. Mr. Arora set up the first
rice processing plant at Amritsar followed by rice processing plants at Murthal (Haryana) and Food Processing Plant at Bahalgarh,
Sonipat. His major contribution is in the areas of quality standardization. He has pioneered the development of different quality
parameters for Indian basmati rice by carrying out extensive interactions with the farmers, agro-scientists and research personnel
for the betterment of basmati rice, the quality and output at the domestic level. Today, he is engaged in providing strategic direction
to the Company's business; taking the overall charge of procuring raw-material (paddy) and selecting the optimum growing region
etc. and setting “QUALITY" standards forthe Company's range ofrice-offerings.

Heis a Directorof Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd. and some ofthe Pvt. Ltd. Companies.
Heholds 1,053,484 (2.84%) Equity Shares of the Companyin his own name as on 31*March, 2023.

Mr.Satnam Arora (DIN - 00010667) Jt. Managing Director of the Company.

He has completed his education as a Master in Economics from Punjab University and has been involved in the family business of
trading of Basmati Rice right from the beginning. He has vast experience in marketing the rice in overseas market. Mr. Satnam
Arorahas been looking after Export Marketing as well as he is responsible for Banking, Finance, Taxation, Legal and Secretarial as
well. The fact that the Company has taken a Commanding Share of the Basmati Export Market is largely because of the sincere
efforts and initiative taken by Mr. Satnam Arora. He strongly believesthat success in life can be achieved only with self-confidence
and belief. In order to bring significant exposure to his organization, he has been a part of several Industry association like FICCI,
ASSOCHAM, AIREA(All India Rice Exporters Association) and APEDA etc.

He is a director of Indraprastha Medical Corporation Ltd, Satnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd., Kohinoor Foods
USA, Inc. and some of the Pvt. Ltd. Companies.

He is a memberof Audit Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee ofthe Indraprastha Medical Corporation Ltd.
He holds 5,749,191 (15.51%) Equity Shares ofthe Company in his own name as on 31" March, 2023.

Mr. Gurnam Arora (DIN-00010731) Jt. Managing Director of the Company.

He is having vast experience and skills and has been instrumental in providing a new strategic focus to the rice industry from a
commodity driven business to a branded category. After completion of Graduation degree, he joined the family business of rice
trading. Over the years, Mr. Gurnam Arora learnt the intricacies of the business and demonstrated his strategic approach &
acumen by successfully marketing & promoting Company's products in national & international markets. Amongst other career
milestones, he has played a key role in infroducing convenient packaging options and many more value additions for the
consumers. He has over three decades of experience in rice industry.

Mr. Gurnam Arora has been looking after Domestic Marketing, Purchase, Administration, HR, Quality Control and day to day
Corporate Affairs of the Company. Mr. Gurnam Arora's broad vision helped the Company to increase its value. He was the
President of All India Rice Exporters Association and a member of the Basmati Development Fund, APEDA and Ministry of
Commerce and also associated with various industry associations like FICCI,ASSOCHAM etc.

Heis a Directorof Satnam Haegens Ltd., Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd. and some ofthe Pvt. Ltd. Companies.
He holds 6,289,204 (16.97%) Equity Shares of the Company in his own name as on 31*March, 2023.
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Mr. Sunil Sharma (DIN -08699033) Independent Director of the Company.

He is a Commerce Graduate with over four decades experience in Hospitality Industry and had served various senior
position with organization such as Sudhir Power Limited, Antara Senior Living, Max Healthcare Limited, Sudhir
Gensets, Limited, Country Inn and Suits, Satnam Overseas and also having sufficient expertise in Strategic
Operational Business, Finance, Operations and People Management. Because of his vast operational exposure, he
has been appointed as an Independent Director ofthe Company.

He started his carrier in the year 1976 to 1989 as department head at various position in Saudi Arabia, Egypt and
Washington DC and thereafter also served various region in India with senior position as General Manager / Project
Specialist.

He is the member of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

He does not hold any share ofthe Company in his name as on 31" March, 2023.

Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan (DIN - 08699040) Independent Director of the Company.

He is a Marine Engineerand an entrepreneur with over four decades experience in Hospitality Industry and had served various
senior position in India and abroad such as The OBEROI and Shipping Corporation of India and also having sufficient expertise in
Management, Engineering Maintenance, Project Management and Operations. Because of his vast exposure, he has been
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company.

He started his carrier in the year 1972 to 1976 as Engineer on Ship with the Shipping Corporation of India and had also served as
Chief Engineer / Director Engineer with The OBERAI from 1976 to 2008 in Saudi Arabia, Middle Eastand Indiaand thereafter from
2008 to till date he is an Engineering Consultant and an Entrepreneur as a Partner with a Partnership Firm 'Surya Electro Control'
having works atPunjab and Himachal Pradesh.

He is the member of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

He does not hold any share of the Company in his name as on 31*March, 2023.

Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari(DIN - 00387585) Independent Director of the Company.

She is a Science Graduate and an entrepreneur with rich experience of around four decades in running export organization and
experience in Garments Industry and also having sufficientexpertise in Management, Designing and Order Procurement Because
of hervastexposure, she has been appointed as an IndependentDirector of the Company.

SheisaDirectorof Chandramani Private Limited and Chandermani Exports Private Limited.

She is a Chairperson of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Kohinoor Foods Limited.

She does nothold any share of the Company in his name as on 31*March, 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors has constituted the following Committees of Directors with adequate delegation of powers to discharge the
Company's requisite business:

AuditCommittee

Stakeholder Relationship (Shareholders'/Investors' Grievance) Committee.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The minutes of the meetings of all such committees were placed before the Board for discussion/noting.

Detail of the composition, number of meetings held during the year, attendance of members and scope of the committees are as
below:

Audit Committee

The Company has an Audit Committee which deals in matters relating to financial reporting and intemal controls. All the members
are financially literate. Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari, who has the expertise in the accounting and financial management is the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Mr. Sunil Sharma, Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan and Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandariare responsible for
Finance, Accounting, Banking, Taxation, Secretarial & Legal and other departmental head were also present from time to ime apart
from the Internal Auditors and Statutory Auditors, who were the permanent invitees. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to
the Committee.

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the 33“Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30"September,
2022 to answermember queries.

As on March 31, 2023, the Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Members of the Audit Committee possess financial /
accounting expertise / exposure.

During the year underreview, the Audit Committee met Six (6) imes i.e.on 27" April, 2022, 30" May, 2022, 08" July 2022, 31" August
2022, 14" November 2022 and 06" February, 2023 and the maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings has exceed
120 Days as per relaxation granted under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No. 11/2020 dated 24"
March, 2020.

The minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are noted by the Board. The details of the composition of the Committee,
meetings held, attendance at the meetings along, are given below.

Name Position Meetings Attended
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandan Chairperson 6
Mr. Sunil Sharma Member 6
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Member 4
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Scope of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, inter alia, supports the Board to ensure an effective intemal control environment. The Committee discharges such
duties and functions with powers generally indicated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with
the Stock Exchanges.

The scope of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Powers of Audit Committee

1. Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference.

2. Toseek information from any employee.

3. Toobtainoutside legal orother professional advice.

4. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, ifit considers necessary.
Terms of Reference

- Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, adequate and credible;

- Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointmentand, if required, the replacementor removal of the Statutory Auditors
and the fixation of audit fee;

- Approving payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;

Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial Statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

(a)  Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of
clause (c) ofsub-section 3 of section 134 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013;

b)  Changes,ifany, in accounting policies and practices and reasons forthe same;

c)  Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise ofjudgmentby management;
Significantadjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with listing and otherlegal requirements relating to financial statements;

f)  Disclosureofany related party transactions

g)  Qualifications inthe draft auditreport, if any.

- Reviewing, with the management, the Quarterly Financial Statements before submission to the Board for approval;

- Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue,
preferentialissue etc.), the statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
and the report submitted by the agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, if any, and making
appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

- Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

- Approvalorany subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

- Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

- Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever itis necessary;

- Reviewing, with the management, the performance of Statutory and Interal Auditors and adequacy of the internal control system;

- Reviewing the adequacy of intemal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and
seniority ofthe official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency ofinternal audit;

- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion

Q
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toascertainany area of concern;

- Reviewing reports of internal audit and discussing with Internal Auditors on any significant findings of any internal investigations by
the Internal Auditors and the executive management's response on matters and follow-up thereon;

- Reviewing reports of Cost Audit, if any, and discussion with Cost Auditors on any significantfindings by them;

- Reviewing the findings of any intemal investigations by the intemal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or
iregularity or afailure ofinternal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board,;

- Toreview the functioning ofthe Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism;

- Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function or
discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

- Recommending to the Board, the appointment and fixation of remuneration of Cost Auditors, ifapplicable;

- Evaluating Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems and reviewing the Company's financial and risk
management policies;

- Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

- Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operation;

- Reviewing the statement of significant related-party transactions;

- Reviewing the Management letters/letters ofinternal control weaknessesissued by the Statutory Auditors.
- Toreview the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor.

- Toreview the Internal Auditreport relating to internal control weaknesses.

iij  Stakeholder Relationship Committee

«  The Company Secretary, being the Compliance Officer is entrusted with the responsibility to specifically look into the Redressal of
shareholders andinvestors complaints and reportthe same to Stakeholder Relationship Committee.

«  TheFunctioning andterms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee includes:

« To specifically look into the Redressal of investors' grievances pertaining to transfer/ transmission of shares, dividends, de-
materialization/ re-materialization, replacement of lost/ stolen/ mutilated share certificates;

« To consider the matters relating to transfer, transmission and transposition of shares, sub-division and consolidation of shares,
replacement of lost/ stolen and mutilated share certificates and review of requests for de-materialization/ re-materialization of share.

o  Otherrelatedissues and to strengtheninvestors'relations.

In accordance with Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board of Directors
of the Company, have approved the change in nomenclature of the Shareholders Grievances Committee to Stakeholders Relationship
Committee and enhanced their role. The Board of Directors of the Company currently has a Stakeholders Relationship Committee to
specifically look into and resolve grievances of security-holders on various matters. Routine queries/complaints received from
shareholders are promptly attended to and replied by way of resolution by circulation. Queries/complaints received during the period
under review related to non-receipt of annual report, change of company name, non-receipt of transferred shares and change of address
and/or bank particulars. There were no pending issues to be addressed or resolved

The Company received a total of Nil complaints from investors during the year 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023, all of which were resolved within
the stipulated time to the satisfaction of the complainants. No requests for share transfers are pending except those that are disputed or
sub-judice.

12/
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Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as under:

Name Posklon

Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairperson

Mr. Gumam Gupta Membar

Mr. Satnam Arora Member
Otherdetails

a)  Name ofthe Non-Executive Directorheading the Committee: Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari
b)  Nameand Designation of the Compliance Officer: Mr. Deepak Kaushal, Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)3

c)  Number of Shareholders Complaints: The Company has received Nil complaints during the year and no complaint was pending at
the beginning ofthe year.

d)  Numbers not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders: All the complaints have been resolved to the satisfaction of the
complainants during the year.

e)  Numberofpending complaints ason 31stMarch, 2023 None
i)~ Nominationand Remuneration Committee

In accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015, the
Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met One (1) timesi.e.on 14" November, 2022.

During the year under review, the Committee comprises of Three members, all of them being Non-executive Independent Directors.
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Name Position

Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari Chairpsrson

Mr. Sunil Sharma Membar

Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan Member
Term of reference

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is empowered to review and recommend to the Board of Directors, Remuneration and
Sitting Fees of the Company's Independent Directors with the guidelines laid down under the statute. The scope of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is as follows:

1t  formulating criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors and recommending to the Board
apolicy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

1t formulating criteria for evaluation of performance ofindependent Directors and the Board;
1t  devisinga policy ondiversity of the Board;
263

identifying and recommending individuals who are qualified to become Directors, and who may be appointed as Senior
Managementin accordance with the criteria laid down;

1t recommending appropriate training program for new Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management and
periodically reviewing the same;

1t  evaluating the performance of the Directors based on the evaluation criteria and furnishing the Board with the necessary report for
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further evaluation;

1t recommending to the Board a Policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management, and while formulating such Policy ensuring that:

(i)  the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;

(i) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the appropriate performance benchmarks; and remuneration to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between the fixed and incentive pay reflecting
shortandlong term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;

1t  assisting the Board, as and when required, in relation to matters relating to remuneration and incentives payable to Directors, Key
Managerial Personneland Senior Management, including increments to the compensation structure;

1t  preparingapolicy on diversity of the Board;

1t  recommending to the Board the re-appointment and removal of any individuals holding the office of a Director, Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management, subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;

1t  reviewing remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management based on performance criteria and
recommending any changes thereto to the Board;

1t  determining whether the relevant Director has the requisite qualifications for practice of a profession in terms of section 197 of the
Companies Actin relation to payment of remuneration for services rendered by such Director;

1t  undertaking such other functions as may be determined by the Board or required under the provisions of the Companies Act or the
SEBI(LODR) Regulation, 2015; and

1t undertaking such other actions as may be necessary orappropriate for performance of the aforementioned functions.

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a Remuneration Policy, providing (a)
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors and (b) a policy on remuneration for directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees. The detailed Remuneration Policy is placed on Company's website
www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor.

Detail of Remuneration of Directors

Thetable below provides the details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year2022-23:

Name of Directors Salary | Perquisites |Sitting Fee Total
Executlva Director-Promoters
Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora Nil
(Whele time Director, designated as Chairman)
Mr. Satnam Arora
(Joint Managing Director)
Mr. Gumam Arora Nil
(Joint Managing Director)
Non-Exaecutive and Non Independent
Mr. Sunil Sharma - - 125,000 | 125,000
Mr. Yash Pal Mahalan — — 75,000 75,000
Mrs. Mani Chandra Bhandari - - 125,000 | 125,000
TOTAL NIl NIl 325,000 | 325,000

- Nil - -




@ ANNUAL
KOHINOOR REPORT

FooODS LIMITED 2022-23

Remuneration to Executive Directors for 2022-2023

The Company has obtained the approval ofthe Central Government for paymentof remuneration for the period of two years vide approval
dated 3" August, 2016 forthe period 1/10/2015t0 30/09/2017.

Further the Re-Appointment and Remunerations of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN 00010704), Mr. Satnam Arora (DIN 00010667) and Mr.
GurnamArora (DIN - 00010731) had been approved by the Shareholders in the 31stAnnual General Meeting of the Company held on 30"
December, 2020 for the period of three years subjectto the approval of the Central Government. However, the Executive Directors have
forgone theirremuneration for remaining months from April 2022 to March 2023.

Non-Executive Directors' Compensation

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13" November, 2014, revised sitting fee payable to Non-Executive Independent Directors
amounting to Rs. 25,000/- per meeting for every meeting of the Board attended by them as member. The Company currently does not
have a stock option programme for any ofits Directors.

Maximum tenure of Independent Directors

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(2) of SEBI (LODR),
2015.

Formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors

The Company issues a formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors in the manner as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR), 2015. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are placed on the Company's
website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.

Pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Directors
During the yearunder review, there were no pecuniary transactions with any Non-Executive Director ofthe Company.
Criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors

Non-executive Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring in an extemal
perspective to decision-making and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining objective judgment. They also oversee
corporate governance framework of the Company. As stated earlier, the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing criteria of making
payments to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employeesis placed on the Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, all Companies having Net Worth of Rs. 500 crores or more, or Tumover
of Rs.1,000 crores or more or a Net Profit of Rs. 5 crores or more during any financial year are required to constitute a Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee of Board of Directors comprising three or more Directors, atleastone of whom should be an Independent
Director and such Company shall spend 2% of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding
Financial Years.

Accordingly adetailed CSR Policy was framed by the Company with the approvals of the CSR Committee and Board. The Policy, inter alia,
covers the following:

« Philosophy Scope
o Listof CSRactivities
« Modalities of execution of projects/programmes Implementation through CSR Cell
« Monitoring assessment of projects/programmes
The composition of the CSR Committee
A Committee of the directors, titled 'Corporate Social Responsibility Committee', was constituted by the Board with the following members:

75/
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1. Mrs. ManiChandra Bhandari
2. Mr.SatnamArora
3. Mr.GurnamArora

As the Average net Profit/(Loss) of the Company for last three financial years prior to 2022-23 comes to average net loss and therefore the
company s not statutorily required to spentamount as prescribed for CSR expenditure.

Although the Company is not statutorily require to expend 2% of the average net profit (INR) of the lastthree financial years, being average
netloss. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's website at the link: www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor

4. Independent Directors'Meeting

In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was held on 14" November, 2022, without the participation of the Non-Independent Directors and members of the
management, interalia, to discuss the following:

i) reviewthe performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board asawhole;

ii) review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors; and

iy assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary
for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. All Independent Directors were present at the meeting, deliberated on
the above and expressed their satisfaction.

Allthe Independent Directors were presentatthe meeting.
Board Diversity Policy

In compliance with provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board through its Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
devised a Policy on Board Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board is comprised of adequate number of members
with diverse experience and skills, such thatit best serves the governance and strategic needs of the Company. It may be noted that, the
Board composition as atpresentbroadly meets with the above objective.

Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management

The Board of the Company has satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to Senior
Management.

Code of Conduct for Board Members & Senior Management Team:

The Company's Board of Directors laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct under Corporate Govemnance for all the Directors and the
Senior Management Personnel of your Company. The said Code of Conduct has also been posted on the Company's website. The Board
members and Senior ManagementPersonnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct for2022-23.

Adeclaration signed by the Company's Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.
Compliances regarding Insider Trading

The Company implemented a Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider Trading, in accordance with the guidelines specified under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended il date.

The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading, inter alia, prohibits purchase/sale of Company's shares, while in possession of
Company's unpublished and price-sensitive information and accordingly necessary procedures have been laid down for the Promoters,
Directors, designated employees, Key Managerial Personnel, connected persons and others as prescribed under the said code for
trading inthe Company's securities.

The code of practices and procedures for fair disclosures is available on the Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.in
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Compliance Report as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
Compliance Reportof Kohinoor Foods Limited as on March 31,2023 with the applicable mandatory requirements is as under:
Review of legal compliance reports

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed compliance reports with respect to the various laws applicable to the Company, as
prepared and placed beforeit by the Management.
Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilmechanism

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees to report their concems about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected, fraud or violation ofthe Company's code of conductor ethics policy or any other grievances, the details of which are giveninthe
Corporate Govermnance Report, during the year underreview.

The directors in all cases and employees in appropriate or exceptional cases will have direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed onthe Company's website on the link www kohinoorfoods.infinvestor

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, no matter has beenreceived under Whistle Blower Policy of the Company and no personnel has
beendenied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Subsidiary, JointVentures and Associate Companies

The Company has One Wholly Owned foreign Subsidiaries, namely M/s Kohinoor Foods USA, Inc. (USA), situated outside India and one
Indian Wholly Owned Subsidiary in the name of Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd.

Information on subsidiary companies is forming part of the Board's Report. The company has material subsidiary in accordance with the
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements and
investments made by the unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the proceedings of the Board meetings of the unlisted subsidiary
Companies are placed before the Board of Directors. Policy for determining 'material’ subsidiaries was adopted by Board of Directors and
this policy is uploaded on the website of the Company at: http://kohinoorfoods.in/pdf/Policy-for-deciding-material-subsidiary.pdf

In accordance with section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared consolidated financial statements of the Company and
allits subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report. The statement provides the details of performance, financial positions of each of
the subsidiaries.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals basis unless
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to allthe periods presented in the financial statements.

The financial statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited (“Holding Company or KFL") together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “Group”) are consolidated to form Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS). Consolidated Financial Statements
consolidate the financial statements of KFL and its Wholly Owned Subsidiaries.

The parent Company has not received audited financial statement from its Joint venture Company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. The
Management considers that the parent company is not in position to exercise control over this entity. Hence the results of Joint Venture
Company have not been considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Rich Rice Raisers LLC, in which, KFL holds 25%
shareholding, has closed its operation.

During the year the Board of Directors of the Company had reviewed the affairs of the subsidiaries and a statement containing the salient
features of the financial statement of our subsidiaries in the prescribed format AOC-1 is enclosed as Annexure to the Financial Statement
and hence notrepeated here for the sake of brevity.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statement, including the consolidated financial
statements and related information of the Company and audited accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available on our website
www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor. These documents will also be available for inspection during business hours atour Registered Office.

o
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Further the Policy for determining material subsidiaries as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the link:
www.kohinoorfoods.infinvestor

Related Party Transactions

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm's length basis. The details are provided in the related party disclosures in the notes forming part of the
financial statement and hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity. A Policy on materiality of RPTs and also on dealing with RPTs has
been formulated by the Board during the year underreview and the same is placed on the Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.in

Disclosure of Material Transactions

Under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Senior Management has made periodical
disclosures to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial transactions where they had (or were deemed to have had)
personal interest that might have been in potential conflict with the interest of the Company. The same was nil.

Disclosures

Suitable disclosures have been made in the financial statements, together with the Management's explanation in the event of any
treatmentbeing differentfrom that prescribed in Accounting Standards.

Investors' Complaints Attended/resolved during 2022-23

Pending at the beginning of the year Nil
Reacelved during the year NIl
Disposed off during the year Nil
Remalning unresolved at the end of the year NIl
Financial calendar

Audited annual results foryear ending 31*March by May
Mailing of Annual Reports by August/September

Annual General Meeting by September

Un-audited firstquarter Financial Results by August
Un-audited second quarter Financial Results by November
Un-audited third quarter Financial Results by February
Share Transfer Agent

The Company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. as its Share Transfer Agent and for processing of share transfer/de-
materialization/ re-materialization. All physical transfers, transmission, transposition, issue of duplicate share certificate(s), issue of
demand drafts in lieu of dividend warrants etc. as well as requests for de-materialization / re-materialization are being processed in
periodical cycles at Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

The work related to de-materialization/ re-materialization is handled by Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd. through connectivity with
NSDLand CDSL.

Share Transfer System

Share transfers received by the Share Transfer Agent/Company are registered within 15 days from the date of receipt, provided the
documents are complete in all respects. Total number of shares transferred from physical category to dematerialized form during 2022-23
was 6615 shares versus 1978 shares during 2022-23.
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Information like quarterly / half yearly / annual financial results of the Company that have been made available from time to time, to the
pressand are hosted onthe Company's website at www.kohinnorfoods.inand have also been submitted to the stock exchanges to enable
them to put them on their websites and communicate to the shareholders. The quarterly / half-yearly /annual financial results are generally
published in English and Hindi language newspapers. Moreover, a report on Management Discussion and Analysis has been given
elsewhere in this report. The Company electronically files all reports / information including quarterly results, shareholding patten and
corporate governance report and soon, at BSE website at www.listing.bseindia.com and at NSE website atwww.connect2nse.com.

5. General Body Meetings

Details of location ofthe lastthree Annual General Meetings of the Company are given below:

Year Speclal
Ended Date of GM Time Venue Resolution
Passed
Magpie Tourist Complex
2019 | 30-08-2019( 11:00AM. {(a unit of Haryana Tourism Corporation Limited), 0
Main Mathura Road, Sector-18A, Faridabad, Haryana — 121002.
through Video Cenferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
g ) {“"VC/OAVM™) Facility
2020 (30-12-2020)| 11:00 AM. |00 0 Venue: for the 31st AGM shall be the Registered Office of | 4
the Company
through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
y ) {"VC/OAVM™) Fagility
2021 (30-12-2021) 11:00 AM. |nomed Venue: for the 32nd AGM shall be the Registered Office of|  ©
the Company
through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
. ) {"VC/OAVM") Facility
2021 110-11-2021) 03:00P.M. | poomed Venue: for the 1st EGM shall be the Registered Office of 0
tha Company
through Video Cenferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
] ("VC/IOAVM") Facility
2022 |30-08-2022)| 11:30 AM. | 5o0mad Venue: for the 33rd AGM shall b the Registered Office of 0
the Company
b) Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot during Financial Year 2022-23:
Date of Dispatch Date of
Description (Nature of | Date of | of Postal Ballot | The remote e-voting sin
Resolution) Notice Forms to | period: pas Iut?on
Members reso
Commences from .00 am.
Approval to sell off factory of the (IST) Thursday, March 31 }
Company on Slump Sale basis 24-03-2022 30-03-2022 2022 and ends at 5.00 p.m. 29-04-2022
(IST) on Friday, Aril 28 2022
Commences from $.00 a.m.
Approval to sell off Registered Office (IST) Thursday, March 31 }
of the Company on Slump Sale basis 24-03-2022 30-03-2022 2022 and ends at 5.00 p.m. 29-04-2022
(IST) on Friday, Aril 29 2022
Approval to Sell the Plant and Commences from 2.00 a.m.
Machinery of Factory situated at 50- (IST) Thursday, March 31 )
51, Milestone, G.T. Kamal Road, 24-03-2022 30-03-2022 2022 and ends at 5.00 p.m. 23-04-2022
Murthal, Sonepath, Haryana-131027 {IST) on Friday, Aril 29 2022

2]
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The Company had appointed Mr. Manish Kumar (Membership No. FCS 10248) of M/s Mank and Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, asthe Scrutinizerto conduct the Postal Ballotthrough remote e-voting processin a fairand transparent manner.

Procedure followed in above postal ballotis as under — The notices containing the proposed resolutions and explanatory statement were
sent to the shareholders by email in accordance with MCA General Circular No.14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and General Circular No.
17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020. The e-voting period was for 30 days from dispatch of notice. The Scrutinizer submitted the report to the
Company. The voting results were announced within 48 hours of end of the e-voting period. For e-voting, the company is having
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for providing e-voting facility to its shareholders. Under this facility,
shareholders are provided an electronic platform to participate and vote on the resolutions to be passed through Postal Ballot. As on the
date of this report, no business s proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

1. Disclosures
a) Material significant Related Party Transactions& potential conflict with the interest ofthe company at large

There were no related party transactions (RPTs) entered into by the Company during the financial year, which atiracted the
provisions of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013. There being no 'material' related party transactions as defined under
Regulation23 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC-2 in thatregard. The Policy on RPTs as
approved by Board is uploaded on the Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.in. All contracts / arrangements / transactions
entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's
length basis. The details are provided in the related party disclosures in the notes forming part of the financial statement and
hence not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

b) Commodity pricerisk orforeignexchange risk and hedging risk.
The details for the same have been provided in the notes to the financial statements.

c) Compliances made by the Company
The Company was not subject to any non-compliance and no penalties or strictures have been imposed by Stock Exchanges,
SEBIorany other Statutory Authority, on any matters relating to Capital Market during the year.

However the Company was subject to the non-compliance and penalties imposed by Stock Exchanges w.r.t. regulation
17, 18, 19, 33 & 34 of SEB! (LODR) Regulations, 2015 & regulstion 108(2) of SEBI {ICDR) Reguistions, 2009 during
the last three years.

Regulation Name/ SEBI Circular number E mla:ge Al(l;:u)nt Status
Regulation 108{2) SEBI {ICDR) Regulations, 2009 (delay in approaching NSE/BSE 40000/ Paid
exchange for listing of securities for FY 2018) 20000

Regulation 33, (December 2014} BSE 371420 Paid

The Company was subject to non-compliance and the following are the details of acltions laken against the listed entity
/ s promoters / directors / matertal subsidiaries elther by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (inchuding under the Standard
Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/ Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder:

Regulation Stock Exchange | Amount (Rs.) Status

Application / Documents submitted to the Exchanges
to accept Revocation of Suspension of Trading, on
21/05/2021 and the Suspension of Trading has been
revoked with effect from 06/04/2022 vide Circular ref.
No. 0368/2022 Dated 29/03/2022

150,000 /

Suspension of Trading NSE/BSE 525,000
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k) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on
equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any other convertible instruments, during the year under
review.

1)  ForeignExchange Risk and hedging activities:
The details forthe same have been provided inthe notes to the financial statements.

m) Details of utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under regulation 31(7A)

NotApplicable
n) Certification by Practicing Company Secretary

Mr. Manish Kumar - Practicing Company Secretary has issued a certificate under the Listing Regulations, confirming
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority. The certificate is enclosed with this section.

o) Acceptance of recommendations made by the Committees
During the financial year 2022-23, the Board has accepted all the recommendations of its Committees.
p) Total Fees paid to Statutory Auditors

The details of total fees paid by the Company to the statutory auditors are as under:-

{Amount in Rs.)
Partlculars As at 31* March, 2023 | As at 31* March, 2022
As Statutory Auditor 10,60,000 10,60,000
For Taxation matters 2,50,000 2,50,000
Reimbursement of Expenses - -
For Other Matters 170,000 214,300
Total 14,80,000 15,24,300
g) Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act,2013

number of complaints filed during the financial year 2022-23 0
number of complaints disposed of during the financlal year 2022-23 0
number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year 0

r)  Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed

For your company, our people are our strongest asset. The Company invests in building best-in-class teams, led by
exceptional professionals. Over the years, the Company has nurtured ameritocratic, empowering and caring culture
that encourages excellence. Your Company encourages the development of talent by providing its people with
opportunities to sharpen their capabilities, encouraging innovation, lateral thinking, and developing multiple skills.
Through this approach, your company prepares its people for future leadership roles. During the year under review
total number of permanent employees are 83 as compared to lastyear 98 as 15 employees leftthe organizations.

2/
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g) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

Your Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. Your Company financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2023 are prepared under Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the financial
statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as 'Previous
GAAP') used for its statutory reporting requirementin Indiaimmediately before adopting IndAS.

h)  Details of significant changes in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations

RATIO
SN PARTICULARS 2022-23 | 2021-22 DETAILED REASON
# due to lower average Debtors because of recoveries
1 | Debtors Turnover 645| 433 and settiement of old balances
2 | Inventory Turnover 10.48 15.32 | W impact due to decrease on turnover
3 | Interest Coverage Ratlo 0.36 £.86 A The ratio is positive due to an exceptional income

on account of Commission on professional services
There is no change in cumrent ratio, the current assets
4 | Current Ratlo 0.06 0.06 | and current llablliles vary In same proportion as that of
previous year

The ratio is negative due to erosion of net worth

5 | Debt Equity Ratio -1.37 -1.38 bacause of lo
6 | Operating Profit Margin {%) 839% | -4.82% | A dus to increase in operative profit
. /A due to increase in Comprehensive income, there is
7 | Net Profit Margin (%) 5.32% | -646% | 1arginal improvement in net profit margin
8 | Return on Net Worth (%) NA NA | -

6. Means of Communication
The Company interacts with its shareholders through multiple forms of corporate and financial communication:
a) Financial Results:

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results are submitted to the Stock Exchange(s) in accordance with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Further, the Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Resdults in the
prescribed format were generally published in English Newspaper Financial Express and regional language newspaper (Hindi)
in Jansatta. The same were sent to Stock Exchanges and were also displayed on the website of the Company,
www.kohinoorfoods.in.

b) Website:

The Company's website www.kohinoorfoods.in contains a separate dedicated section 'Investor where shareholders information
is available. The Company's Annual Report and all other relevant information are also available in a user-friendly and
downloadable form.

c) Annual Report

The Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Financial Statement, Consolidated Financial Statements, Directors' Report
with relevant annexure, Auditors' Report and other important information is circulated to members and others entitlied thereto.
TheAnnualReportis displayed on the Company's website (www.kohinoorfoods.in).
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NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS):

The NEAPS is a web-based application designed by NSE for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding
Pattern, Corporate Govemance Report, Results and other requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, media releases, among others are filed electronically on NEAPS, by the Company.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the 'Listing Centre’)

BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like Shareholding
Pattem, Corporate Governance Report, Results, mediareleases, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre
by the Company.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

SEBI has designed a centralized web-based system, www.scores.gov.in wherein the investors can lodge their complaints and
can view the status of their complaints being replied to by the respective Company. In compliance thereof, the Company is
regularly uploading the 'Action taken Report' on the said website in respect of the investors' references received, if any.

Designated Exclusive email-id

The Company has designated the email-id “Investors@kohinorfoods.in” exclusively for investor servicing.

Shareholders Information Annual General Meeting

Date : 29" September, 2023

Time ; 11:30A.M.

Mode ; Through Video conferencing (“VC”)/ OtherAudio Visual

Means (“OAVM”)

Financial Calendar ; 1¥Aprilto 31*March

Date of Book Closure ; 23.09.2023 t0 29.09.2023 (both days inclusive)

Dividend PaymentDate No dividend has been recommended for the financial year 2022-23
CIN L52110HR1989PLC070351

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).

Payment of Listing Fees
The annual listing fee forthe Financial Year 2023-2024 has been paid by the Company to BSE& NSE.

Payment of Depository Fees

There is nooutstanding invoice of Annual Custody / Issuer fees to be paid by the CompanytoNSDL and CDSL.
11. Trading Symbol/ Stock Code

1. National Stock Exchange of IndiaLtd. Mumbai (NSE) : KOHINOOR
2. TheBSELtd., Mumbai (BSE) ;512559
3. ISINNumberfor NSDL& CDSL: INE080B01012
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STOCK MARKET DATA
Monthly High and Low quotations of Shares traded at The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) and BSE Ltd.

NSE B.SE
Month/ Year High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
April 2022 15.55 7.75 16.03 7.77
May 2022 42.30 18.80 43.75 16.8
June 2022 122.90 44.40 127.05 45.9
July 2022 129.00 66.65 133.4 66
August 2022 91.50 73.00 92 72
Septamber 2022 80.40 53.05 81.9 53
October 2022 69.65 54.35 69.9 54.5
November 2022 63.80 49.00 64.35 49.1
December 2022 63.00 50.15 62.65 50.35
January 2023 83.95 51.60 84.05 52.8
February 2023 75.40 51.20 75.4 49.9
March 2023 55.25 31.55 55.44 31.87

The shares of the Company suspended from trading w.e.f. October 21, 2020 due to penal reason. The Company have paid all the dues to
the stock exchanges and applied for revocation of suspension of Trading of Securities of the Company. The Suspension of Trading has
been revoked with effect from 06/04/2022 vide Circular ref. No. 0368/2022 Dated 29/03/2022.

S&P CNX Nifty/Sensex vis-a-vis Kohinoor Foods
Relative Price Movements April 2022 - March 2023 (Base price as on 1% April 2022)

Kohinoor Performance wvis-a-wvis NSE NIFTY
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All the Transfers received are processed and approved by the share transfer committee and sent to the shareholders within a
period of 15 days. The Company obtains from a practicing Company Secretary half yearly certificate of compliance as required
under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 and files the same with Stock Exchanges.

12. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.
D-153-A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-I, New Delhi 110 020
Share Transfer System

13.

Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2023.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31% March, 2023, as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.
Distribution of Shareholding as on 31* March, 2023, as per SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015.

Share Nominal Value {Rs.) Share Holders Total Shares
No. % age Total % of Total
1 5,000 48604 91.98 43998720.00 11.87
5001 10,000 2330 4.41 18649310.00 5.03
10001 20,000 1066 202 16014670.00 432
20001 30,000 312 0.59 7975440.00 215
30001 40,000 133 0.25 4741210.00 1.28
40001 50,000 110 0.21 §196510.00 1.40
50001 1,00,000 165 0.31 12199900.00 3.29
1,00,000 Above 122 0.23 261939540.00 70.66
Total 27019 52842 100.00 370715300.00
Category of Shareholders as on 31* March 2023
Category No. of Shares of Rs. 10 each Percentage (%) of Total
Promoter, Directors and Relatives 13965823 3767
Mutual Funds / UTI 0 0.00
Altemative Investment Funds 0 0.00
Foreign Portfolio Investors 57117 0.15
Financial Institutions/Banks 1420 0.01
Insurance Companies 0 Q.00
Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00
Foreign Companies 7048306 19.01
Domestic Companies/Bodies Corporate 3072837 8.29
Category No. of Shares of Rs. 10 each Percentage (%) of Total
Non-resident Individual 338905 0.91
Others 0 0.00
Individual Shareholders 12055652 32.52
HUF 299176 0.81
Clearing Member/House 120519 033
Trusts 11500 0.03
Firms 100275 0.27
Total 37071530 100.00




@ ANNUAL
KOHINOOR REPORT

FooODS LIMITED 2022-23

Status of Dematerialization/fPhysical form of Shares

The detail of shares dematerialized and those held in physical form, as on 31% March 2023. (As per Shareholding basis)

Particulars of Shares Shares of Rs. 10 each Shareholders
Desmaterialised Form Number % of Total Numbar % of Total
Natiohal Securities Deposltory Ltd. (NSDL) 2,53,50,959 68.38 14,344 27.15
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) 1,13,02,454 30.49 33,480 63.36
Physical Form 4,18,117 1.13 5,018 9.50
Total 3,70,71,530 100.00 52.842 100.00

The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to Rs. 370,715,300/- comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares
of Rs. 10/~ each. Further the Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs or any convertible instruments except as
mentioned the Annual Report.

The paid up Share Capital of the Company is amounting to Rs. 370,715,300/- comprising of 37,071,530 equity shares of Rs. 10/-
each. Further the Company has notissued any GDRs/ADRs orany convertible instruments except as mentioned the Annual Report.

14. CEOand CFO Certification
The JointManaging Directors of the Company give quarterly certification on Financial Results while placing Financial Results
before the Board in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. The Joint Managing Director and CFO of the Company have also
given certificate on CEO and CFO Certification for the year ended 31 March, 2023 and the same is attached with the Annual
Report.

15. Compliance Certificate
The Joint Managing Director of the Company gives quarterly certificate on compliance with various laws and regulations and
other legal requirement of the central, state and other government and local authorities conceming the business and affairs of
the Company.

16. Dematerialisation of Shares
The Shares of the Company are in Compulsory Demat segment and are available for trading in the depository systems of both
the National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). Atthe end of Financial
Year, 2022-2023, the total dematerialized equity shares of the Company is 3,66,53,413 Equity Shares forming 98.87% of the
totallisted share capital of the Company.

17.  Promoters Shareholding
In compliance of the SEBI circular No. CIR/ISD/3/2011 dated June 17, 2011, all the Shares of the Promoters are in
Dematerialization form.

18. Un-Paid Dividend of Shareholders

As per MCA Circular no. G.S.R.352 (E) dated 20" May, 2012 the List of Un-paid dividend, transferred to Investor Education and
Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government and is available on MCA Portal as well as onthe Company's
website www.kohinoorfoods.in/investor.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit,
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (‘IEPF Rules’) read with the relevant circulars and amendments thereto, the amount of
dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF"), constituted by the Central Government. The Company had, already
accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to Final Dividend, to the |[EPF.
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Pursuantto the provisions of Section 205A(5) and 205 C ofthe Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the unpaid or
unclaimed dividends (remaining unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of 7 (Seven) years from the due date), to the Investor Educationand
Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the provisions of Investor Education and Protection
Fund (uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on September 29, 2014, on the website of the
Company (www.kohinoorfoods.in), and also on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Pursuantto the provisions of IEPF Rules, all shares inrespect of which dividend has notbeen paid or claimed for seven consecutive
years shall be transferred by the Company to the designated Demat Account of the IEPF Authority (*IEPF Account”) within a period
ofthirty days of such shares becoming due to be transferred to the IEPF Account.

Green Initiatives

The Company had started a sustain ability initiative with the aim of going green and minimizing our impact on the environment.
Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering/updating their e-mail address, in respect of shares held in
dematerialized form with their respective Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with Skyline
Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

Pursuant to Section 101 and 136 of the Act read with Companies(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014,
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and circulars issued by Ministry of corporate Affairs in view of continuing COVID-19 pandemic,
the Company can send Notice of Annual General Meeting, financial statements and other communication in electronic forms. Your
Company is sending the Annual Report including the Notice of Annual General Meeting, audited financial statements(both
standalone and consolidated), Directors Report along with their annexures etc. for the Financial Year 2022-23 in the electronic
mode to the shareholders who have registered their email ids with the Company and/or their respective Depository Participants
(Dps).

The Annual Report containing audited financial statements(both standalone and consolidated), Directors Report along with their
annexures etc. and other important information for the Financial Year 2022-23 is available in downloadable form on company's
website atwww.kohinoorfoods.in.

Plant Locations

-50-51 Milestone, G.T. Karnal Road, Murthal, Dist. Sonepat (Haryana)-131027
-42-43 Miilestone, G. T.Karnal Road, Village Sultanpur, Bahalgarh, Sonepat, Haryana-131021
Address for Correspondence

Shareholders Correspondence may be addressed to:

M/s. Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.

D-153-A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-I,New Delhi 110020

Or

The Company Secretary

Kohinoor Foods Limited

Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,

Shooting Range Road, Surajkund,

Faridabad, Haryana- 121001

However, shareholders holding shares in de-mat mode should address their correspondence relating to their holdings to the
respective Depository participants.

O
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Declaration -Compliance with the Code of Conduct

Inaccordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, |, Satnam Arora
and Gurnam Arora, Jt. Managing Directors of the Company, hereby declare that the Board Members and the Senior Management
Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conductofthe Company for the yearended 31% March 2023.

FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Date :14th August, 2023 SatnamArora GurnamArora
Place: Faridabad Jt. Managing Director Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 00010667 DIN: 00010731
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AUDITORS" CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Member,
Kohinoor Foods Limited,

We have examined the compllance of conditlons of Corporate Governance by the Kohinoor Foods Ltd. (the Company) for the year
ended 31st March, 2023 as per regulations 17 to 27, clause (b} to {i) of sub-regulations 2 of Regulations 46 and paragraph C, D and
E of Scheduls V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate
governance. It Is nelther an audlt nor an exprassion of oplnlon on the financlal statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information, based on the records, documents, books, and cother information furmished and
according to the explanations glven to us, we certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Govemnance as
per regulations 17 to 27, clause (b} fo (i) of sub-regulations 2 of Regulations 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as applicable.

Woe further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N C Ra] and Assoclates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002248N

Sdi-

Sanjay Garg

Partner

Membership No. 088836

UDIN: 23088636BGUBFE5439
Place: New Delhl

Data: 14/08/2023

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3)} and Schedule V Para C clause {10) (i} of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015}
To,
The Members of
Kohinoor Foods Limited

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, retums and disclosures recelved from the Directors of Kohinoor Foods
Limited (CIN L52110HR1989PLC070351) having registered office at Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor, Surajkund, Shooting Range
Faridabad Haryana — 121 001 (India), (hereinafler referred o as ‘the Company’), produced before us by tha Company for the purpose
of Issuing this Certificate, In accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(1} of the Securltles Exchange
Board of India {Listing Obligaticns and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinlon and to the best of our Information and according to the verlfications {Including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in} as considerad necessary and explanations funished to us by the Company & its directors /
cofficers, we hereby certify that none of the Directers on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on
31st March 2023 have been debarred or disquallfled from belng appointed or continuing as Directors of companles by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs and any such other statutory authority.

Ensuring the eliglblity for the appointment / continulty of every Director on the Board |s the responsiblity of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as o
the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES

Company Secretaries

(UCN.S2017DE554100)

Place: Nolda, Uttar Pradesh, Indla Sd/-
Date: 11/08/2023 {CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary in Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: FO-10248E000789191

o
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015 for the financial year ended 31% March 2023

The Board of Directors,
Kohinoor Foods Limited

Dear Members of the Board,

As stipulated in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We, Satnam
Arora, Jt. Managing Director and Chashu Arora, Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year 2022-23 and that to
the best of our knowledge and belief:

1} these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the year that are fraudulent, illegal or voilative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such intemal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
There have been no significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during this year.

There have been no significant changes in the accounting policies this year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

There have been no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s intemal
control systems over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place : Faridabad Satnam Arora Chashu Arora
Date : 14/08/2023 Jt. Managing Director (CFO)

o
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°T March, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies {Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

Tao,

The Members,

Kohlnoor Foods Limited

Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Road, Surajkund
Faridabad — 121001

Haryana

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of M/s Kohinoor Foods Limited to conduct the Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year ended on 31# March, 2023.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Kohinoor Foods Limited (hereinafter called “the Company™.
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reascnable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Kohincor Foods Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
318t March, 2023 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place, to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, foms and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s Kehinoor Foods Limited for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2023 according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii} The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i} The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings;

{v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act') : -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiton of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(¢} The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

{(d) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme} Guidelines, 1999 - Not Applicable as the Company
has not granted any options to its smployess during the financial year under raview.

{(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 - Not Applicable as the Company has not Issued any debt securlty
during the financial year under raview.

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client - Not
Applicable as the Company is not ragistered as Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agent during the flnanclal year under review.
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(g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
- Not Applicable as the Company has not delisted Its equity shares from any stock
exchange during the financlal year under review.

{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998- Not
Applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the
financial year under review.

(vi)  Other laws as specifically applicable to the Company based on its sectorfindustry,

(a} The Food Safety and Standards Act including packaging and Labelling Laws.
(b} Prevention of Food Adulteration Act, 1954.
{c} Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and rules and regulations made thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to Board and General Meetings.

(b} The applicable provisions of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

(c) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

{a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

{b) Adequate notice of atleast seven days is normally given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent normally three days in advance.
However, in some cases shorter notice/agenda of the Board Meeting has been sent to Directors.
Consent, if obtained from the Directors were not available for our inspection.

{c) Maijority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
(UCN.S2017DE554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India Sd/-
Date: 11/08/2023 (CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary In Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: F010248E000790621

This report is to be read alongwith our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Annexure A

The Members

Kohinoor Foods Limited

Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor
Shooting Range Range, Surajkund
Faridabad — 121001, Haryana

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit praclices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that corect facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed, provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulaticns and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MANK & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
(UCN.52017DE554100)
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India Sd/-
Date: 11/08/2023 {CS Manish Kumar)

Company Secretary In Practice
FCS No: 10248; CP No: 19684
PR: 1257/2021

ICSI-UDIN: F010248E000790621
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ANNEXURE - 'B' TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information as per Section 134(3}m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companias (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and forming Part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31% March, 2023.

A. Conservation of Energy

Improvement of methods of Energy Conservation and optimal utilization of Energy in all operations, continued to
receive close attention. Company is always conscious to conserve energy through improved methods of operations
and design. In this regard the Company has introduced energy saving features in the systems and monitors by which
the user saves the power consumptlon to a conslderable extent. The company's efforls towards energy conservation
resulted in optimum consumption of power and fuel and the expenses for the current year stood to Rs. 257.51 Lakh.

B. Research & Development (R & D)
iy SpecHic areas In which R&D carrled out by the Company and beneflts derlived as a result of R&D

Research & Development has always been a focus area at Kohinoor Foods Lid. during the year the Company has
put special efforts in research and development. As the company had also started production in its new food factory
at Sonepat, which has state of art R & D facility The R&D team of the Company has worked on a number of areas,
more specifically in the areas of frozen foods. This has resulted in the Company to launch new range product variants
in both Ready to Eat & Ready to Cook segments. We axpect to notch up good numbers in the next financial year
through some exciting product launches and expanding & streamlining the distribution network. The company is also
perusing R & D activities in the RTE Segment. During the year, The R & D expenditure, for the current year stood
to Rs. 8.74 lakhs.

ii} Future plan of action
Steps are continuously being taken to promote the branded sales in overseas market. The company is exciting
product launches and expanding & streamlining the distribution network in domestic as well as in Intemational
Market. The Company is continuously making efforts to provide best of quality products to its customers.

iiiy Expenditure on R&D

a) Capital : Nil
b} Recurring : Rs. 8,73,828/-
] Total : Rs. 8,73,828/-

Total R&D expenditure is 0.10% of Tumover.

C. Tachnology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation

Tachnology Absorption, Adaptation and Innovation had always been the key strength of the Company. The Company
plans to be a leading player in technology intreduction through innovative products.

D. Foralgn Exchange Eamings and Outgo
a} Total Foreign Exchange earned and used.

Foreign Exchange Eamings of the Company amounted 6634.88 Lakh as against Foreign Exchange Outgo of Rs.
45.96 Lacs during the year under review.

b) Activities related to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets for products.

Due to liquidity problem and banking restrictions, the exports were badly affected, during the year. However, the
Company has strong Global Network and expect the exports to revive soon.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/- Sd/-
Date : 14t August 2023 Satnam Arora Gurnam Arora
Place : Farldabad Jt. Managing Director Jt. Managing Director
DIN: 000106867 DIN: 00010731

45/
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ANNEXURE C

Form No. MGT9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31¢t March, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i} CIN L52110HR1989PLCO70351

ii) Registration Date 26" July, 1989

i) Name of the Company Kohinoor Foods Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public (Listed) Company

v) Address of the Registered/Corporate office and contact | Pinnacle Business Tower, 10th Floor,

details: Shooting Range Road, Surajkund, Faridabad, Haryana-
121001

Phone; +81-129-424-2222,
Fax;+31-129-424-2233
Email: info@kohinoorfoods.in
Website: www.kohinoorfoods.in

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No YES
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and | M/s Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd.,
Transfer Agent, if any Ofi: D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-l,

New Delhi-110020,
Ph. No. 011- 40450193 to 97

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities are under single segment and not contributing 10 % or more of the fotal tumover of the
company:-

Name and Description of maln
SN products / services NIC Code of the Product/ service | % to total turnover of the company
1 Rice and Food 1061 & 1075 75.31% & 24.69%

lil. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Holding/ % of
SN Name and Address of the Company CIN'GLN Subsidiary/ | shares
Associate held

Applicable
Saction

Kohinoor Foods USA INC,

40, Northfield Avenue Edison, NJ 08837 NA SUBSIDIARY | 100%

Sachdeva Brothers Pvt. Ltd.
2 | 201, Vipps Centre, Masjid Moth, Greater U15311DL1986PTC222606 | SUBSIDIARY | 100%
Kailash-ll, New Delhi-110 048

Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC

Post Box No. 15542, Al Quoz Industrial
Area, 3 Interchange, Sh Zayed Road,
Dubai, U.A.E.

NA ASSOCIATE 25%




@ ANNUAL
KOHINOOR REPORT

FooODS LIMITED 2022-23

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
iy Category-wise Share Holding

No. of Shares """;3:" beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year %
Catogory of Sharehokiers % of % of cll;:rrllenl:u
Demat Physlcal Total Total Damat Physlcal Total Total Year

_ Shares Share
A. Promoter
{1} Indlan
a} Individualf HUF 20121140 0] 20121140 54,28 | 13861723 0| 13881723 3r.29 -16.89
b} Central Govt 0 0 0 o o 1] 1] 1] 0
c) State Govi(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0
&) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 4] 4] 0 /]
f} Any Othar.... 104100 0 104100 0.28 104100 0 104100 0.28 0
Sub-total (A) (1):- 20225240 20225240 54.56 | 13065823 0| 13065823 37.87 -16.89
{2) Forelgn
a) NRIs — Individuals 0 0 0 1] 1] 0 0 0 0
b} Other — Indhiduals 0 o 0 1] 1] 0 0 0 o
c) Bodies Gorp. 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0 0 1]
d) Banks / FI 0 Q 0 0 0 o o o 0
e) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-Total (A) (2} :-Total
shareholding of Promoter (A) = 20225240 0| 20225240 | 5456 | 13965823 0| 13965823 | 37.87 -16.89
(A1)HAY 2)
B. Public Shars holding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 o 0 1] 1] 4] 4] 0 0
b} Banks /FI 1420 0 1420 1] 1420 0 1420 0 0
¢} Central Govt o 0 0 Q Q 0 0 o 0
d) State Govi{g) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8} Venture Capital Funds 0 (] ] 0 0 0 0 0 ]
f} Insurance Companles 117081 o 117081 0.32 1] 0 0 0 0.32
g) Flis 0 o 0 1] 1] 4] 4] 0 0
h) Foreign Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i} Others (FPI Cat-l) 10000 0 10000 0.03 57117 0 57117 .15 0012
Sub-total {B){1):- 128501 0 128501 0.35 5A537 /] 58537 0.18 .19
2 Non Institutions
) Bodios Corp.
1} Indlan 322022 34376 356398 0.96 | 3038481 34376 3072837 8.29 7.33
i) Oversoas 0 0 0 o o 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 4] 0 0 0 1] 1] 1]
{I} Individual sharsholders holding
Ir:mllnal share capital upto Rs. 1 7510574 390356 7800930 213 | 10485870 383741 | 10869611 2932 a.02

o
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{ii}individual shareholders holding
nominal share capital in excess of 751274 0 751274 203 | 1186041 o 1186041 320 147
Rs 1 lakh
¢) Other speciy
N.R.|.{Rept & Non-Rept) 259158 259158 0.70 338905 338905 0.91 0.21
Public Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Corporate Bodies- OCB 7048306 7048308 | 19.01 | 7048308 7048308 | 19.01 0
Intermediary/Other Depostory Alc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Hincu Wndividad Family 379883 0 279883 1.03 299178 0 299176 0.81 022
Clearing Membera/House 1500 1500 0 120519 120518 0.33 0.33
Qualified Foreign Investor- Individual 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0
Qualified Foreign Investor-
Comorats g 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NBFC's Registered with RBI 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0
Trust 35 0 35 0 11500 0 11500 0.03 0.03
Firms 20305 0 20305 0.08 100275 0 100275 0.27 021
Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)2):- 16293057 | 424732 | 16717788 | 4509 | 22620053 | 418117 | 23047170 | 6217 17.08
go:n:;ﬂli:g(BHﬂ)ﬁH B2 16421558 | 424732 | 16846290 | 4544 | 22687590 | 418117 | 23108707 | 6233 16.89
Shares held by Custodian for GDRs
3t held by 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total (A+B+G) 36646798 | 424732 | 37071530 100 | 36653413 | 418117 | 37071530 100 0.00
(if) Shareholding of Promotars
Shareholding at the beginning of
the year Shareholding at the and of the year
o of %of %
Shares change
SN | Sharsholder's Name % of total | Shares %oftotal | g o lim
No. of Shares of | Pledged /| No. of Sharas of encumbe | sharehol
Shares the encumber | Shares the red to din
company | ed to total company | e dur?n g
shares shares tha year
1 | Gumam Arora 6708889 18.1 - 6289204 16.97 - -1.87
2 | Jugal Kishora Arora 6653484 17.95 - 1053484 2.84 - -15.11
3 | Satnam Arora 5988923 16.16 - 5749191 15.51 4 -0.65
4 | Rani Arora 746009 2.01 - 746008 2.01 - 0
5 | Nitin Arora 21000 0.06 - 21000 0.06 - 0
6 | Madhu Arora 1869 0 - 1869 0 - 0
7 | Meena Rani Arora 966 0 - 966 0 - 0
8 | Satnam Haegens Ltd. 104100 0.28 - 104100 0.28 - 0
Total | 20225240 54.56 - 13965823 37.67 - -17.63
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() Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) —

Sl Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding during
No. beginning of the year the year
No.of | % of total shares No. of % of total shares the
Gumam Arora shares | of the Company | shares Company
At the beginning of the year 6708889 18.1 6708889 181
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
1 | Promoters Shareholding during the year -419685 113 -419685 -1.13
specifying the reasons for increase /
decreass (e.g. allotment / transfer / Sale - Sale -
bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year 6289204 16.97 6269204 16.97
No.of | % oftotal shares | No. of % of total shares the
Satnam Arora shares of the company | shares company
At the beginning of the year 5088923 16.16 5088023 16.16
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
2 Promoters Shareholding during the year -230732 0.65 239732 085
specifying the reasons for increase /
decreass (e.g. allotment / transfer / Sale - Sale -
bonus/ sweat equity etc}:
At the End of the year 5749191 15.51 5749191 15.51
No.of | %oftotal shares | No. of % of total shares the
Jugal Kishore Arora shares of the company | shares company
At the beginning of the year 6653484 17.95 6653484 17.95
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
3 Promoters Shareholding during the year | -5600000 -15.11 -5600000 -15.11
specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity Sale - Sale -
etc):
At the End of the year 1053484 2.84 1053484 2.84
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{ii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {cther than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
Sharsholding Cumulative
No. of No. of
S. Shares at | % of total Increase/ Shares | % of total
No. Name the shares of Date Decrease in | Reason during | shares of
beginning the Shareholding the year the
(01-04- | Company (31-03- | company
2021) 2022)
Al Dahra Intematicnal
1 | vestments LLC 7048306 | 19.01 - - - 7048306 | 19.01
Waybroad Trading
2 | Private Limited 0 0 17022023 | 1772000 | Purchase | 1772000 | 478
27.01.2023 100000 Purchase
3 ggv“’a[;:*uTn‘j'ited"""'" 0 0  [10022023] 247000 | Purchase | 345432 | 093
31.03.2023 1568 Purchase
14.10.2022 700000 Purchase
21.10.2022 26184 Sale
04.11.2022 63159 Purchase
11.11.2022| -158178 Sale
18.12.2022 1797 Sale
25.11.2022 20435 Purchase
02.12.2022 332 Sale
00.12.2022 11077 Purchase
. o 16.12.2022 29475 Sale
4 | Shivam Vijay Jaiswal 4] 0 20.01.2023 21188 Sale 316919 0.85
27.01.2023 4733 Sale
03.02.2023 354 Sale
17.02.2023 | -130966 Sale
24.02.2023 283 Sale
30.03.2023 92246 Sale
10.03.2023 -15518 Sale
24.03.2023 8500 Purchase
31.03.2023 15000 Purchase
Geianan Real 20.01.2023 122420 Purchase
5 Pﬁffa',::'l‘_imitaedm" 0 0 27.01.2023 77580 Purchase | 106000 0.29
10.02.2023 -94000 Sale
Gulshan Investment
6 | Company Ltd 0 0 27.01.2023 80000 Purchase | B000D 0.22
27.01.2023 12000 Purchase
7 | Kunal Patel 0 0 03.02.2023 59988 Purchase | 7ggas 0.21
10.02.2023 5000 Purchase
8 :_ft';"a' Finstock Pvt 0 0 |27.012023| 75000 | Purchase | 75000 | 0.20
03.02.2023 34870 Purchase
9 | Sameer Kudsia 0 0 03.03.2023 18305 Purchase | 72595 0.20
10.03.2023 19420 Purchase
10 | Kanchan Goel 0 0 17.02.2023 70000 Purchase | 70000 0.18

*The increase in percentage of Share is due to purchase of shares from open market.
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(i} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding Cumulative
SN Name
No. of
Shares at Increase/
the Date Decrease in | Reason % of
beginning % of total Shareholding total
shares of No. of
(01-04-22) the Shares shares
Directors fend of Com of the
the year pany company
(31-03-
2023)
; Jugal Kishore Arora 6653484 17.95 | 01.04.2022 - - 6653484 | 17.95
(Chairmany) 1053484 201 | 31032023 | (-15.11%) Sale | 1053484 | 2.01
5988923 1616 | 01.04.2022 - - 5988923 [ 16.16
2 | Satnam Arora (Jt. M.D}
5749191 16.51 31.03.2023 (-65%) Sale | 5749191 | 1561
6708889 18.1 01.04.2022 - - 6708889 18.1
3 | Gumam Arora (Jt. M.D)
6289204 16.97 | 31.03.2023 {-1.13%) Sale | 6289204 | 16.97
Sunil Sharma (Non- . . 01.04.2022 - - - -
4 | Executive &
Independent Director) - - 31.03.2023 - - - -
Yash Pal Mahajan - - 01.04.2022 - - - -
5 | (NonExecutive &
Independent Direclor) - - 31.03.2023 - - - -
Mani Chandra Bhandari - - 01.04.2022 - - _ -
6 | (Non-Executive &
Independent Director) - - 31.03.2023 - - - -
Key Managerial Personnel
Chashu Arora (CFO) - - 01.04.2022 - - - -
{(Appointed w.e.f.,
30/03/2022) - - 31.03.2023 - - - -
Deepak Kaushal {CS & - - 01.04.2022 . - - -
Compliance Officer)
{(Appointed w.e.f.,, - - 31.03.2023 - - - -
14/08/2019)
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Indebtedness of the Company Including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

In debtedn_ess at the beginning of f::ll:lr(;: ] deposlisLoans Il-l:as::ured Deposits | Total Indebtedness
the financial year

i) Principal Amount 6,43,34,51,663 66,67,98,463 - 7,10,02,50,126
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii} Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total () 6,43,34,51,663 66,67,98,463 - 7,10,02,50,126
Change in Indebtedness during

the financlal year

- Addition - - - -
- Reduction - 39,31,551 -2,630,4,969 - - 3,02,36,520
Net Change -39,31,551 -2,630,4,969 - - 3,02,36,520
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 6,42,95,20,112 64,04,93,494 - 7,07,00,13,606
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iiiy Interest accrued but not due* - - - -
Total (1+11+11I) 6,42,95,20,112 64,04,93,494 - 7,07,00,13,606

* The company has not provided inferest fo the extent of Rs. 115,67,66,576/~ for current year { Rs. 105,88,34,888/ -
for previous year) and Rs.456,46,57,360/ up fo 31-03-2022 {previous year Rs. 340,78,90,784/-) on bank loans
which were classified as non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NFA. Moreover, the
company has not provided interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 6,61,07,943/ for the period upio 31-
03-2023 on account of revoked corporale guarantee KFL USA subsidiary.
** The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hong Kong {now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by
PNB Hong Kong {now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA inc. PNB Hong Kong (now PNB-
Dubai) has invoked the corporafe guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has
recognized the loss of Rs. 39,28,12,456/- (previous year Rs. 36,30,93,484/- on account of this liability..
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MDWTD/ Manager Total Amount

Mr. Jugal Mr. Satnam | Mr. Gumam
Kishore Arora | Arora Arora

1 | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

{c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option - - - -
3 | Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commisslon - as % of proflt - others,
speclfy...

§ | Others, please speclfy - - - -

Total (A) - - - -
Celling as per the Act

- The Executive Directors have forgene their remuneration for the months from April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023.

B. Ramuneration to other directors:

Name of Directors Total Amount
Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Sunll Mr.Yash Pal | Mrs. Manl Chandra
Sharma Mahajan Bhandari
1. Independent Directors
e for a:g:;:'“’ board /| 455000 75,000 125,000 325,000
- Commilssion - - - -
- Others, please speclfy - - - -
Total (1) 125,000 75,000 125,000 325,000
2. Other Non-Executive Directors - - - -
Fee for attending board / ) _ _ )
commlitee meetings
- Commisslon - - - -
- Others, please speclfy - - - -
Total (2) - - - -
Total (B)={1+2) 125,000 75,000 125,000 325,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 125,000 75,000 125,000 325,000
Overall Celling as per the Act

53
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C. Remuneration to key Managerial Parsonnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Key Managerial Personnal

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration

Company
CEO Secretary CFO Total

1 | Gross salary

Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the i
(a) Income-tax Act, 1961 10,90,530 | 20,19,839 31,10,669
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -
Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act,

© | 1061 o : :
2 Stock Option - - - .
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - as % of profit others, specify... - - - -
5 Others, please specify . - - .

Total | - | 10,90,530 | 20,19,839 31,10,669

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There are no penalties/ punishment/ compounding of offence against Kohinoor Foods Limited and its Director and
officers for the year ended 31%t March, 2023.



KOHINOOR REPORT

ANNUAL

FooODS LIMITED

2022-23

ANNEXURE-D

Disclosers as required under sectlon 197(12) of the Companles Act 2013 read with Rule 5{(1) of the Companles
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerlal Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Ratio of remuneration of each director of the median remuneration of employees of the Company and the
Percentage increase in remuneration of Directors & KMPs in the Financial Year:

Ratlo of remuneration of each | Percentage Increase In
SN | Name of Director/KMP | Designation director to median remuneration during FY
remuneration of Employess 2022-23
1 | Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora | Chairman - 0.00%
2 | Mr. Satnam Arora Jt. Managing Director - 0.00%
3 | Mr. Gumam Arcra Jt. Managing Director - 0.00%
4 | Mr. Chashu Arora Chief Financial Officer 6.69 0.00%
5 | Mr. Deepak Kaushal Company Secretary 3.61 0.00%
3) | Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employess in the financial year. -0.89%
4) | Number of permanent employee on the roll of Company as at March 31, 2023 83
. . . . ; . There was no increase in
5) gﬂa::h(gne r?on m:::oemla’uonshlp between average increase in remuneration and employee's rormmeiation
pany ’ during the year.
(Rs. In Million)
Total Turmover 852.42
Comparison of remuneration of Key -
6) | managerial Remuneration against the | Total Remuneration to KMP 31
performance of the company Total Remuneration of KMP as % to total 0.38%
revenue '
Market capitalization
Increased from Rs. 27.43
7}i | Variation in market capitalization of the company as at March 31, 2023 millicn as on 31st March 2022
to Rs. 118.14 miillion as on 31st
March 2023
ii | Price earning ratio of the Company N/A
Percentage increase over/decrease in the market quotation of the shares of the
iii | company as compared fo the rate at which the company come out with the last Public N/A
offer in the year
. . . There was no increase in
average pe@ntlle increase already madp in the salz_anes of the_z emplpyee other thgn managerial remuneration and
8 | e managenal personne_l inthe Iastﬁn_anclal year gnd |!s comparison wﬂh_the per_'centlle in the salaries of empl
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification therecf and point out if there other than the man a: 5:;;'
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in managerial remuneration personnel 9
8) Comparison of each remuneration of Key Managerlal Remuneration agalnst the performance of the

Company
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10)
Remuneration as % of
Remuneration in FY 2022-23 revenue median
SN | Name of KMPs (Rs. in Million) romunoration of
Employees
1 | Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora 0 0.00%
2 | Mr. Satnam Arora 0 0.00%
3 | Mr. Gumam Arora 0 0.00%
4 | Mr. Chashu Arora 2.02 0.24%
5 | Mr. Deepak Kaushal 1.09 0.13%
10) | The Key parameter of any variable component of remuneration availed by the Directors Not applicable
1) Ratio of remuneration of highest paid director to that of the employee who are not director Not anplicable
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year. PP
It is hereby affirmed that
the remuneration paid is
12) | Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy. as per the Remuneration
Policy for Director, KMP
and other employees.
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Independsnt Auditors’' Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF KOHINOOR FOODS LIMITED

Qualified Opinion.

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial staternents of Kohinoor Foods Limited {"the Company™), which
comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31%, 2023, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and the standalone Statement of Changes in equity
for the year anded, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects/possible effects of the matters described in paragraph under 'Basis for Qualified Opinion', the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial position
of the Company as at March 31%, 2023, and its standalone profitfloss including other comprehensive income, its standalone
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified opinion

1. In referenca to Nota No. 40 in the statement discloses the management’s assessment of the company's ability to
continue as going concemn. The management's assassment of going concem is based on the OTS by the lead bank
PNB and the Interest shown by prospective Investors In the company. However, In view of default In re-payment of
borrowings, continuous losses, negative cash flows and negative net worth and due to financial constraints, material
uncertainty exists about the company's ability to continue as going concemn and the decision of the management of the
company to prepare the accounts of the company on going concemn basis. There may arise a need to adjust the
raalizable value of assets and liabilities in the event of failure of assumption as to going concem. Further, the company
has paid Rs 1500 lakhs as interest on OTS delay, which is broken as Rs 101 lakhs for period pertains to March, 2022
and Rs 1399 |akhs for the period from April 2022 to Decemnber, 2022. Also, company has made provision of Interest for
last quarter for Rs 359 lakhs on OTS amount.

2. As stated in Note No. 27 of Standalone Audited Financial Results, Loss of the company is understated by Rs.11,568
lakhs {approx.) dus fo nen-provisioning of interest on bank lpans for the period from 01/04/2022 to 31/03/2023 and
Rs.45,647 lakhs (approx.) from the date on which the account of the company was classifled as NPA to the perlod
covered under audit, due to non-provisioning of interest on bank loans after the accounts of the company were classified
as NPA. Also, towards revoked corporate guarantee of the wholly owned subsidiary in USA, the company has not
provided interest to the extent of Rs 247 lacs for the year ended 31.03.2023 and Rs. 661 lacs up to 31.03.2023 from
the date of revocation of corporate guarantee in the books of account. Further no provision has been made towards
penal interest, any other penalty etc. as may be charged by lenders. In the absence of complete statement of account
from the bank, the above amount has been arrived as per calculation made by the company. With the limited information
the aggregate amount un-provided in books of account of the company is not ascertainable with accuracy.

Emphasls of Matters
Wa draw your attention to the following matters In the Notas to the financlal statements:

(1) The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Income Tax, Vat etc.) as
the matters are pending before varicus appellate forums. We are unable to comment upon possible impact of non-
provision in the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31% March 2023.

(2) We draw attention to Note No. 16 of the statement of the company, The Secured Creditors of the Company have filed
petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, before the Hon'ble court of NCLT, Chandigarh
Bench, which are not yet admitted. The Next Date of Hearing has been scheduled for 25th July 2023. The company
has filed an appeal bafore Hen'ble High Court, Punjab & Haryana for stay. The Hon'ble High Court has granted stay ill
12 July 2023. The next date of hearing is 12 July 2023.

(3) With reference to Note no. 16 against amount payable to Bank, management has raised certain disputes towards
overcharging of Interest. As on date company has paid INR 40.09 crores to banks in the no-lien account, the said
amount has been netted off in the total outstanding of Loan repayable on Demand from Banks.

(4) In reference to Note No.46, balances of some debtors and creditors are subject to their confirmations.

{5) In reference to Note No. 29(b) during the period company has taken the Net impact of Creditors/Debtors balance written
off amounting to INR 48.25 Lacs.
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(6) In reference to Note No. 37D, The Company's vendoer has filed an execution pefition before Faridabad District & Session
Judge. The company Is contesting the matter. The next date of hearing Is 10 July 2023. The company has also
approached Hon'ble High Gourt Shimla for stay on above matter. The Hon'ble High Court has admitted our application.
The next date of hearing is yet to be updated by the registrar.

(7) Note no. 16(d) of the financial result stating that the company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020
from Debt Recovery Tribunal-ll, Delhl restraining the company from transferring/ allenating or otherwise dealing with,
or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-party interest with respect of the hypothecated assetsfimmovable
properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and has filed its reply before DRT-,
Delhi. The next date of hearing is 18 Aug 2023. Further the financial result stating that the Lead Bank has filed patition
before DRT-lIl, New Delhi under section 19(4) of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter. The next date of
hearing Is yet to be updated. The company has filed an appeal agalnst the honourable DRT-lII, Delhl PO order before
honourable DRAT-I, Delhi. The honourable DRAT-I, Delhi accepted the petition of the company, and granted relief as
per the petition on its hearing and accordingly the petition was disposed-off.

(8) In referance to Note no. 28 read with Note no. 40 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management's assessment
of Impalrment of assets due to COVID 19 pandemic sHuations. As per the assessment of the management, the
recoverable amount of assets is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assets needs to be recorded
in the financial statements.

(9) In referenca to Note no. 16(c) to tha standalone financial statement the Banks hava classified the company's accounts
as non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13(2) & 13{4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction
of Financial Assets and Enforeement of Security Interest Act, 2002,

(10} In reference to Note no. 48 to the standalene financial statement provident fund amounting Rs 0.30 lacs could not
deposited due to technical reasens. The amount along with interest will be deposited.

(11} In reference to Note no. 49 to the financial statement, Company’s Rice manufacturing unit is not running up fo its full
capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.

(12} In referance to Note no. 47 cormesponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearanged, wheraver
necessary to corfim to current year classification.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Kay Audit Matters.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
staternents of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we de not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition, the
matters described in the “basis for qualifiad opinion” and “emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their nature are key audit
matters.

Responsibllity of Management’s and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financlal postion, financlal parformance Including other comprahansive Income, cash flows and changes In equity of the
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accapted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accerdance with the
pravisicns of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irragularitles; selection and application of appropriate Implementation and maintenance of accounting policles; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a frue and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statement, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concem, disclosing, as application, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the company or to ceasa operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Thus, board of directors are also responsible for oversesing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Report on othar Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

d)

8)

g)

h)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section {11} of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act; we report that;

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necassary for the purposes of our audit; except as stated in para under the head "Basis for Qualified Opinion".

Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion" paragraph abeove, in
our spinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

The standalons financial statement dealt within the report are in agreement with the books of account and retum;

Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion™ paragraph, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules;

The matters described In the "Basls for Quallfled Opinlon® paragraph above, In our oplnion, may have an adverse effect
on the functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
nons of the director’s is disqualified as on March 31%, 2023, from being appointed as a diractor in terms of Saction
164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectivenass of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and

With respect to the other matters to be Included In the Audlior's Report In accordance with Rule 11of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of panding litigations on its financial positien in its financial statements.
Refer Note 37 to the financial statements;

Except as matter described under "basis for qualified opinion™ and “Emphasis of matter” paragraph, the company
has made provigicn, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 30, 35, 36 and 42 to the financial statements;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

Place: Delhl For M/s N.C. Ra] & Assoclatas
Date: 29-05-2023 Charterad Accountants
UDIN: 23088636BGUBEG3148 Firm Reg. No. 002249N

Sdi-
(CA. Sanjay Garg)
Partner

M.No. 088636
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Annexure-A to the Auditor's report (Referred to In our report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the company on the standalone financial
statement for the year ended 31* March, 2023, we report that:

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B} The GCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Properly, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets at
regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

{d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and
intangible assets during the year.

{(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1908 (as amended in 2016} and rules
made thereunder.

{a) The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in  aggregate, at any points of
fime during the year, from banks or financlal Institutions on the basls of security of current assets and hence reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans
or advances In the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companles, firms, Limited Liablity Partnerships or any
other parties and hence, clause (jii) of the Onder is not applicable.

iv. The company has not given any loan, made any investment and provided any sacurity to the parties coverad under
soctlon 185 and 186 of the companles Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {Iv} of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

V. According to Information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of records, we
understand that the company has received advance from customer for supply of goods which has been
ouistanding for more than three hundred and sixiy-five days and fall under the definition of deposi u/s 73
fo 76 read with rule framed thereunder. However, the company has not complied with regulation u/s 73 to 76
and rule framed thereunder.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the cost records specified by the central Government
under sub section (1) of section 148 of the companies Act have been made and mainiained by the company.
However, we have not made the detalled examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

vil. In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company Is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
employees sitate insurance, income-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), State
Insurance, VAT, PF. ESI, Cusfoms Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues fo the appropriate
atithority. However, the arrears of the outstanding statutory dues as on the fast day of the financlal year are
due for a period of less than six months from the date, they become payable except Provident fund which
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Is ouistanding as on the last day of the financial year for more than Sbe months from the date, they become
payable and amounts to Rs. 0.30 Jacs.

(b} Actording to the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income  Tax, Sales Tax, VAT,
Customs, Excise which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer to Note
no. 37 of financial statement.

vili. As per the explanations and information given to us there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

IX.
a) On the basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we are of the
opinicn that the company has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to bank and financial institutions.
As per the below details:
ﬁ;.. Name of Bank Total dafalll.lata la:ll;:t):unt*(ﬂs In Maxlmt;:nw d;lay {In
1 Indian Bank {Allahabad Bank) 14,934.65 1823
2 Bank of India 7.216.66 1824
3 ICICI Bank Limitad 5,928.79 1732
4 IDBI Bank Limited 4,502.50 1804
5 Punjab National Bank 28,840.31 1828
8 State Bank of India 2,965.58 1825
7 Punjab National Bank — Corporate Guarantee 3,928.12 1085
Grand Total 68,316.61
* Amount of interest not provided in books of accounts
* Also the amount of Rs. 4009.10 lakhs deposited in No lien account of PNE against the OTS amount of Rs. 25000
lakhs is not adjusted with above respective balances.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, Punjab National Bank (PNB} had declared the company as
wilful defaulter. However the company/ Directors had submitted the resolution plan for outstanding dues of the
bank, which the consortium led by PNB had sanctioned.

¢) Term leans are applied for the purpose for which the loans are obtained and hence reporting on clause 3({ix)(c)
is not applicable.

d) The company has not ralsed fund on short term basls and hence, reporting under clause 3{bx}(d} of the Order Is
not applicable.

€) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or persen on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

fy The Company has not raised any leans during the year on the pledge of any securities held in its subsidiaries,
Jolnt ventures or assoclate companies and hence reporting on clause 3(1x){f) of the Order Is nat applicable.

X. (a) The Company has nct raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not applicable.

({b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or opticnally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

Xi.
(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
(b} No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companles Act has been flled In Form ADT4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.
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{(¢) No whisle-blower complaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(xiXc) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party fransactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable ascounting standards.

(a) The company has an intemal audit system commensurate the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reporis of the intemal auditor for the period under audit were considered wherever necessary.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

{a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hencse, reporting under clause 3{xvi} {a), (b) and (c) of the Crder is not applicable.
(b) The company is not part of any group. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi) {d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurmad cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immadiately
preceding financial year and hence clause (xvii) is not applicable.

xviii. There is no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, therefore this clause (xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

Xix.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Cirectors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of cne year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

XX The company has incurrad losses during the three immediately preceding financial years and hencs, it is not required

fo spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the
order is not applicable to the company for the year.

Xxi. In standalone financial statements reporting under clause () of the order is not applicable.
Place: Delhl For M/s N.C. Ra] & Assoclates
Date: 29-05-2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 23088636BGUBEG3148 Firm Reg. No. 002249N
Sd/-
{CA. Sanjay Garg)
Partner
M.No. 088636
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause {I} of Sub-gsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financlal statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st March,
2023, we have audlted the Internal financlal controls over financlal reporting of Kohlnoor Food Limited (herelnafter referred
to as “the Holding Company™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the intemal control over financial reperting criteria established by the holding Company considering the essential
cornponents of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Gontrols over Financial Reporting
issusd by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordery and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguanding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the companies Act, 2013.

Audltors’ Responsibliity
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based
on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting ("the Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAl and the Standards of Auditing, issued by the ICAl and deemed fo be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both issusd by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requiremants
and plan and perform the audit to obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls cperated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenass. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial
raperting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, asseasing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the dasign and operating effactiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's Judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus to fraud or error.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit opinkon
on the Internal financlal contrals system over financlal reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial staterments in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or imely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financlal Controls Over Financlal Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemmal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to
the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policias or procedures may deteriorate.
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Basls of Quallfled Opinlon

Wae draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified opinion” of our main report and the same fo be read with our
comments as stated below:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has been
identified as at 31® March, 2023.

1. The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for
(a) Customer acceptance;
(b) Customer credit evaluation;
(c) Establishing customer credit limit for sales;
(d) Acceptance of goods by customers and transfer of risk & reward at the time of sales.

This could potentially result in the company recognising revenue without establishing reasenable certainty of ultimate
collection.

2. The Company did not have any intemal control system for follow-up/racovery/adjustment of old outstanding receivables
and payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

A 'Material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, in intemal financial control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual financial statement will not
be prevented or detective on timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of basis of qualified opinion, the holding Company has maintained, in
all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31* March, 2023, based on the intemal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material wealnesses identified and reperted abeve in determining the nature, timing and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2023 standalone financial statements of the group and these material
weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the company.

Place: Delhl For M/s N.C. Ra] & Assoclates
Date: 29-05-2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 23088636BGUBEG3148 Firm Reg. No. 002249N
Sdi-

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 083636
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MAR 2023 (Rs.in Lacs)
AS AT AS AT
PARTICULARS NOTE 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
A. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 15,909.00 16,512.62
Capital Work in Progress 3 8.27 -
Financial Assets
Other Mon Current Assets 4 733.18 629.72
Dsferred Tax Asset {Nef) 5 303.47 230.91
Total 16,953.91 17,373.25
Current Assets
Inventories 6 748.02 708.98
Financial Assets
Investments 7 - 11.26
Trade Recsivables 8 1,242.28 1,126.24
Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 179.50 142.93
Other Financial Assets 10 3.70 5.52
Other Current Assets 1 2,181.26 2,163.62
Total 4,354.76 4,158.55
TOTAL ASSETS 21,308.68 21,531.80
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 3,707.15 3,707.15
Cther equity 13 {55,448.20) {55,042.26)
Total
Liabilities
Non Current Liabllitles
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 261.73 295.11
Provisions 15 79.60 8742
Total 341.33 382.53
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabiliies 16 70,438.41 70,707.39
Bomrowings 17 784.44 832.68
Trade Payables 18 819.10 423.94
Qther Financial Liabilities 19 645.24 498.80
Other Current Liabilities 20 21.21 21.56
Provisions 72,708.40 7248437
Total 21,308.68 21,531.80
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of

the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MAR 2023 (Rs. in Lacs)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS NOTE 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 21 8,254.21 9,856.55
Other Income 22 170.93 491.80
Total Income 8,425.14 10,348.34
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 23 2,270.95 5,642.39
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24 929.75 799.77
Changes in Inventories of Finished
Goods, WIP and Stock in Trade 25 (100.08) 68.61
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 586.81 594.43
Finance Costs 27 1,799.04 67.27
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3 671.40 772.59
Impairment of Assets 28 184.90
Other Expenses 29 3,425.28 2,768.97
Total Expenses 9,583.16 10,898.92
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax (1,158.02) (550.58)
Add : Exceptional ltems-Income 780.80 -
Less : Prior Period Expenses 107.07 -
Profit Before Tax (484.29) (550.58)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax -
Income Tax for Prior Years -
Deferred Tax (72.56) 79.81
Profit/(Loss) for the year (411.73) (630.38)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 5.79 9.88
Fair value of Investments through OCI - 1.50
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 5.79 1.37
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (405.94) 619.01
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face value of " 10 each)
Basic (In Rs.) 34 (1.10) (1.67)
Diluted (In Rs.) 34 (1.10) (1.67)

The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31*MARCH 2023

(Rs. In Lacs)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

PARTICULARS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31-March-2023 31-March-2022

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Finance cost
Interest income
(Profit)/Loss on Sale/Deletion of Fixed Assets
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Shares
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy
Impairment loss on Investment in Subsidiary
Invocation of Corporate Gurantee
Bad Debis/Provision for Bad Debts

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase ) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase ) in Trade Receivables
Decrease/(Increase ) in other Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid
Net Cash from operating activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment's
Sale of property, plant and equipment's
Sale of Investments
Interest Received
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy
Net cash from Investment activities

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/( Decrease) in short term borrowings
Increase/( Decrease) in Long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
- Cash & Cash equivalent at beginning of the year
- Cash & Cash equivalent at end of the year

(484.29) (550.58)
671.40 77259
1,799.04 67.27
(0.96) (0.66)
(0.05) (0.49)
(51.36) (47.58)

- 184.90

- 21.94
1,933.78 447.38
(39.04) (167.29)
(116.04) 2,151.06
(119.29) (703.16)
(48.24) (1,503.09)
539.22 (2,279.03)
2,150.39 (2,054.13)
2,150.39 (2,054.13)
(75.99) (27.23)
11.26 4,332.98
0.96 0.66
51.36 47.58
(12.41) 4,353.98
(268.98) (2,125.44)
(33.38) (33.22)
(1,799.04) (67.27)
(2,101.41) (2,225.94)
36.57 7392
142.93 69.01
179.50 14293
36.57 73.92

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667
Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora
29-May-2023 C.FO

o

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
GURNAM ARORA
Jt. Mg. Director

DIN NO. 00010731

Sd/-
Deepak Kaushal
Company Secretary
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Rs. In Lacs}
Pariculars No. Shares Amount
A Equity Share Caphal
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 37,071,530 3,70715
Change In equity share capital during the year -
Balanco as at 31st March, 2022 37,071,530 3,707.15
Change in squity share capital during the year - -
Balanco as at 31st March, 2023 37,071,530 3,707.15
E. Other Equity
Farticulars Capltal Reserve  Securities Premium  Refalned samings Revaluation Surplus Total
Account
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 1499.72 15,757.23 (87,565.38) 15,885.19 {54,423.25)
Prosit for the year (630.38) {680.38)
Other Comprehensive Incoms for the Yeer 11.37 137
Total Comprehensive Income for the ysar - - (619.01} - {619.01)
Dividends
Transfermed to General Reserve
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1,4580.72 15,767.23 (68,184.38) 15,885.18 {55,042.28}
Profit for the year @11.73) #1173
Qther Comprehensive Income for the Year 579 579
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - {405.94) - {405.94)
Dividends
Transferred to Ganeral Rasarve
Balanco as at 31st March, 2023 1,498.72 15,751.23 {88,580.33) 15,885.18 {55448.20)
Annexure to our Report of Date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May 2023 CFO Company Secretary

©
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1. Company Information

Kohinoor Foods Limited was incorporated in 1989. ltis a Public Limited company listed on the stock exchanges, BSE and NSE. The
Company is a leading Basmati Rice player and has a Rice mill situated at Murthal, Sonepat. It also owns a Food Factory situated at
Bahalgarh, Scnepat. The products ofthe company are known for supsrior quality and are popular worldwide.

The company has two 100% whelly owned subsidiaries —Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited, in India and Kohinoor Foods USAIncin
USA.

2. Significant Accounting Pollcles
(a) Basls of Praparation

These Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
"Ind AS") as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) AmendmentRules, 2016. The
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared by the company under Ind AS for the first time, with 01-04-2016
as date oftransition.

The Financial Statements have besn prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on accruals basis unless
otherwise stated. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

(b) Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires managemsnt {o make certain assumptions and estimates that affect the reported
amount, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in
which they materialize.

(c) Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has adopted revaluation medel for land & building. All the assets belenging to these classes of assets are carried at
revalued amount being its fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The Company shall camry out the
revaluation of these assets periadically after every 3 to S years.

Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are stated at cost of acquisition/installation inclusive of freight, duties, and taxes
and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of major projects involving consfruction, related pre-
operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized alsc include applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-
progress” and stated at the amount spent up to the date of balance sheet.

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.

{d) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment iz provided on written down value method, in terms of usseful life of the Assets as
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013. The depreciation rates which are different from the principal rates specified in
Schedule-ll are as follows: -

Tarpaulin100%p.a.

Wooden & Plastic Crates100% p.a.
(e} Financial Instruments
(1)Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial azsets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial
recognition.

Subsequent measurament
i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

©
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Afinancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on gpecified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of pringipal and inferest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Afinancial agsetis measured at FVTOCIf it is held within a buginess model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual tems of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

I} Financlalassats atfalrvalue through profitorloss (FVTPL)
Afinancial assetwhich is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Investmentin Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company has aceounted for its investments in Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture at cost, subject to impairment loss if
any.
Other Equity Investments

All other equity invesiments are measured at fair value. Investments which are not held for rading purposes and where the Company
has exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI'), all fair value
changes on the investment are recognised in OC.

{2) Financlalliabllitles
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss asfinance cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are carmied at amerfized cost using the effective interest method. For frade and other payables maturing within ene
year from the Balance Sheet date, the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity ofthese instruments.
(3) Derivative financialinstruments

Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedgs its foreign currency
risks are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.

(f} Falrvalue measurement

The Company classifies the fair value of its financial instruments, FVTPL and FVTOCI, in the following hierarchy, based on the inputs
used intheir valuation:

i) Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the balance sheet
date.

ii) Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not fraded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques
using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valuation models based on market
parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar instruments and use of comparable
am's length transactions.

iii) Leved 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are not
basad on observable market data (unobssrvable inputs).

(g) Dividend to Equity Shareholders

Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognized as a liability and deducted from shareholders’ equity, in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the equity shareholders inthe general meeting.

{h} Inventories
Raw materials, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Stores and spares are carried at cost.

Cost is determined on FIFO {First in First ouf) basis for raw material, and on weighted average method for all other categories of
inventories. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its present location
and conditien, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on nomal level of activity.
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(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an
insignificant rigk of changes in value.

(i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, retums and value added taxes.

The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when itis probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Company activities.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred fo the
buyer as perthe terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. On recognition of revenue the Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a degree usually
associated with ownership and no significantuncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale ofgoods.

Interestincome is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenue in respect of Insurance / others claims, Commission, ete. is
recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

Revenue in respect of sale of licenses, duty drawback and other incentives is recognized on realization basis.
(k} Research and Development

Research expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incumred. Development expenditure is capitalized only if the
costs can be reliably measured, future economic benefits are probable, the product is technically feasible and the Company has the
intent and the resources o complete the project. Development assets are amortized based on the estimated useful life, as

appropriate.
(I)Employee Benefits

Confributions to defined provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss on acerual basis. Present liability for future
payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date and the expenses is charged to the
statementof profitand loss.

(m) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realized gains and
losses on seftlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Statement of Prefitand Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates and the resultant
exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange
rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

{n) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
interest relating to other financial liabiliies. Borrowing costs also include exchange differences to the exdent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Interest and other borrowing costs atiributable to qualifying assets are capitalized as a part of such assets ill such time the assets are
ready foruse. Other interest and bormowing costs are charged to Statement of Profitand Loss.

(p} Income tax

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their camying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the tax
are those that are snacted orsubstantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assels are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

@
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Current and Defered tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

MinimumAlternate Tax:

Acconding to section 115JAA ofthe Income Tax Act, 1961, MinimumAltemative Tax (MAT) paid over and above the normal income tax
ina subjectyear s eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding assessment years for set-off against normal income tax liability. The
MAT credit asset is assessed against the Company’s normal income tax during the specified period.

(q) Leases

Atthe date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a comesponding lease liability for
all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less {short term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The RCU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or prior to the commencament date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any leass incentives, They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straightline basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the inferest rate implicitin the laase.

{r) Provislons, Contingent Llabliity and Contingent Assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a
possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the
obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(¢} Impalrment of Financlal Assets

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other than financials assets in FVTPL
category.

{t) Impairment of Non-FInanclal Assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
Indication exists; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong is less than its camying amount, the camrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reductionis treated as animpairment loss and is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss. If
atthe Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount
is reassessed and the assetsis reflected at recoverable amount.

(u) Exceptlonal Hems

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further understanding
of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have to be shown separately due to
their nature orincidence.

{v) Eamings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for its ordinary shares. Basic eamings per share ig calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
cutstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or koss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporfing period. The financial
statements are adjusted for such events before authorization for issue.

Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of cenditions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events
afterthe reporting date are not accounted, but disclosed.
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(Rs.In Lacs)
As at 31- March-2023 31-March-2022
4,  Other Non-Current Assets
{Unsecured, considered goods)
Security Deposit 84.50 71.38
Others 648.68 558.34
733.18 629.72
5. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Disallowance under Income tax act, 1961 119.70 31.48
Related fo fixed assets 183.77 199.43
303.47 230.91
6.  Inventories
{As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Material 116.02 88.31
Work in Progress 99.59 79.36
Finished Goods 112.38 318.19
Packing Materials 420.03 22313
748.02 708.98

a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reliasble value.
b) Finished goods includes the Stock in transit.
7. Current Investments
Other Investment
Investment in Un-quoted Fund - 11.26
Balanced Plan Fund- Canara-HSBC-OBC
(56496.16 Unit of Balanced Plus Fund issued under Canara-HSBC-
OBC, Life Insurance Platinum Plus Plan

- 11.26
8.  Trade Receivables
{Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 376.67 117.37
Others 865.61 1,008.88
1,242.28 1,126.24
Ageing of Trade Recoivables as af st March, 2023;-
_ Outstanding for following pariods from due date of payment
Particulasrs Less than & Monthe-1 1-2 Years 2-3 Yoars More than 3 Tolal
6§ Niontha Year Yoars
{1} Undisputad Trate Receivabies- Considersd Good 86561 509 - - - B90.64
({i) Undisputad Treds Recaivables- Conaidered Doubiful - 745 - 6942 - Te.87
[ Disputed Trade Recetvables- Considered Good - - - - - -
|irv} Disputed Trada Recsivables- Considared Doubtiul - itk - - - b7k
Ageing of Trade Recalvables as at 31st March, 2022«
_ Ouistanding for following perinds from dus date of pryment
Parficulara Lesa than 6 Months-1 12 Years 23 Yearn More than 3 Total
6 Nonths Year Years
0} Undisputed Trade Recelvables- Cansidered Good 100888 3962 : - - 104850 |
i) Undisputed Trade Receivahles- Gonsidered Doubtful - - 6942 818 - .60
’ﬁ)mmﬁm Receivabies- Considered Good - - - - - .
'y Disputed Trade Recsvables- Consderad Doutstiul - - - - - -
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(Rs.In Lacs)
As at 31- March-2023 31-March-2022
9. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 95.49 79.31
Cash in Hand 81.52 61.13
Fixed deposits as Margin Money with Banks 249 249
179.50 142.93
10.  Other Financial Assets (Current)
Staff Advance 0.79 261
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2.08 229
Advance fo Related Party 0.84 0.61
3.70 5.52
11.  Other Current Assets
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Tax paid is against pending Appeal 1,321.21 1,327.21
TDS Receivable 2022-23 8r.77 -
Advance against Purchases 178.91 33.70
MAT Credit Entitement 464.87 464.87
Pre-paid Expenses 13.22 13.10
Others 109.27 32473
2,181.26 2,163.62
12 Equity Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital
75,000,000 (Previous year 75,000,000) 7,500.00 7,500.00

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed And Paid-Up Capital
37,071,530 (Previous year 37,071,530) 3,707.15 3,707.15
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

3,707.15 3,707.15
a). The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 37,071,530 37,071,530
Number of Equity Shares issued during the year - -
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 37,071,530 37,071,530
b). Shares held by Shareholders holding more than5 percent shares in the Company :
Asal 31-Mur-2023 — 31-Mar2022
No. of Shares Sharsholding | No. of Shares Shareholding |
Jugsl Klshore Arora 1,053,484 284% 6,663,484 17.95%
Satnam Arcra 5,749,191 15.51% 5,058,923 16.16%
Gumam Arora 6,289,204 18.97% 5,708,589 18.10%
AL Dahra Intermational Irnvestments LLG 7,048,308 18.01% 7,048,308 18.01%

¢) Tarma/Rights attached to aquity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each holdar of equity shares is entilled to one vote per share
and has equal dividend right. The Company deciares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The Dividend if propesed by the Board of Directors is subject
fo shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the aquity shareholders will be entitied to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion fo the
number of equity shares hekd by the shareholders.
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(Rs.In Lacs)

As at

31- March-2023

31-March-2022

d} Details of promoters holding in the Company

13

14

15

16

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Fromotars Neme No.ofShares | ~oTtolal |y, ofShares | ' Of tofal
shares shares
Gumam Arora 65,289,204 16.97% 6,708,889 18.10%
Satnam Arora 5,748,191 15.51% 5,968,923 16.16%
[Jugal Kishore Arora 1,053,484 2.84% 6,653,484 17.95%
Total 13,091,879 35.32% 19,351,296 52.21%
Other Equity

Capital Reserve 1,499.72 1,499.72
Securities Premium Account 15,757.23 15,757.23
Revaluation Surplus 15,885.19 15,885.19

Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet (88,184.39) (87,565.38)
Profit/(Loss) during the year (411.73) (630.38
Other Comprehensive Income 5.79 11.37
(88,590.33) (88,184.39)
__ (5544820) __ (55.042.26)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves
i. Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve had been created consequent to forfeiture of Application Money on Share Warrants.

ii. Securities Premium Account

Securities Premium Account had been created consequent to issue of shares at premium. These reserves can be utilised in

accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

i~ Revaluation Surplus

Revaluation surplus was created on revaluation of Land & Building as on 01-04-2016.

Borrowings (Non-Current)
Unsecured Loans
Loan from Other Parties

Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for Gratuity

Borrowings (Current)

Secured

Loan repayable on Demand from Banks
Unsecured

Loan from Directors*

261.73
261.73

79.60

79.60

64,295.20

6,143.20

70,438.41

295.11
295.11

87.42

87.42

64,334.52

6,372.87

70,707.39
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(Rs.In Lacs)
31-March-2022

As at 31- March-2023

a) Loan repayable on Demand from Banks are working capital loans secured by hypothecation of Inventory, book debts and other current
assets of the company, both presentand future and the first charge on fixed assets of the company (excluding of specific assets charged
toTermlending Banks).

b) The balances are subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

c) Defaultin Repayment of Loan There are default in repayment of bank loans from March-2018 onwards.
The Banks have classified the company's accounts as Non Performing asset and served Notice under section 13(2) & 13(4) of The
Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002..

The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed pefition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankrupicy Code, 2016, before the Honbl'e
court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is notyet admitted.

The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 11,567.66 Lacs for current year ( Rs. 10,588.35 Lacs for previous year) and
Rs.45,646.57 Lacs upto 31-03-2023 (previous yearRs. 34,078.91 Lacs) on bank loans which were classified as non-performing assets
during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not provided interest during the current year to the
extentof Rs. 247.28 Lacs for the year ended 2023 and Rs. 661.08 Lacs for the period upto 31-03-2023 on account of revoked corporate
gurantee of subsidiaryinUSA.

d) The company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from Debt Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delhi in the matter of ICICI Bank
Vs. Kohinoor Foods Limited restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing with, or disposing off or
encumbering or creating any third party interest with respect of the hypothecated assets/immovable properties of Company until further
orders. The company is contesting the matter and taking necessary action.

e) The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hongkong(now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by PNB Hongkong (now
PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) has invoked the corporate
guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has recognised the loss of Rs. 3,928.12 Lacs (previous year Rs.
3,630.93 Lacs onaccount of this liability.

17.  Trade Payable
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Due to Others 784.44 832.68
784.44 832.68
Agalng of Trade Payablo as ot 31st Narch 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars of payment ";’::r:" Total
Lossthan | 4 Yeas | 23Yemn
1 Year
(i) MSME - - - -
(I} Others . 230,17 403.66 - 150.61 T84.44
{iii; Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
iv} Lisputad dues- s - - - - -
Ageing of Trade Payeblo as at 31st March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from dus date
of payment More than
Particulars T 3 Years Total
1-2 Years 2-3 Years
1 Year
(i) MSME - - -
(ii} Othars 300.14 M0.12 19242 §32.68
(iii) Digputed duss- MSME - - - - -
{iv) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -

Company has not classified the trade payables, due to msme, since the vendors have not submitted any document related to msma certification.
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(Rs. In Lacs)

As at 31- March-2023 31-March-2022
18.  Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Current maturities of long-term debt 29.60 25.16
Employees Benefits Payable 4013 60.06
Other Payables 389.80 338.72
Interest Payable 359.57 -
819.10 423.94
19.  Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from customers 570.82 426.96
Statutory Liabilities 14.01 15.83
Other Liabilities 60.41 56.01
645.24 498.80
20. Provisions (Current)
Provision for gratuity 21.21 21.56
21.21 21.56
21.  Revenues From Operations
Sales of Products 7,637.34 9,577.99
Other Operating Revenues 616.87 278.56
T 8,25421 ~ 9,856.55
a)  Sales of Products
Rice 1,885.51 7,208.66
Foods 5,751.82 2,369.33
7,637.34 9,577.99
b)  Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 34.06 66.97
Income from Rice Processing 572.54 192.80
Duty Drawback/ Sale of Licenses 10.27 18.78
616.87 278.56
22, Other Income
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy 51.36 47.58
Interest Income 0.96 0.66
Commission Income 80.19 -
Miscellaneous Income 38.37 56.05
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.05 0.49
Rebate & Discount Received - 387.01
170.93 491.80
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(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year ended 31- March-2023 31-March-2022
23 Cost of Material Consumed
Rice 750.95 5,011.99
Raw Material for Foods 1,520.00 63040
2,270.95 5,642.39
24.  Purchase of Traded Goods
Non-Basmati Rice 890.57 731.83
Foods 19.57 -
ITC Reversal on Exempt ltem 19.62 67.94
929.75 799.77
25. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade
Opening Inventories 92.83 161.44
Closing Inventories 192.91 9283
~ (100.08) T 6861
26. Employee Benefit Expenses
Staff Salaries 505.92 520.26
Gratuity 17.86 21.75
Bonus 10.88 10.39
Staff Welfare 30.86 2151
Employer's Confribution to P.F.& ESI 21.60 2053
586.81 594.43
27. Finance Cost
Interest Expense* 1,782.66 37.08
Bank Charges 16.38 6.39
Borrowing Cost - 23.80
1,799.04 67.27

*The company has not provided interest during current year to the extent of Rs. 11,567.67 Lacs (previous year Rs.10,588.34 Lacs) on bank
loans which were classified as non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not
provided interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 661.08 Lacs for the period upto 31-03-2023 on account of revoked corporate
guarantee of KFLUSA subsidiary.
28. Impairment of Assets
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries - 184.90
- 184.90

The company had recognised the impairment loss in respect of Investment in its wholly owned subsidiary , "Indo European Foods Limited."
29 OtherExpenses
a)  Manufacturing Expenses

Loading and Unloading Charges 12.69 33.04
Packing Materials Consumed 1,550.29 867.94
Wages 3NN 140.84
Processing Charges 33.61 40.11
Repair to Machinery 39.34 72.54
Power & Fuel 257.51 190.67
Brokerage & Commission - 0.35

2.204.55 1,345.49
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(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year ended 31- March-2023 31-March-2022
b)  Administrative Expenses
Payment to Auditors
-Statutory Audit Fee 10.60 10.60
-Tax Audit Fee 2.50 250
-Other Matters 1.70 214
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 18.66 15.37
General Expenses 120.27 101.38
Legal and Professional Charges 97 .17 62.80
Electricity Expenses 8.76 917
Rates and Taxes 14.73 4449
Other Taxes Paid - 1.24
Vehicle Maintenance 24.80 23.86
Printing and Stationery 3.83 592
Fumigation Expenses 7.05 18.79
Insurance Charges 18.98 18.70
Conveyance 9.97 574
Membership & Subscription 452 3.87
Traveling Expenses (Directors) 24.41 0.27
Traveling Expenses (Others) 36.41 29.96
Research & Development 8.74 9.59
G.S.T Expenses 221 -
Staff Recruitment Expenses 0.05 217
Bad Debis/ Balance Written off 46.26 21.94
Repair to Building 62.71 7212
Repair Others 29.07 31.01
Foreign Exchange Loss 236.89 112.69
790.29 606.29
c)  Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement and Publicity 1.39 1.41
Business Promotion 61.40 31.76
Rebate & Discount 6.08 6.57
Ocean Freight 32.07 436.21
Expenses Against Export 21.95 2477
Brokerage & Commission on Sales 10.87 10.25
Clearing and Forwarding 296.69 306.20
430.44 817.18
3,425.28 2,768.97
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{Rs. In Lacs)
31 March 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2022

30 Disclosures under IND AS-19 "Employees Benefits" :
a) Defined Contribution Plans:
Amount of Rs.21.60 Lacs (previous year Rs. 20.52 Lacs) pertaining to employers' contribution to Provident Fund and Employees
State Insurance is recognized as an expense and included in "Employees cost " in Note No. 26.

b) Defined Benefit Plan:
General description of Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity):
The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entifled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days basic salary last drawn
for each completed year of service. The same is payable on termination of service, or retirement, or death whichever is earlier. The
benefits vest after five years of continuous service. The Company has set a limit of Rs. 20.00 Lacs (previous year Rs.20.00 Lacs) per

employee.

c) The disclosures for gratuity cost is given below:

i Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation

(Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 | Presentvalue of obligation at the beginning of the year 121.09 174.55
2 | Interest cost 8.66 11.69
3 | Pastservice cost - -
4 | Currents service cost 9.22 10.08
5 | Liability Transferred Out - -
6 | Benefits paid (32.49) (65.32)
7 | Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation (5.67) (9.91)
8 | Present value of obligation at the end of the year 100.81 121.09
i Change in plan assets
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1| Fairvalue of plan assets at the beginning of the period 1.07 0.40
Difference in Opening (0.78)
2 | Actual return on plan assets 0.13 (0.01)
3 | Employer Contributions 29.50 66.00
Preveious year adjustment 0.78
4 | Benefits paid (29.03) (65.32)
5 | Fairvalue of plan assets at the end of the year 167 1.07
i Actuarial gain/ loss on Plan Assets:-
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 | Expected Interest Income 0.02 0.03
2 | Actuarial income on Plan Asset 0.13 (0.01)
3 | Actuarial gain/(Loss) for the year on Assets (0.11) 0.03
iv. Balance Sheet and related analysis:-
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 | Presentvalue of the obligation at the end 100.81 121.09
2 | Fairvalue of plan assets 1.67 1.07
3 | Unfunded liability/provision in Balance Sheet (99.13) (120.03)
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v The amounts recognized in the Income Statements (Rs. In Lace)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1| Total Service Cost 9.22 10.08
2 | NetlInterest Cost 8.64 11.67
3 | Expenses recognized in the Income statement 17.86 21.75
vi  Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1| Netcumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening - -
2 | Actual gain/(Loss) for the year on PBO 5.67 9.91
3 | Actual gain/(Loss) for the year on Asset 0.11 (0.03)
4 | Unrecognized actuarial gain/{loss) for the year 5.79 9.88
vii  Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows:
A.  Economic Assumptions
The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yield available
on the Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities and the salary growth rate takes account of
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevantfactors on long term basis.
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 | Discount rate 7.35 7.15
2 | Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.00 8.00
3 | Salary growth rate 5.00 5.00
B. Demographic Assumption
1 | Retirement Age: 58 Years
2 | Mortality table : Indian Assured life maturity (2012-14)
32 DisclosuresunderINDAS-108 on "Segment Reporting" :
As perthe threshold limits prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-108) on "Segment Reporting" prescribed under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India, the
Company's reportable activity falls within a single business segment and hence the disclosure requirements are notapplicable.
33 DisclosuresunderIND AS-24 on "Related Party Disclosures” :

List of related parties

I Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company
- SachdevaBrothers PviLtd. India
- KohinoorFoods USAlnc.,

ii) JointVentures
- RichRice Raisers Factory LLC.-Dubai
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iii)  Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora Chairman

Mr. Satnam Arora JtMg.Director

Mr. Gurnam Arora JtMg.Director

Mr. Nitin Arora Son of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
Mr. Amit Arora Son of Mr. Satnam Arora

Mr. Sumit Arora Son of Mr. Satnam Arora

Mr. Ankush Arora Son of Mr.Gurnam Arora

Mr. Nishant Arora Son of Mr.Gurnam Arora

iv)  Enterprise over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence
- Satnam Overseas (Exports) - Parinership Firm of Promoter/Directors
- Adonis No.1 Beauty Clinic LLP
- Satnam International Pvt. Ltd.
- Satnam Haegens Ltd.
- Adhiraj Buildcon LLP
- QVC Foods Private Limited

The following transactions were carried cut with related parfies In the ordinary course of Business during the year*

{Rs. In Lacs}
Enterprises over
Key Management which Kay
Subsidiary Companies Parsonnel and thelr Management
Relatives Personnel exercise
significant influence
Transactions during the year
Sals of products - 326.63
{306.03)
Purchase of products - - -
- - (3.90)
Advance Received - - 55.24
- - {14.21)
Loan from Directors 1,017.84
(2,924.14)
Repayment of Direcior's Loan 124731
(575.46)
Expsnses Incumed on behalf of the relatsd party 0.23
{0.01)
[Balances outstanding at the year end:=-
Loan from Directors 6,143.20
{6,372.87)
Advanca From Customers - 55.24
- (14.21)
Loane/Advance 0.84
(0.61)

*Figuresin{ ) are related to previous year.
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Disclosures under IND AS-17 on "Leases" :

33.1 There were no operating lease agreements in force and no future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. No

lease rentals were paid for operating lease during current year.

33.2 There were no finance lease agreements in force and no future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. No

lease rentals were paid towards finance lease during current year.

34 Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i) | Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders (405.94) (619.01)
i) | Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 37,071,530 37,071,530
calculating Basic EPS
iy | Weighted Average Potential Equity Shares - -
iv) | Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for 37,071,530 37,071,530
calculating Diluted EPS
v) | BasicEamingPer Share (1.10) (1.67)
vi) | Diluted Earning PerShare (1.10) (1.67)
viiy | Face Value perEquity Share 10 10
Calculation Weighted Average number of Equity Shares
For the year ended 31 March 2023 31 Match 2022
Nos. of Days 365 365
Nos. of Shares 37,071,530 37,071,530
total nos. of days 365 365
Weighted Average number of shares 37,071,530 37,071,530
35

Disclosures under IND AS 37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", in respect of Provisions

. . Opening balance Closing balance
Provision relating to P ag at Created during the yearl Withdrawals a‘i, at
1 April 2022 31- March-2023
Gratuity 108.98 12.07 20.24 100.81
108.98 12.07 20.24 100.81
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(Rs. In Lacs)

For the Year Ended

31-March-2023

31-March-2022

CIF Value of Imports
- Capital Goods
- Raw Material Purchase
- Packaging Material

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On accrual basis)
- Traveling
- Business Promotion
- Legal & Professional charges
- Membership & Subscription
- Conveyance
- Postage & Telegram
- Commission on Export Sales
- Expenses against Export

Earning in Foreign Exchange
- FOB Value of Export of Goods

Contingent Liabilities not provided for

- 10.23

168.86 137.67

1,055.66 269.93

1,224.53 417.83

19.96 4.59

13.69 -

1.27 3.00

0.12 -

0.94 -

- 0.11

9.98 7.70

- 1.73

45.96 17.13

6,634.88 6,019.27
(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

31-March-2023

31-March-2022

Claims against the company, not acknowledged as debt
I Income Tax

i  Sales Tax - Delhi

iii VAT-Haryana

iv  Excise & Taxation Department, Punjab
v Excise Duty

vi  Service Tax

vii VAT - Delhi

viii Legal Cases against the Company
Bank Guarantees

Surety Bonds issued to Govt. Agencies
under EPCG/Adv License scheme

10,322.02
122.00
740.07
455.82

42.91
9.12
963.94
22.63
19.75

2,082.34

10,322.02
122.00
740.07
455.82

42.91
9.12
963.94
2263
19.75

2,082.34

Nature of contingent liabilities and other particulars are as given below:-

Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A), New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi / Hon'ble
Delhi High Court againstthe tax demand raised in impugned Income Tax Assessment Orders as per details given below :-

AY Tax Interest Total
2002-03 to 2008-09 298.03 106.00 404.03
2009-10 - - -
2010-11 2,331.25 1,347.86 3,679.11
201112 835.77 780.20 1,615.97
2012413 1,274.98 1,019.99 2,294 .97
2013-14 406.83 264.39 671.21
2014415 798.05 45385 1,251.89
2016-17 275.78 129.05 404.84
TOTAL 10,322.02
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a) Asper the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of merit ofthe case, there is a high probability that the aforesaid impugned

orders will be set aside and the demand will be deleted. Accordingly, management is of the view that no provision in respect of the above
demands is required to be made inthe books of accounts.
Further to above, for assessment year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-17, We had contested the matter before CIT(Appeal), based on our
submission, our appeal was considered, the addition on certain matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer Pricing Issue. On
Corporate Issue complete addition was allowed to be reversed and thus the addition was nullified. The appeal effect against the order of
CIT(Appeal)is awaited for all three assessment years.

b) Anappeal hasbeen filed with CIT(A) on 11-08-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 2860.54 Lacs against transfer pricing
adjustmentin respect of A.Y 2017-2018 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has been raised by the department,
but, this has impacted inthe reduction oflosses by the above amount.

c) Anappeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 07-12-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 791.57 Lacs against transfer pricing
adjustmentin respect of A.Y 2018-2019 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has been raised by the department,
but, this has impacted inthe reduction oflosses by the above amount.

ii  Anappeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeals, New Delhi is lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of Rs.122.00 Lacs on
sale of REP Licenses made in earlieryears.

iii  Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn.4 against the
impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision Order passed by the assessing authorities as mentioned in column. 3 of the table given below

Particulars Demand raised (Rs.) Assessing Authority Appellate Authority
(Col. 1) (Col. 2) (Col. 3) (Col. 4)

Sales Tax Murthal - AY 2008-09 732.35 Revision-Faridabad | Tribunal-Chandigarh
Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009-10 7.72 Revision-Faridabad Tribunal-Chandigarh
Total 740.07

Note : The Appellate Authority has remanded back the above cases to Revision Authority,Rohtak / Assessing Authority, Sonipat

iv  Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from Excise and
Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs.450.41 Lacs towards the cess imposed by the
State Govt. on exports. The company has challenged the validity of imposition of cess on export in its appeal as the same is not
permissible under article 286 of the Constitution of India. Further demand has been raised for Rs. 5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales
Tax assessment for AY 2011-12 againstwhich appeal has been filed.

v ll.An appeal before the Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhiis lying pending against the order of Commissioner
of Central Excise (Appeals), Delhi -1l in respect of additional excise duty of Rs. 42.91 Lacs demanded by the Excise department in
connection of dispute over classification of goods - food product produced at Bahalgarh Factory- as per the Central Tariff Act. As the
matteris still pending before the Tribunal, no provisionin the books of accounts have been made

vi  During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an order from Hon.'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal,
New Delh (CETSTAT) against the order passed by Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication), New Delhi demanding a service tax of
Rs.259.25 Lacs. The Hon'ble CETSTAT vide its order dated 16/02/2017 has granted major relief of Rs.250.13 Lacs against the aforesaid
demand.

vii  VAT-Delhihad raised the demand of 726.93 Lacs against pending 'F' forms in respect of years 2015-2016 & 2016-2017. Pending F forms
were related to six quarter out of the above, for five quarter all F forms were submitted and an order dated 16-08-2022 has been received,
nullifying the demands of these quarter. For quarter one for the year 2016-2017 F forms are pending there a demand of Rs. 22.63 Lacs
has been raised by VAT-Delhi. Appeal against the said order has been filed with VAT-Delhi.

viii__Legal Cases against the Company
The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money suit forrecovery of Rs. 963.94 Lacs towards alleged outstanding demurrage
charges against which the company has filed its counter claim of Rs. 10.88 Cr. towards the financial losses, interest on the investment,
refund of the license fees, refund ofthe demurrage charges, compensation and damages efc. The matteris still pending.

D  M/s. Regal Kiichen Foods Limited filed an arbitration petition towards alleged outstanding, against which company is in process of filing
its counter claim towards the financial losses. The Company has booked income towards the financial losses of Rs. 387 Lacs, whichis to
be recoverable from M/s. Regal Kitchen Foods Limited. Case s filed in District and Session court Faridabad.

38 Commitments
There are no commitment for contracts remaining to be executed on capital accountas at the end of current year or previous year.
39 Details of loans given, investment made and guarantee given covered u/s 186 (4) ofthe Companies Act-2013.
i  DetailsofLoansgiven andinvestment made are given underthe respective heads.
40 Asperthe assessment of Management the company continues to be going concern. This assessment is based on Resolution plan submitted to
the Banks by company and the interest shown by prospective investors in the company.
66/
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43 Financial Risk Management

The company has exposure to the following risks arising from Financial Instruments:
- Credit Risk

- Liquidity Risk

- Market Risk

CREDIT RISK

'Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
Trade receivable related credit risk

Alltrade receivable are reviewed and assessed for default on routine basis. Our historical experience of collecting receivables is
of significant creditrisk.

Other financial assets

The company maintains low exposure in cash and cash equivalents. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is the
carrying value of each class of financial assets.

LIQUIDITY RISK:

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Company will face inmeeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s
approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring
unacceptable losses.

Maturities of financial liabilities

Thetable below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities
forallnon-derivative financial liabilities.

Maturity of Financial liabilities

(In Rs. Lacs)

31-Mar-2023 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-2years | 2.5 years
Borrowings 70,438.41 70,438.41 - -
Trade Payables 784 44 784 .44 - -
Other Financial Liabilties 819.10 819.10 - -
72,041.95 72,041.95 - -

31-Mar-2022 Carrying amount Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.5 years
Borrowings 70,707.39 70,707.39 - -
Trade Payables 832.68 832.68 - -
Other Financial Liabilties 423.94 423.94 - -
71,964.01 71,964.01 - -
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The Company is exposed to the following marketrisks that arise fromits use of financialinstruments:

- CurrencyRisk
- PriceRisk
- Interest Rate Risk Currency Risk

‘The Company operates intemnationally and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its sales in
overseas market. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and the Company
follows policies which includes the use of derivatives like foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge exposure to foreign
currencyrisk.

a) Foreign currency exposure nothedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise

2022-2023 2021-2022
IParticuIars Currency | Foreign | (Rs.InlLacs) | Foreign | (Rs.In Lacs)
Ilnﬂow
Export Recsivable usD 898,619 819.99 979,125 743.16
Advances received from
customers for export usb 166,945 137.08 68,807 52.23
[Outflow
Advance Paid to Supllier for
Import EUR 99,000 88.38 - -
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b) Thereare nooutstanding forward contracts ason 31 March 2023.
¢) Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered by the company for the purpose of hedging its foreign currency
exposures.
There were no outstanding forward exchange contractentered by the company as on 31.03.2023 and 31.03.2022.
PriceRisk
The price risk is the risk arising from investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either at fair value
through Other Comprehensive Income or atfair value through profitorloss.
The Company's equity investments are mainly strategicin nature and are generally held on along-term basis.
Interest Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. As at March 31, 2023, the Company has short term borrowings of 64295.20 Lacs which is exposed in
financial risk.
Commodity Risk
The Company is exposed to the fluctuations in commodity prices. Mismatch in demand and supply, adverse weather conditions,
market expectations etc., can leadto price fluctuations. The Company manages these price fluctuations by actively managing the
sourcing of the raw material and other products.
43 The company was not required to spend any amount in respect of corporate social responsibility (CSR) for current year and for
previous yearas per section 135 of CompaniesAct.
44 The company has not made any contributionto any political party during current year and previous year.
45 During the year no amount of Dividend has been remitted in foreign currency to Non Residentout side India.
46 Some ofthe balances of Debtors and Creditors are subject to confirmation.
47 Corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to current year
classification.
48 In the standalone financial statement provident fund amounting Rs 0.30 lacs could not deposited due to technical reasons. The
amountalong with interestwill be deposited.
49 Company's Rice manufacturing unitis not running up to its full capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.
The above notes form partofthe financial statements
In terms of our separate report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2023

Form AOC -1

{ Pursuant to first provision to sub section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014}
Statement containing silent features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/agsociate companiesfjoint vertures

Part "A" : Subsldlaries

{Rs. In Lacs)
01 Name of subsidiaries Company Sachdeva Brothsrs Kohinoor Foods
Pvi Lid. USA. Inc.
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned 31-03-2023 31-03-2023
03 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on
the last date of the relevant Financial year in
the cazge of foreign subgidiaries
i) Reporting Currency INR usD
iy Exchange Rate N.A 82.1128
04 Share Capital 15.84 6,979.59
05 Reserves & Surplus (18.94} {6,455.29)
06 Total Assets 0.00 3.74
07 Total liabilities 0.00 3.74
08 Investment 0.00 0.00
08 Tumover
10 Profit/ Loss Before Tax {D.23} {1.65)
11 Provision for Tax 0.00 0.00
12 Profit/ Loss after Tax {0.23} {1.65)
13 Proposed Dividend including Dividend declared - -
during the year.
14 % of shareholding 100% 100%

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667
Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora
29-May-2023 C.FO

Q

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
GURNAM ARORA
Jt. Mg. Director

DIN NO. 00010731

Sd/-
Deepak Kaushal
Company Secretary
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Independent Auditors’' Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF KOHINOCR FOODS LIMITED

Qualiled Opinlon.

We have audited the accompanying Consolldated flnanclal statements of Kohinoor Foods Limited {"the Holding
Company”), and its subsidiaries {‘the holding company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the group”} which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31%, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Cther Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the
effects/possible effects of the matters described In paragraph under 'Basls for Qualifled Opinlon’, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the financial
position of the Company as at March 31%, 2023, and its consolidated profitloss including other comprehensive income,
its consolidated cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that datea.

This Statement, which Iz the responsibliity of the Holding Company’s Management and approved by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in Indian Accounting Standard 110 “Consolidated Financial Statements” ("Ind AS 110"), prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. Our responsibility is 1o
express a conclusion on the Siatement based on aur audit.

We conducted our audit of the Statement In accordance with the Standard on The Audior's Report on Financlal
Statements (SA) 700 “The Auditor's Report on Financlal Statements Performed by the Independent Auditer of the
Entity”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. An audit of financial information consists of making
inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other audit
procedures. An audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing and consaquently does not enable us to
obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit

1. The Statement Includes the results of the following entities:

Name of subsidiaries Country
{n Kohinocor Food USA Inc. (USA)
{iy Sachdeva Brothers Private Limited {India)

We did not recelve the Audited Financlal statements of above subsldlaries for the perlod ended 312 March, 2023.
Although there is no significant impact of the financial statements of the subsidiary companies on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31% Mar, 2023.

Basls for Qualified opinlon

1. Inreference to Note No. 38, the consolldated financlal statement discloses to the management’s assessment of the
company's ability to continue as geing concem. The management's assessment of going concem is based on the
OTS by the lead bank PNB and the interest shown by prospective investors in the company. However, in view of
default in re-payment of borrowings, significant decline of revenue, continuous losses, negative cash flows and
negative net worth and due to financial constraints, material uncertainty exists about the company's ability to
continue as going concen and the decision of the management of the company to prepare the accounts of the
company on golnyg cohcern basls. There may arise a need to adjust the reallzable value of assets and llabliitles In
the event of fallure of agsumption as to golng concem. Further, the company has pald Rs 1500 lakhs as Interest on
OTS delay, which is broken as Rs 101 lakhs for period pertains to March, 2022 and Rs 1399 |akhs for the period
from April 2022 to December, 2022. Also, company has made provision of Interest for lagt quarter for Rs 359 lakhs
on OTS amount.

2. As stated In Note No.27 of Consolldated Audited Finhanclal Results, Loss of the company Is understated by
Re.11,568 lakhs (approx.} due to non-provisloning of Intarest on bank loans for the perlod from 01/04/2022 to
31/03/2023 and Rs.45,647 lakhs (approx.) from the date oh which the account of the company was classifled as
NPA to the period covered under audit, due to non-provisioning of interest on bank loans after the accounts of the
company were classified as NPA. Also, towards revoked corporate guarantee of the wholly ownad subsidiary in
USA, the company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs 247 lacs for the year ended 31.03.2023 and Rs.
661 lacs up to 31.03.2023 from the date of revocation of corporate guarantee in the books of account. Further no
provision has been made towards penal interest, any other penalty etc. as may be charged by lenders. In the
absence of complete statement of account from the bank, the above amount has been arrived as per calculation
made by the company. With the limited information the aggregate amount un-provided in books of account of the
company is not ascertainable with accuracy.
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Emphasis of Matters
We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial statements:

(1) The company has not made Provision for the demand raised by various authorities (Such as Incomae Tax, Vat ate.)
as the matters are pending before various appellate forums. We are unable to comment upon possible Impact of
non-provision In the consolidated financlal statement for the year ended 31* March 2023.

(2) We draw attention to Note No. 16 of the statement of the company, The Secured Creditors of the Company have
filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankrupicy Code, 2018, before the Hon'ble court of NCLT,
Chandigarh Bench, which are not yet admitted. The Next Date of Haaring has been scheduled for 25th July 2023,
The company has flled an appeal before Hon'ble High Court Chandligarh for stay. The Hon'ble High Court has
granted stay till 12 July 2023. The next date of hearing Is 12 July 2023.

(3) With reference to Note no. 16 against amount payable to Bank, management has raised certain disputes towards
overcharging of Interest. As on date company has paid INR 40.09 crores to banks in the no-lien account, the said
amount has been netted off in the total outstanding of Loan repayable on Demand from Banks.

(4} Inreference to Note No.40, balances of some debtors and creditors are subject to thelr confirmations.

(5) In reference to Note no. 28(b) during the pericd company has taken the Net impact of Creditors/Debtors balance
written off amounting to INR 46.25 Lacs with the approval of management.

(6} In reference to Note no. 36D, The Company's vendor has filad an execution petition before Faridabad District &
Session Judge the company is contasting the matter. The next date of hearing is 10 July 2023. The company has
also approached Hon'ble High Court Shimla for stay on above matter. The Hen'ble High Court has admitied our
application. The next date of hearing is yet to be updated by the registrar.

{7} Note no. 16{(d} of the balance sheet stating that the company has raceived Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020
from Debt Recovery Tribunal-lll, Delhi restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing
with, or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third-party interest with respect of the hypothecated
assets/immovable properties of Company untll further orders. The company Is contesting the matter and has flled
its reply before DRT-Il, Delhi. The next date of hearing is 18 Aug 2023. Further the Lead Bank has filed petition
before DRT-lIl, New Delhi under section 19(4) of the Act. The Company is contesting the matter. The next date of
hearing is yst o be updated. The company has filed an appeal against the honourable DRT-lII, Delhi PO order
befors henourable DRAT-, Delhi. The honourable DRAT-|, Delhi accepted the petition of the company, and granted
relief as per the petition on its hearing and accordingly the pestition was disposed off.

(8) In reference to Note no. 28 read with Note no. 38 of the Balance Sheet which explains the management's
assessment of impairment of assets due to COVID 19 pandemic situations. As per the assessment of the
management, the recoverable amount of assets is higher than it carrying value and hence no impairment of assets
needs to be recorded in the financial statements.

(9} In refarence to Note no. 16{c) to the consolldated financlal statement the Banks have classifled the company's
accounts as Non-Performing asset and served recall Notice under section 13(2} & 1.3(4) of The Securitization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002.

(10) In reference to Note no. 42 to the consolidated financial statement provident fund amounting Rs 0.30 lacs could
not deposited due to technical reasons. The amount along with interest will be depositad.

{11) In reference o Note no. 43 to the financial statement, Company’s Rice manufacturing unit is not running up fo its
full capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.

(12) In reference to Note no. 41 corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/irearranged, wherever
necessary to confirm to current year classification.

Our opinion is not medified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters.

Key audit mattars are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financlal statements of the curment perlod. These matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financlal
statements as a whole, and In forming our opinlon thereen, and we do not provide a separate opinlon on these matters.
In addition, the matters described in the “basis for qualified opinion” and “emphasis of matter” paragraph are by their
nature are key audit matters.

53
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Responsiblity of Management’'s and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolldated Financlal
Statements

Tha Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Saction 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
{"the Act") with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind A€ financial statements that give a true and fair
view af the financial position, financial performance including other comprehansive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendad, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provislons of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detacting
frauds and other imegularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policles; making Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statoment, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concem, disclosing, as application, matters related to going concern and using the going cencem basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company ar to cease operations, or has no realistic
altemative but to do so.

Thus, board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our cbjectives are to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud er error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatornents can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Report on othar Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companles {Audlitor's Report) Order, 2020 Issued by the Central Govarnment of Indla In terms
of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in
the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act;, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
wore naecessary for the purpeses of our audit; except as stated In para under the head "Basls for Qualifled Cpinlon®.

b} Except for the affects/possible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Cpinion™ paragraph above,
in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

¢) The consolldated financial statement dealt within the report are In agreement with the books of account and return;

d) Except for the effects/possible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph, in our
opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 af
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules;

e) The matters described in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion® paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the Company.

f) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31%, 2023, from being appointed as a director in tarms of Section
164(2) of the Act;

g) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report In “Annaxure A", and

5
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h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinien and tfo the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

l. The Company has disclosed the Impact of pending litigatiens on Its financlal position In Its financlal statements.
Refer Note 36 to the financlal statements;

. Except as matter described under “basls for quallfied oplnlon" and “Emphasls of matter” paragraph, the
company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses,
if any, an long-term contracts including derivative contracts- Refer Note 34 and 35 to the financial statements;

iii. There has baen no delay in transferring amounts, required o be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.
Place: Delhi For M/s N.C. Raj & Associates
Date: 29-05-2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 23088636BGUBEF7509 Firm Reg. No. 002249N
Sd/-
(CA. Sanjay Garg)
Partner
M.No. 088636

Annexure-A to the Auditor's report (Referred to In our report of even date)
The Annaxurs referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company on the consolidated financial
statemeant for the year ended 31%t March, 2023, we report that:

i In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intanglble assets.

(b} The Company has a pregram of physical veriflcation of Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets
at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the title deeds of inmovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including right-of-use assets} and
intangible assets during the year.

{s) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder.

{a) The Company has a program of physical verification of inventory at regular intervals which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its inventory. According to the information
and explanations given te us, no material discrepanciss were noticed on such verification.

{b) The Company has not been sancticned working capital limits in excess of T 5 crome, in  aggragate, at any points
of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence
reporting under clause 3{ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnarships or any other parties and hencs, clause (jii) of tha Order is not applicable.

iv. The company has not given any lean, made any investment and provided any security to the parties covered
under section 185 and 186 of the companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

V. According to Information and explanation given to us and on the basls of examination of records, we
understand that the company has recelved advance from customar for supply of goods which has been
outstanding for more than thres hundred and sbxty-five days and fall under the definition of deposit u/s
73 to 76 read with rule framed thereunder. However, the company has not complied with regulation u/s
73 to 76 and rule framed thereunder.
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vi. According to the Information and explanations given to us, the cost records specified by the central Government
under sub section (1} of section 148 of the companies Act have bsen made and maintained by the company.
However, we have not madse the detailed sxamination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:

(s} According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our examination of the
records of the company, the company Is regular in depositing undispirted stafitory dues including
employsss state insurance, Income-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST), Stats
insurance, VAT, PF. ESI, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statufory dues to the appropriate
aurthorily. However, the arrears of the outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year
are due for a period of less than six months from the date, they becomes payable except Provident fund
which Is outstanding as on the last day of the financlal year for more than Six months from the date,
they become payable and amounis to Rs. 0.30 lacs.

(b} According te the information and explanations given to us, there are dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, VAT,
Customs, Excise which has not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of disputes refer to
Note no. 36 of financial statement.

viii. As per the explanations and information given to us there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded
Income that have been sumrendered or disclosed as Income during the year In the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1861).

a) O©n the basis of Audit procedures and as per the information gathered and explanations received, we are of
the opinion that the company has defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowing to bank and financial
institutions. As per the below details:

Sr. No. | Name of Bank Total dafanll_r::hn;t):unt'(ﬂs in Maxim:u:l y;I)olay {in
1 Indian Bank {Allahabad Bank) 14,834.85 1823
2 Bank of India 7,216.686 1824
3 ICICI Bank Limited 5,928.79 1732
4 IDBI Bank Limited 4,502.50 1804
5 Punjab National Bank 28,840.31 1828
B State Bank of India 2,965.58 1825
7 Punjab National Bank — Corporate Guarantee 3,828.12 1095
Grand Total 68,316.61
* Amount of Interest not provided In books of accounts
* Also the amount of Rs. 4009.10 lakhs deposited in No lien account of PNB against the OTS amount of Rs. 25000
lakhs Is not adjusted with above respective balances.

b) As per the Information and explanation given to us, Punjab Natlonal Bank (PNB) had declared the company
as wilful defaulter. However the company/ Diractors had submitted the resclution plan for outstanding duas
of the bank, which the consortium led by PNB had sanctioned.

¢) Term loans are applled for the purpose for which the loans are obtalned and hence reporting on clause
3{ix){c) is not applicable.

d) The company has not raised fund on short term basis and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order
Is not applicable.

a) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of Its subsidlaries.

fy The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of any securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint venturaes or associate companias and hence reporting on clause 3{ix}{f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments} during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

{h) During the year, the Company has not made any preferehtial allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(b} of the Order is
not applicable. @
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(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b} No repert under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Govemment, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(c} No whistle-blower complaints were received by the auditor during the year and hence, reporting under clause
3(xi)}{c) of the Ordar is not applicable.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause {xii) of the Crder is not applicable.

Xiii.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related parly iransactions have been
disclosed in the consolidated financial staternants as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (@) The company has an intemnal audit system commensurate the size and nature of its business.
(b} The reports of the internal auditor for the period under audit were considered wherever necessary.

Xv. In our opinion during the yvear the Company has net entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or
persons connected with Its directors and hence provislons of section 192 of the Companles Act, 2013 are not
applicable o the Company.

{a} In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi) (a), {b) and (c) of the Crder is not applicable.
(b} The company is not part of any group. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi} {d) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

Xvii. The Company has not Incurred cash losses during the financlal year covered by cur audit and the Immediately
preceding financial year and hence clause {xvii} is not applicable.

Xviii. There is no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, therefore this clause (xviii} of the Order is not
applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial habilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audlt report Indicating that Company Is not capable of meeting Its llabllitles existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, howevaer, siate that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we nsithar give any guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

XX. The campany has incurred losses during the three immediately preceding financial years and hence, it is not
required to spend any money under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
{xx) of the order is not applicable to the company for the year.

xxi. We did not receive the Audit Reports for the subsidiaries companies, Although the impact of financials of
subsidiaries are not significant in the consolidated financial statements, Thus reporting under clause (i) cannot
be done due to non-availability of Audit Reports.

Place: Delhl For Mi/s N.C. Ra) & Assoclates
Date: 29-05-2023 Charterad Accountants
UDIN: 23088836BGUBEF7509 Firm Reg. No. 002249N

Sdi-

(CA. Sanjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 088636
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Annexure — B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i) of Sub-ssction 3 of Saction 143 of the Companiss
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31st
March, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kohinoor Food Limnited
{herelnafter referred to as “the Holding Company”).

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintalning Internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reperting criteria established by the helding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nota on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate Intemal financlal controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the imely preparation of rellable financlal Information, as required under the companles Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsiblilty Is to express an oplnlon on the Internal financlal controls over finandial reporting of the Company
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels over Financial
Reporting (“the Guldance Note™) Issued by the ICAI and the Standards of Auditing, Issued by the ICAIl and deemed to
be prescribad under saction 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls, both issuad by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain the reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Cur audit Involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the adequacy of the Intemal financlal controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectivenass. Qur audit of intemal financial controls over financial
reporting includsed obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a materlal weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ermror.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have cbtalned Is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit opinlon
on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company.

Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financlal Reporting

A company’s intemmal financial control over financial reporiing is a process designed fo provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
Includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertaln to the malintenance of records that, In reasonable detall,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to parmit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
acconrdance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effact on the financial statements.

Inherant Limitatlons of Internal Financlal Controls Over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reperting, including the passibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaternents due to error or fraud may oceur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting te future periods
are subject to the rigk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may bacome inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basls of Quallfied Opinlon
We draw our attention to paragraph of “Basis for qualified epinion” of our main report and the same 1o be read with our
comments as stated below:

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following material weakness has
been identifiad as at 31* March, 2023. @
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1. The Company did not have an appropriate internal control system for
(a) Customer acceptance;
(b) Customer credit evaluation;
(c) Establishing customer credit limit for sales;
(d) Acceptance of goods by customers and transfer of sk & reward at the time of sales.

This could potentially result in the company recognising revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of
ultimate collection.

2. The Company did not have any intemal control system for follow-up/recovery/adjustment of old outstanding
receivables and payables including balance confirmation and reconciliation.

A ‘Material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiency, in intemal financial control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual financial statement will
not be prevented or detective on timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, axcept for the effects/possible effects of basis of qualified opinion, the holding Company has maintainad,
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such intemal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31* March, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Contrals Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2023 consclidated financial statements of the group and these material
weaknesses does not affect our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the company.

Place: Dalhi For M/s N.C. Raj & Associales
Date: 29-05-2023 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 23088636BGUBEF7509 Firm Reg. No. 002248N

Sd/-

(CA. Banjay Garg)

Partner

M.No. 088836
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31* MAR 2023 (Rs.in Lacs)
As at As at
PARTICULARS NOTE 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
A. ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 15,909.00 16,512.62
Capital Work in Progress 3 8.27 -
Financial Assets
Other Non Current Assets 4 733.18 629.72
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5 30347 230.91
Total 16,953.91 17,373.25
Current Assets
Inventories 6 748.02 708.98
Financial Assets
Investments 7 - 11.26
Trade Receivables 8 1,242.28 1,126.24
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 179.65 143.29
Other Financial Assets 10 3.70 5.52
Other Current Assets " 2,184.85 2,166.94
Total 4,358.51 4.162.23
TOTAL ASSETS 21,31242 21,535.48
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 3,707.15 3,707.15
Other equity 13 (55,453.27) (55,045.25)
Total (51,746.12) (51,338.09)
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities 14 261.73 295.11
Borrowings 15 __ 7960 8142
Provisions 341.33 382.53
Total
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 16 70,438.44 70,707 .42
Trade Payables 17 784.44 832.68
Other Financial Liabilities 18 820.17 424.78
Other Current Liabilities 19 65212 503.84
Provisions 20 2203 223
Total 72,717.21 72,491.05
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,31242 21,535.48
The Accompanying Notes form an integral part of
the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date attached. for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary

©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR 2023 (Rs. in Lacs)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS NOTE 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 21 8,254.21 9,856.55
Other Income 22 170.93 491.80
Total Income 8,425.14 10,348.34
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 23 2,270.95 5,642.39
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 24 929.75 799.77
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods
WIP and Stock in Trade 25 (100.08) 68.61
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 586.81 594.43
Finance Costs 27 1,799.29 67.50
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 3 671.40 772.59
Impairment of Assets 28 - 184.90
Other Expenses 29 3,426.92 2,770.22
Total Expenses 9,585.03 10,900.40
Profit Before Exceptional items and Tax (1,159.89) (552.06)
Add : Exceptional ltems-Income 780.80 -
Less : Prior Period Expenses 107.07 -
Profit Before Tax (486.16) (552.06)
Tax Expenses
Current Tax - -
Income Tax for Prior Years - -
Deferred Tax (72.56) 79.81
Profit/(Loss) for the year (413.60) (631.86)
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 5.79 9.88
Fair value of Investments through OCI 1.50
Income tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 5.79 11.37
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (407.82) (620.49)
EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE (Face value of * 10 each)
Basic (In Rs.) 33 (1.10) (1.67)
Diluted (In Rs.) 33 (1.10) (1.67)

The Accompanying Noles form an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2023 (Rs. in Lacs)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED
PARTICULARS 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax (486.16) (552.06)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 671.40 772.59
Finance cost 1,799.29 67.50
Interest income (0.96) (0.66)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale/Deletion of Fixed Assets (0.05) (0.49)
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy (51.36 (47.58)
Impairment loss on Investment in Subsidiary - 184.90
Bad Debts/Provision for Bad Debts - 2194
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,932.15 446.13
Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase ) in Inventories (39.04) 3,033.61
Decrease/(Increase ) in Trade Receivables (116.04) 7,287.94
Decrease/(Increase ) in other Receivables (119.57) 2,086.33
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade payables (48.24) (2,340.06)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables 541.36 (2,959.96)
Un realized Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss (0.21) 353.50
Cash generated from operations 2,150.41 7,907.49
Net Cash from operating activities 2,150.41 7,907.49
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Sale of property, plant and equipment's (75.99) 597.57
Sale of Investments 11.26 (184.90)
Interest Received 0.96 0.66
Income from Key Man Insurance Policy 51.36 4758
Net cash from Investment activities (12.41) 460.91
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/( Decrease) in short term borrowings (268.98) (8,235.37)
Increase/( Decrease) in Long term borrowings (33.38) (75.29)
Interest paid (1,799.29) (67.50)
Net cash flow from financing activities (2,101.65) (8,378.16)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 36.36 (9.76)
- Cash & Cash equivalent at beginning of the year 143.29 153.05
- Cash & Cash equivalent at end of the year 179.65 143.29
36.36 (9.76)

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N

Sd/-
SANJAY GARG
PARTNER

Membership No: 088636

Faridabad
29-May-2023

Sd/-
SATNAM ARORA
Jt. Mg. Director

DIN NO. 00010667

Sd/-
Chashu Arora
C.FO

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
GURNAM ARORA
Jt. Mg. Director

DIN NO. 00010731

Sd/-
Deepak Kaushal
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity Shars Capital
{Rs. In Lacs}
Particulars Na. Shares Amount
Balance as at 1st Aprdl, 2021 37,071,530 3,707.15
Changs In equity share capiial during the year -
Balence as af 31st March, 2022 37,071,530 3,707.15
Change In equity share capltal during the year - -
Balances as at 318t March, 2023 37,071,530 3,707.15
B. Other Equity
Particulars Capital Resorve  Socuritiss Premium  Retained sarnings Revaluation Surplus  Foreign Currency Total
Account Translation Reserve
Balsnce as at 1st Aprl, 2021 151721 15,757.23 {86,170.79) 15,885.19 {16127 (52,976.28)
Profit for the year (631.86) (631.88)
Other Comprehensive Incoms for the Year 1137 11.37
Total Comprshensiva Income for the yaar (620.49) (620.49)
Exchangs differences on farelgn cumency
Trarwlation of Forsign Operations 207.18 2718
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 1,517.21 15,757.23 {86,799.28) 15,885.19 {1,405.59)  (53,389.59)
Proflt for the year (#13.80) {413,80)
Other Comprahensive Incoms for the Year 578 5.79
Total Comprshsnsiva Income for the year (407.82) {407.82)
Exchange differencas on foreign cumency
Translation of Forelgn Operations {0.21) {0.21)
Balance ax at 31st March, 2023 1,617.21 15,751.23 {B7,207.10) 15,885.19 {1,405.80) {55,453.28)
Annexure to our Report of Date for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
1. Basls of Preparation of Consolldated Financlal Statsment

These Financial Statements have besn prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {hereinafter referred to as
the 'Ind AS") as nofified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 ofthe
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared by the company under Ind AS for the first time,
with 01-04-2016 as date of transition.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on going concern basis and on actruals basis
unless otherwise stated. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

The financial statements of Kohinoor Feods Limited {*hereinafter referred to as company/ holding company/ parent company”)
together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Group”) are consclidated to form Consolidated Financial
Statements (CFS). Consclidated Financial Statements consolidate the financial statements of KFL and its WhollyOwned
Subsidiaries listed below

Wholly Owned Subsldlary(WOS}  Country of Incorporation
Sachdeva Brothers Pyt Ltd India
Kohinoor Foods USAInc, USA

The parent company has not received audited financial statement from its Joint venture company, Rich Rice Raisers LLC. Rich
Rice Raisers LLC has closed its operations. KFL has 25% sharsholding in this Joint Venture. The Management considers that the
parent company is not in position to exercise control over this entity. Hence the results of Joint venture company Rich Rice
Raisers LLC are notconsidered in the Consolidated Financial Staterents.

2. SignificantAccounting Policies
{a) Princlples of Consolidation:
The financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding

together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances
and intra-group fransactions in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)21 “Consolidated Financial Statements”.

The results and financial position of all the Group Companies are translated into the reporting currency as follows:

(i} CurrentAssets and Liabilities for sach balance sheet presented are franslated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet

(i} Income and expensesfor eachincome statement are translated at average exchange rates.

(iiy All resulting exchange differences are accumulated in forsign cumrency translation reserve until the disposal of net
investment.
{b} UseofEstimates and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires managsment to make certain assumptions and estimates that affect the
reported amount, the Financial Statements and Notes thereto. Difference between actual results and estimates are
recognized in the period in which they materialize.

{c} Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group has adopted revaluation model for land & building. All the assets belonging to thege classes of assels are carried
atrevalued amount being its fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent depreciation. The Group shall carry out the
revaluation ofthese assets periodically after every 3 fo S years.

Property, Plant & Equipment under all other classes are stated at cost of acquisition/installation inclusive of freight, duties,
and taxes and all incidental expenses and net of accumulated depreciation. In respect of major projects involving
construction, related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalized. Expenses capitalized also
include applicable borrowing costs. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camrying amount or recognized as a
separate asset, as appropriate, onlywhen it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will fiow to the
entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

0
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Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
“Capital work-in-progress” and stated at the amount spent up to the date of balance sheet.

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition.
Depreclation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on written down value method, in terms of useful life of the Assets
as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013. The depreciation rates which are different from the principal rates
specifisd in Schedule-l| are as follows: -

Tarpaulin 100%p.a.
Woaoden & Plastic Crates 100% p.a.
Financlal Instruments

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measuremant

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through profitor loss, are adjusted to the fair value
on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amoriised cost

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Afinancial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
datss fo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets atfair value through profitor loss (FVTPL)
Afinancial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Other Equity Investments

Equity investments are measured at fair value. Investments which are not held for rading purpoeses and where the Company
has exercised the option to classify the investment as Fair Value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI'"), all fair
value changes on the investment are recognised in OCI.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabiliies are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly atiributable cost. Fees of recurring
nature are directly recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement

Finaneial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the Balance Shest date, the camying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

Derivative financlal Instruments

Darivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option confracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative coniract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when
they arise.
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Fairvalue measurement

The Group classifies the fair valus of its financial instruments, FVTPL and FVTOCI, in the following hierarchy, based on the
inputs used in their valuation:

Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the balance
sheetdate.

Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
fechniques using observable market data. Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valuation
models based on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar
instruments and use of comparable am's length transactions.

Level 3 - The fair value of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that
are notbased on ohservable markst data (unobservable inputs).

Dividend to Equity Sharsholders

Dividend to Equity Shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the pericd in which
the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.

Inventorles

Raw materials, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stores and spares are
carried at cost.

Cost is determined on FIFO (First in First ouf) basis for raw material, and on weighted average method for all other
categories of inventories. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories
toits present location and condition, where applicable, include appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity.

Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and which are
subjecttoan insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discount, rebate, retumns and value
added taxes.The revenueis recognized when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each ofthe activities.

Revenue fromsale of goods is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards of ewnership in the goods are transferred
1o the buyer as perthe terms of the contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of
revenue ¢an be measured reliably. On recognition of revenue the Company retains no effective control of the goods
fransferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the
consideration thatwill be derived from the sale of goods.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. Revenue in respect of Insurance / others claims,
Commission, etc. is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

Revenuein respect of sale of licenses, duty drawback and otherincentives is recognized on realization basis.
Research and Development

Research expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incumred. Development expenditure is capitalised
only if the costs can be reliably measured, future economic bensfits are probable, the product is technically feasible and the
Company has the infent and the resources to complete the project. Development assets are amortised based on the
estimated useful life, asappropriate.

Employee Benefits

Confributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis. Present liability
for future payment of gratuity is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at the batance sheet date and the expenses is
charged to the statement of profit and loss.

{m) ForelgnCurrency Transactions

©
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Transacticns in foreign currencies are recognized at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised gains
and losses on setlement of foreign currency transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange ratesand the
resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the
exchange rate prevalent at the date of ransaction.

Government Grant

Grants from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all altached conditions. Grant received from govemment towards property, plant &equipment's
acquired/constructed by the Company is deducted out of gross value of the asset acquired/ constructed and depreciation is
charged accordingly.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the group incurs in connection with the bormowing of funds
and interest relating to other financial liabilities. Bormowing costs also include exchange differences to the extent regarded as
an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Interest and other borrewing costs attributable to qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of such assets till such time the
assets are ready foruse. Otherinterest and borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profitand Loss.

Income tax
Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with applicable
Income Teoclaw.

Deferred Tax:

Deferrad tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the tax are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Ceferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the camy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax [osses can be utilised.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates fo items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Leases

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a correspending lease
liability for all lease arangements in which itis a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short term leases)
and low value leases. For these short-term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprizes the inifial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measurad at cost less accumulated depraciation and impairment logses. ROU assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted uging the interest rate implicit in the lease.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. A disclosure of contingent liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that will probably not require outflow of resources or where a reliable
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estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclesed in the Financial
Statements.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Expected credit osses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to iniial recognition other than financials assets in
FVTPLcategory.

Impalrment of Non-Financlal Assets

An assessment is made at each Balance Shest date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such Indication exists; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of assets. If such recoverable amount of the assets
or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets belong is less than its camying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in
the statement of Profit & Loss. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the assets is refiected at recoverable amount.

Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are digclosed separately in the financial statements where it is necessary to do so to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the company. These are material items of income or expense that have to be
shown separately due to their nature orincidence.

Earnings per share

The Consclidated statement of Profit and Loss presents basic and diluted eamings per share data for the ordinary shares of
parent company. Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atfributable to ordinary sharsholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

{w) Events afterthe reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period. The
financial statements are adjusted for such events before authorisation for issue.

Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of condifions that arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-
adjusting events after the reporting date are not accounted, butdisclosed.
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(Rs. In Lacs)

As at

31-March-2023

31-March-2022

4. Other Non-Current Assets

(Unsecured, considered goods)

Security Deposit 84.50 71.38
Others 648.68 558.34
733.18 629.72
5. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
Disallowance under Income tax act, 1961 119.70 31.48
Related to fixed assets 183.77 199.43
303.47 230.91
6. Inventories
(As taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Raw Material 116.02 88.31
Work in Progress 99.59 79.36
Finished Goods 112.38 318.19
Packing Materials 420.03 223.13
748.02 708.98
a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net reliasble value.
b) Finished goods includes the Stock in transit.
7. Current Investments
Other Investment
Investment in Un-quoted Fund
Balanced Plan Fund- Canara-HSBC-OBC - 11.26
(56496.16 Unit of Balanced Plus Fund issued under
Canara-HSBC-OBC, Life Insurance Platinum Plus Plan
8. Trade Receivables - 11.26
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 376.67 17.37
Others 865.61 1,008.88
1,242.28 1,126.24
Ageing of Trade Receivables as af 31st March, 2023:-
_ Outstanding for following pariods from due date of payment
Particulars Lass than & Monthe-1 12 Years 2-3 Yoars More than 3 Tolal
§ Morthe Yoar Yoars
) Unidisputed Trade Receivables- Considered Good 865,61 50 - - $00.64
[{i) Undisputed Trads Recaivables- Considered Doubiful - 745 6042 - 7687
[y Dsputed Trade Recelvables- Consldered Good - - - -
({¥} Disputad Tradla Recaivables- Consiered Doubiful pIZN] - - pi{ Vi
Agelng of Trada Recelvables as at 31st March, 2022.-
Ovtstanding for follewing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Lesa than @ Wonths-1 12 Yoars 23 Yean More than 3 Total
6 Morths Yoar Yoars
7} Undsputed Trade Reoefvables- Consigered Good 100888 W : - - 100850 |
i) Undisputed Trads Receivables- Considered Doubful - - 6342 8.18 - T.60
if) Disputed Trade Receivables- Considerad Good - - - -
t Disputd Trade Recsivabies- Consiiersd Doutsful - - -
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(Rs. In Lacs)
As at 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
9. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 95.64 79.68
Cash in Hand 81.52 61.13
Fixed deposits as Margin Money with Banks 2.49 2.49
179.65 143.29
10. Other Financial Assets (Current)
Staff Advance 0.79 2.61
Interest accrued on bank deposits 2.08 2.29
Advance to Related Party 0.84 0.61
3.70 5.52
11 Other Current Assets
(Unsecured, Considered good)
Tax paid is against pending Appeal 1,327.21 1,327.21
TDS Receivable 2022-23 87.77 -
Advance against Purchases 178.91 33.70
MAT Credit Entittement 464.87 464.87
Pre-paid Expenses 13.22 13.10
Others 112.86 328.05
2,184.85 2,166.94

12. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised Share Capital
75,000,000 (Previous year 75,000,000) 7,500.00 7,500.00

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed And Paid-up Capital
37,071,530 (Previous year 37,071,530) 3,707.15 3,707.15
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

3,707.15 3,707.15
a) The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below:
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 37,071,530 37,071,530
Number of Equity Shares issued during the year
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 37,071,530 37,071,530
b) Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company :
As ot 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
No. of Shares Sharshokling | No. of Shares Sharshelding |
(1) |Jugal Kishore Arora 1,053,484 2.84% 8,653,484 17.85%
(2) |satnam Arom 5,748,181 15.51% 5,988,823 16.16%
(3) |Gumam Arora 6,280,204 18.97% 6,708,889 1810%
{4) |AL Dahra Intemational Inveatments LLC 7,048,308 19.01% 7,048,308 19.01%

¢) Tems/Rights attached to equity shares

The Compary has only one class of equity shares heving & par value of Rs. 104~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share
and has equal dividend right. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The Dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject
to shareholders approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquitation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitied to receive the remaining assets of the Company in propertion b the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

@
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(Rs.In Lacs)

As at

31- March-2023

31-March-2022

d} Details of promoters holding in the Company

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Promoters Name
No.ofShares | ~oT®0ll | o ofShares | ' oftotal
shares shares
Gumam Arora 6,269,204 18.97% 6,708,889 18.10%
Satnam Arora 5,748,191 15.51% 5,968,923 16.18%
| Jugal Kishore Arora 1,053,484 2.84% 6,653,484 17.95%
Total 13,091,879 35.32% 19,351,206 52.21%
(Rs. In Lacs)
As at 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
13. OTHER EQUITY
Capital Reserve
Closing Balance 1,517.21 1,517.21
Securities Premium Account 15,757.23 15,757.23
Revaluation Surplus 15,885.19 15,885.19
Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet (86,799.28) (86,178.79)
Profit/(Loss) during the year (413.60) (631.86)
Other Comprehensive Income 5.79 11.37
(87,207.10) (86,799.28)
Freign Currency Translation Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet (1,405.59) (1,612.77)
Add :- Exchange fluctation during the year (0.21) 207.18
(88,612.90) (1,405.59)
(55,453.27) (55,045.25)

Nature and Purpose of Reserves

i  CapitalReserve

Capital Reserve had been created consequentto forfeiture of Application Money on Share Warrants.
ii. Securities PremiumAccount
Securities Premium Account had been created consequent to issue of shares at premium. These reserves can be utilised in

accordance with Section 52 of Companies Act, 2013.

iii Revaluation Surplus
Revaluation surplus was created on revaluation of Land & Building as on 01-04-2016.
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(Rs. In Lacs)
As at 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
14. Borrowings (Non-Current)
Unsecured Loans
Loan from Other Parties 261.73 295.11
261.73 295.11
15 Provisions (Non-Current)
Provision for Employee Benefit
Provision for Gratuity 79.60 87.42
79.60 87.42
16 Borrowings (Current)
Secured
Loan repayable on Demand from Banks 64,295.20 64,334.52
Unsecured
Loan from Directors 6,143.24 6,372.91
70,438.44 70,707.42

a) Loan repayable on Demand from Banks are working capital loans secured by hypothecation of Inventory, book debts
and other current assets of the company, both present and future and the first charge on fixed assets of the company
(excluding of specific assets chargedto Term lending Banks).

b) The balances are subjectto confirmation and reconciliation.
c) DefaultinRepayment of Loan
There are defaultin repayment of bank loans from March-2018 onwards.

The Banks have classified the company's accounts as Non Performing asset and served Notice under section 13(2) &
13(4) of The Securitization and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002..

The lead banker, Punjab National Bank has filed petition under Section 7 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016,
before the Honbl'e court of NCLT, Chandigarh Bench, which is notyet admitted.

The company has not provided interest to the extent of Rs. 11,567.66 Lacs for current year ( Rs. 10,588.35 Lacs for
previousyear)and Rs.45,646.57 Lacs upto 31-03-2023 (previous year Rs. 34,078.91 Lacs) on bank loans whichwere
classified as non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has
not provided interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 247.28 Lacs for the year ended 2023 and Rs. 661.08
Lacs for the period upto 31-03-2023 on accountofrevoked corporate gurantee of subsidiary in USA.

d) The company has received Ex-parte Interim Order dated 25-06-2020 from Debt Recovery Tribunal-Ill, Delhiinthe matter
of ICICI Bank Vs. Kohinoor Foods Limited restraining the company from transferring/ alienating or otherwise dealing
with, or disposing off or encumbering or creating any third party interest with respect of the hypothecated
assets/immovable properties of Company until further orders. The company is contesting the matter and taking
necessary action.

e) The company had issued a corporate guarantee in favor of PNB Hongkong(now PNB-Dubai) for loan granted by PNB
Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai) to its wholly own subsidiary Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. PNB Hongkong (now PNB-Dubai)
has invoked the corporate guarantee on default made by Kohinoor Foods USA Inc. The company has recognised the
lossofRs. 3,928.12 Lacs (previous year Rs. 3,630.93 Lacs onaccount of this liability.
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(Rs. In Lacs)
As at 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
17 Trade Payable
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Due to Others 78444 832.68
784 44 832.68
Agelng of Trade Payeble as af 31st March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from dus date
Particulars of payment Total
h’;::“ 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ";?‘:,:"
() MSME - - - -
(i} Others _ 230.17 403.66 - 150.61 78444
iiii; Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
v} Disputed dues- rs - - - - -
Agalng of Trads Payable as st 31st March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date
Particulars of payment Total
el | t2vers | 23vens | Mo
() MSME — - - -
(i} Others 0014 M0.12 19242 832.68
(I} Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(W) Dlspurted dues- Ofhers - - - - -
Company has not classified the trade payables, dus to msme, since the vendors have not submittad any document related to msme certification.
18 Other Financial Liabilities (Current)
Current maturities of long-term debt 29.60 25.16
Employees Benefits Payable 4013 60.06
Other Payables 390.88 339.56
Interest Payable 359.57 -
820.17 424.78
19 Other Current Liabilities
Advance received from customers 570.82 426.96
Statutory Liabilities 14.01 15.83
Other Liabilities 67.29 61.05
652.12 503.84
20 Provisions (Current)
Provision for gratuity 21.21 21.56
Income Tax 0.82 0.76
2203 22.32
21 Revenues From Operations
Sales of Products 7,637.34 9,577.99
Other Operating Revenues 616.87 278.56
8,254.21 9,856.55
a) Sales of Products
Rice 1,885.51 7,208.66
Foods 5,751.82 2,369.33
7,637.34 9,577.99
b) Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap 34.06 66.97
Income from Rice Processing 572.54 192.80
Duty Drawback/ Sale of Licenses 10.27 18.78
616.87 278.56

@
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(Rs. In Lacs)

For the year ended

31-March-2023

31-March-2022

22 Other Income

Income from Key man Insurance Policy
Interest Income

Commission Income

Miscellaneous Income

Profit on Sale of Assets

Rebate & Discount Received

23 Cost of Material Consumed
Rice
Raw Material for Foods

24 Purchase of Traded Goods
Non-Basmati Rice
Foods
ITC Reversal on Exempt ltem

25 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work in Progress and Stock in Trade
Opening Inventories
Closing Inventories

26 Employee Benefit Expenses
Staff Salaries
Gratuity
Bonus
Staff Welfare
Employer's Contribution to P.F.&ESI

27 Finance Cost

Interest Expense®
Bank Charges
Borrowing Cost

51.36 4758
0.9 0.66
80.19 -
38.37 56.05
0.05 0.49

- 387.01

170.93 491.80
750.95 5,011.99
1,520.00 630.40
2,270.95 5642.39
890.57 731.83
19.57 -
19.62 67.94
929.75 799.77
92.83 161.44
192.91 92.83
(100.08) 68.61
505.62 520.26
17.86 21.75
10.88 10.39
30.86 2151
21.60 20.53
586.81 594 43
1,782.66 37.08
16.63 6.61

- 23.80
1,799.29 67.50

The company has not provided interest during current year to the extent of Rs. 11,567.67 Lacs (previous year Rs.10,588.34 Lacs) on bank
loans which were classified as non-performing assets during the year from the date they were declared NPA. Moreover, the company has not
provided interest during the current year to the extent of Rs. 661.08 Lacs for the period upto 31-03-2023 on account of revoked corporate

guarantee of KFLUSA subsidiary.
28 Impairment of Assets
Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

184.90

184.90

The company had recognised the impairment loss in respectof Investmentin its wholly owned subsidiary , "Indo European Foods Limited."

29 OtherExpenses

a) Manufacturing Expenses
Loading and Unloading Charges
Packing Materials Consumed
Wages
Processing Charges
Repair to Machinery
Power & Fuel
Brokerage & Commission

12.69 33.04
1,550.29 867.94
311.11 140.84
33.61 40.11
39.34 72.54
257.51 190.67

- 0.35
2,204.55 1,345.49
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(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year ended 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
b) Administrative Expenses

Payment to Auditors
-Statutory Audit Fee 10.66 10.66
-Tax Audit Fee 2.50 250
-Other Matters 1.70 214
Postage, Telegram and Telephone 18.66 15.37
General Expenses 120.27 101.38
Legal and Professional Charges 97.34 62.80
Electricity Expenses 8.76 9.17
Rates and Taxes 14.73 44.49
Other Taxes Paid - 1.24
Vehicle Maintenance 24.80 23.86
Printing and Stationery 3.83 5.92
Fumigation Expenses 7.05 18.79
Insurance Charges 18.98 18.70
Conveyance 9.97 5.74
Membership & Subscription 4.52 3.87
Traveling Expenses (Directors) 24.41 0.27
Traveling Expenses (Others) 36.41 29.96
Research & Development 8.74 9.59
G.S.T Expenses 2.21 -
Staff Recruitment Expenses 0.05 217
Bad Debts/ Balance Written off 46.26 21.94
Rent 1.41 1.18
Repairs to Building 62.71 7212
Repairs to Others 29.07 31.01
Foreign Exchange Loss 236.89 112.69
791.92 607.54

c) Selling & Distribution Expenses

Advertisement and Publicity 1.39 1.41
Business Promotion 61.40 31.76
Rebate & Discount 6.08 6.57
Ocean Freight 32.07 436.21
Expenses Against Export 21.95 24.77
Brokerage & Commission on Sales 10.87 10.25
Clearing and Forwarding 296.69 306.20
430.44 817.18
3,426.92 2,770.22
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(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year ended 31-March-2023 31-March-2022
30. Segment Information required as per IND AS 108
(a) Information about products and services
Rice 1,885.51 7,208.66
Foods 5,751.82 2,369.33
7,637.34 9,577.99
(a) Information about Geographical Area
Asia 2,330.46 5,488.66
Americas 5,121.30 2,056.49
Europe 3842 98.58
Africa - 222.21
Middle East 14716 1,712.05
7,637.34 9,577.99
Non Cuurent Assets
Property , plant and Equipment Located in
India 15,909.00 16,512.62
15,909.00 16,512.62

31. Disclosures under IND AS-24 on "Related Party Disclosures" :
Listofrelated parties

i) Wholly Owned Subsidiaries of the Company
- Sachdeva Brothers Pvt Ltd. India
- Kohinoor Foods USA Inc.,

ii) Joint Ventures
- Rich Rice Raisers Factory LLC.- Dubai

i) Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora Chairman

Mr. Satnam Arora Jt.Mg.Director

Mr. Gurnam Arora Jt.Mg.Director

Mr. Nitin Arora Son of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora
Mr. Amit Arora Son of Mr. Satnam Arora

Mr. Sumit Arora Son of Mr. Satnam Arora

Mr. Ankush Arora Son of Mr.Gumam Arora

Mr. Nishant Arora Son of Mr.Gumam Arora

iv) Enterprise over which key managerial personnel exercise significant influence
- Satnam Overseas (Exports) - Partnership Firm of Promoter/Directors
- Adonis No.1 Beauty Clinic LLP
- Satnam International Pvt. Ltd.
- Satnam Haegens Ltd.
- Adhiraj Buildcon LLP
- QVC Foods Private Limited
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The following transactions were carried cut with related parfies In the ordinary course of Business during the year*

{Rs. In Lacs}
Entarprises over
Key Management which Key
Personnel and thelr Managamant
Relatives Porsonnel exerclse
significant influence
Transactions during the year
Sals of products 326.83
{308.03)
Purchase of products -
{3.90)
Advance Received - 55.24
- {14.21)
Loan from Directors 1,017.84
{2,924.14)
Repayment of Direcior's Loan 1,247.3
{575.46)
[Balances outstanding at the year end:=-
Loan from Directors 6,143.20
{6,372.87)
Advanca From Customers - 55.24
. {14.21)

*Figuresin( ) arerelatedtoprevious year.
32 Disclosures under INDAS-17 on "Leases" :

321 There were no operating lease agreements in force and no future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022. Nolease rentals were paid for operating lease during current year.

32.2 There were no finance lease agreements in force and no future lease rent commitments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022. Noleaserentals were paid towards finance lease during currentyear.
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33 Eaming Per Share (EPS)

For the year ended 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
i) [Total Comprehensiva Incorme for the year attributable to Equity Shareholders (407.82) (620.49)
i) Weighted Average numbsar of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating
Basic EPS 37,071,530 37,071,530
iy |Welghted Average Potsntlal Equity Shares - -
iv) Total Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for
calculating Diluted EPS 37,071,530 37,071,530
v) |Basic Eaming Per Share {1.10) {1.67)
vl) |Diluted Eaming Per Share {1.10) {1.67)
vii) |Face Value per Equity Share 10 10
Calculation Welghted Average number of Equity Shares
For the year ended 31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022
Nos. of Days 365 365
Nos. of Shares 37,071,530 37,071,530
total nos. of days 365 365
Woeighted Average number of sharas 37,071,530 37,071,530

34. Disclosures under IND AS 37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", in respect of Provisions

Provision relating to Opening balance Created during Withdrawals Closing
as at the year Balance as at
1 April 2022 31 March 2023
Gratuity 108.98 12.07 20.24 100.81
108.98 12.07 20.24 100.81
(Rs. In Lacs)
For the year ended 31-March-2023 31-March-2022

35. Other disclosures as per Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
CIF Value of Imports
- Capital Goods
- Raw Material Purchase
- Packaging Material

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On accrual basis)
- Traveling

- Business Promotion

- Legal & Professional charges

- Membership & Subscription

- Conveyance

- Postage & Telegram

- Commission on Export Sales

- Expenses against Export

Earning in Foreign Exchange
- FOB Value of Export of Goods

1

- 10.23

168.86 137.67
1,055.67 269.93
1,224.53 417.83
19.96 4.59
13.69 -
1.27 3.00
0.12 -
0.94 -

- 0.11

9.98 7.70

- 1.73

45.96 17.13
6,634.88 6,019.27
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(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

31-March-2023

31-March-2022

36 Contingent Liabilities not provided for

A Claims against the company , not acknowledged as debt

i Income Tax 10,322.02 10,322.02
i Sales Tax - Delhi 122.00 122.00
i VAT-Haryana 740.07 740.07
iv Excise & Taxation Department, Punjab 455.82 455.82
v Excise Duty 42.91 4291
vi  Service Tax 9.12 9.12
vii - Vat-Delhi 963.94 963.94
viii Legal Cases against the Company 22.63 22.63
B Bank Guarantees 19.75 19.75
C Surety Bonds issued to Govt. Agencies under EPCG/Adv License scheme  2,082.34 2,082.34

Nature of contingent liabilities and other particulars are as given below:-
| Following appeals are lying pending for hearing before the CIT(A), New Delhi/ Income Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi /
Hon'ble Delhi High Court against the tax demand raised in impugned Income Tax Assessment Orders as per details given

below :-
AY Tax Interest Total
2002-03 to 2008-09 298.03 106.00 404.03

2009-10 - - -
2010-11 2,331.25 1,347.86 3,679.11
2011-12 835.77 780.20 1,615.97
201213 1,274.98 1,019.99 2,294.97
2013-14 406.83 264.39 671.21
2014-15 798.05 453.85 1,251.89
2016-17 275.78 129.05 404.84
TOTAL 10,322.02

a) As per the advice received from legal experts and on the basis of merit of the case, there is a high probability that the

b)

aforesaid impugned orders will be set aside and the demand will be deleted. Accordingly, management s of the view that no
provisioninrespectofthe above demandsis required to be made in the books of accounts.

Further to above, for assessment year 2012-13/2014-15/2016-17, We had contested the matterbefore CIT(Appeal), based
on our submission, our appeal was considered, the addition on certain matters were partially allowed in the case of Transfer
Pricing Issue. On Corporate Issue complete addition was allowed to be reversed and thus the addition was nullified. The
appeal effect againstthe order of CIT(Appeal) is awaited for allthree assessment years.

An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 11-08-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 2860.54 Lacs against
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2017-2018 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has
beenraisedbythe department, but, this hasimpacted in the reduction of losses to be carried forward by the above amount.

An appeal has been filed with CIT(A) on 07-12-2021 against an order passed towards addition of Rs. 791.57 Lacs against
transfer pricing adjustment in respect of A.Y 2018-2019 although there is no liability on the company since no demand has
beenraisedbythe department, but, this hasimpacted in the reduction of losses tobe carried forward by the above amount.
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i An appeal before the Sales Tax Commissioner - Appeals, New Delhi is lying pending in respect of Sales Tax demand of
Rs.122.00 Lacs on sale of REP Licenses made in earlier years.

i Following appeals are also lying pending before the Appellate Authorities/Tribunal, Haryana as mentioned in coloumn.4
against the impugned VAT Assessment Orders/Revision Order passed by the assessing authorities as mentioned in column.

Jofthetable given below :-
Particulars Demand raised (Rs.) Assessing Authority Appellate Authority
(Col. 1) (Col. 2) (Col. 3) (Col. 4)
Sales Tax Murthal - AY 2008-09 732.35 Revision-Faridabad | Tribunal-Chandigarh
Sales Tax - Murthal - AY 2009-10 7.72 Revision-Faridabad Tribunal-Chandigarh
Total 740.07

Note : The Appellate Authority has remanded back the above cases to Revision Authority,Rohtak / Assessing Authority, Sonipat

iv  Appeals are lying pending before the Dy. Excise & Taxation Commissioner-Appeal, Punjab against the Order received from
Excise and Taxation Deptt., Punjab in respect of Year 2009-10 and 2010-11 demanding a sum of Rs.450.41 Lacs towards
the cess imposed by the State Govt. on exports. The company has challenged the validity of imposition of cess onexportin
its appeal as the same is not permissible under article 286 of the Constitution of India. Further demand has been raised for
Rs. 5.41 Lacs after completing the Sales Tax assessment forAY 2011-12 against which appeal has been filed.

v |l. An appeal before the Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi is lying pending against the order of
Commissioner of Central Excise (Appeals), Delhi-lll in respect of additional excise duty of Rs. 42.91 Lacs demanded by the
Excise department in connection of dispute over classification of goods - food product produced at Bahalgarh Factory- as
per the Central Tariff Act. As the matter is still pending before the Tribunal, no provision in the books of accounts have been
made

vi During the financial year 2016-17, the company has received an order from Hon.'ble Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal, New Delh (CETSTAT) against the order passed by Commissioner of Service Tax (Adjudication), New
Delhi demanding a service tax of Rs.259.25 Lacs. The Hon'ble CETSTAT videits order dated 16/02/2017 has granted major
reliefofRs.250.13 Lacs against the aforesaid demand.

vii VAT-Delni had raised the demand of 726.93 Lacs against pending 'F' forms in respect of years 2015-2016 & 2016-2017.
Pending F forms were related to six quarter out of the above, for five quarter all F forms were submitted and an order dated
16-08-2022 has been received, nullifying the demands of these quarters. For quarter one for the year2016-2017 F forms are
pending, there a demand of Rs. 22.63 Lacs has been raised by VAT-Delhi. Appeal against the said order has been filed with
VAT-Delhi.

viii_Legal Cases against the Company

The Board of Trustee of the port of Mumbai has filed a money suit for recovery of Rs. 963.94 Lacs towards alleged
outstanding demurrage charges against which the company has filed its counter claim of Rs. 10.88 Cr. towards the financial
losses, intereston the investment, refund of the license fees, refund of the demurrage charges, compensation and damages
etc. The matter is still pending.

D M/s. Regal Kitchen Foods Limited filed an arbitration petition towards alleged outstanding, against which company is in
process of filing its counter claim towards the financial losses. The Company has booked income towards the financial
losses of Rs. 387 Lacs, which is to be recoverable from M/s. Regal Kitchen Foods Limited. Case is filed in District and
Session court Faridabad.

37 Commitments
There are no commitment for contracts remaining to be executed on capital account as at the end of current year or previous year.

38 As per the assessment of Management the company continues to be going concem. This assessment is based on Resolution plan
submitted to the Banks by company and the interest shown by prospective investors in the company.

@
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39 Disclosuresas Required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As)113: Fair Value Measurement:
Fair value measurementof Financial Instruments
Asat31.03.2023

Fair value measurement of Financlal Instruments

As at 31.03.2023 {Rs. In lacs
Falr value measurement at Amortised Cost FYTPL FYTOCI TOTAL
Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3 Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3

Financlal Assets

Non Currsnt Financlal Assets

Investment -

Other financial ansats -

Current Financlal Assots

Invesimants

Trade recelvables 1,242.28 1,242.28

Cash and cash aquivalents 17965 17965

Other financlal assets 3.70 3.70

1_&5.83 - - - - - - 1 E.S‘.’-

Financlal Llabllitles

Non Current Financial Liabliitles

Bormowings 2681.73 2681.73

Current Financial Liablliies

Bormowings 70,430.44 70,430.44

Trade Payables 784.44 784.44

Other Financlal Llabllltles 820.17 820.17
72,304.79 = = = = = = 72,304.79

As at 31.03.2022

Falr value measurement at Amortisad Cost FYTPL FYTOCI TOTAL

Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Leval 3 Lavel 1 Lavel 2 Lavel 3

Financlal Assets

Non Currsnt Financlal Assets

Investment -

Other financial ansats -

Current Financlal Assots

Invesimants 11.28 11.28

Trade recelvables 1,126.24 1,126.24

Cash and cash aquivalents 143.29 143.29

Other financlal assets 5.52 5.52

1_&75.05 - - - 11&8 - - 1&88.31

Financlal Llabllitles

Non Current Financial Liabliitles

Bormowings 29511 29511

Current Financial Liablliies

Bormowings 70,707.42 70,707.42

Trade Payables B832.68 B832.68

Other Financlal Llabllltles 424.78 424.78
72,260.01 = = = = = = 72,260.01
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40 Some ofthe balances of Debtors and Creditors are subject to confirmation.

41 Corresponding figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary to confirm to current year
classification.

42 The standalone financial statement provident fund amounting Rs 0.30 lacs could not deposited due to technical reasons. The
amount along with interest willbe deposited.

43 Company's Rice manufacturing unitis not running up toits full capacity due to non-availability/shortage of funds.
The above notes form partofthe financial statements

In terms of our separate report of even date attached

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for N C Raj And Associate
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002249N
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
SANJAY GARG SATNAM ARORA GURNAM ARORA
PARTNER Jt. Mg. Director Jt. Mg. Director
Membership No: 088636 DIN NO. 00010667 DIN NO. 00010731
Sd/- Sd/-
Faridabad Chashu Arora Deepak Kaushal
29-May-2023 CFO Company Secretary
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty Fourth Annual General Meeting (‘AGM”) of
the Members of Kohinoor Foods Limited will be held on Friday, 29th September
2023 at 11:30 a.m., Indian Standard time (“IST”), through Video Conferencing/
Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM") Facility, pursuant to the Circular No.
14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020 and
Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th
January, 2021 and Circular No. 21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and 02/2022
dated 5th May 2022 and latest being 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 (“MCA
Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th
January, 2021 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated 13th
May, 2022 and SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January, 2023
issued by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”) prescribing
the procedures and manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting through
V/C/OVAM, without the physical presence of Members at a common venue.
Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the Thirty Fourth AGM of the Company is
being held through VVC, to transact the following businesses:-

Ordinary Business:

Item No. 1.

Adoption of Financial Statements
Toreceive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2.
Appointment of Director

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Satnam Arora (holding DIN: 00010667), who
retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.

Special Business:
Item No. 3.

To rectify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the year ending 31st March,
2024

To consider and if thought it, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the shareholders be and is hereby
accorded to approve the remuneration payable to M/s. Cheena & Associates,
Cost Accountant Firm, appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company, for the financial year 2023-
24, on such remuneration plus out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may be mutually
agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary,
proper or expedient o give effect to this resolution.”

Item No. 4.

Continuation of directorship of Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan as Non-Executive
Independent Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations,
2018, as amended from time to time, the Articles of Association of the Company
and on the approval of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of the Directors of the Company (“Board”) approval of the Members by way
of special resolution be and is hereby accorded for continuation of directorship of
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan holding DIN: 08699040 as Non-Executive Independent
Director, who will attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years for remaining tenure.
Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan was appointed as Non-Executive Independent Director for
aperiod of five years atthe Annual General Meeting held on 30th December 2020.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to take all
steps necessary to give effect to the aforesaid resolution, if necessary, also
delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred, to any Director(s) or Company
Secretary or any other Officer(s) /Authorised Representative (s) of the Company
to give effect to the aforesaid resolution (s).”

Item No. 5.

Re-appointment of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Whole time Director, of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and in continuation to the resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27.09.2012,
29.09.2015, 25.09.2017 & 30.12.2020, consent of the Shareholders be and is
hereby given to the re-appointment of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora ( DIN 00010704),
Whole time Director designated as Chairman of the Company for the period of
Three Years from 26 September, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN
00010704), Whole-time Director designated as Chairman of the Company,
including the monetary value thereof, to the extent recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be
considered appropriate as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and
subject to the overall limits approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during his tenure as Director, Mr. Jugal Kishore
Arora be paid such remuneration and on the terms and conditions as
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors and also set outin the explanatory statement annexed to
the notice, subject to the overall limit as approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr.
Jugal Kishore Arora, the Company has no profits or profits are inadequate, the
remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites payable to Mr. Jugal
Kishore Arora, as aforesaid, shall be the minimum remuneration, subject
however, to the approval of the Central Government, wherever required.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora (DIN
00010704), Whole time Director designated as Chairman of the Company,
including the monetary value thereof, to the extent recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be
considered appropriate as per the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and
subject to the overall limits approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and matter and things in its discretion
as it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable to give effect to this
resolution.”

Item No. 6.

Re-appointment of Mr. Satnam Arora, Jt. Managing Director, of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and in continuation to the resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27.09.2012,
29.09.2015, 25.09.2017 & 30.12.2020, consent of the Shareholders be and is
hereby given to the re-appointment of Mr. Satnam Arora ( DIN 00010667), Jt.
Managing Director of the Company for the period of Three Years from 26
September, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during his tenure as Director, Mr. Satnam Arora be
paid such remuneration and on the terms and conditions as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors and also set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice,
subject to the overall limit as approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr.
Satnam Arora, the Company has no profits or profits are inadequate, the
remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites payable to Mr. Satnam
Arora, as aforesaid, shall be the minimum remuneration, subject however, to the
approval of the Central Government, wherever required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Satnam Arora, Jt. Managing
Director, (DIN 00010667) including the monetary value thereof, to the extent
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time
as may be considered appropriate as per the provision of the Companies Act,
2013 and subject to the overall limits approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and matter and things in its discretion
as it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable to give effect to this
resolution.

Iltem No.7.

Re-appointment of Mr. Gurnam Arora, Jt. Managing Director, of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there
under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and in continuation to the resolution
passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27.09.2012,
29.09.2015, 25.09.2017 & 30.12.2020, consent of the Shareholders be and is
hereby given to the re-appointment of Mr. Gurnam Arora ( DIN 00010731), Jt.
Managing Director of the Company for the period of Three Years from 26
September, 2023.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT during his tenure as Director, Mr. Gurnam Arora be
paid such remuneration and on the terms and conditions as recommended by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors and also set out in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice,
subject to the overall limit as approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein
contained, where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr.
Gurnam Arora, the Company has no profits or profits are inadequate, the
remuneration by way of salary, allowances and perquisites payable to Mr.
Gurnam Arora, as aforesaid, shall be the minimum remuneration, subject
however, to the approval of the Central Government, wherever required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the scope of remuneration of Mr. Gurnam Arora, Jt. Managing
Director, (DIN 00010731) including the monetary value thereof, to the extent
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee from time to time
as may be considered appropriate as per the provision of the Companies Act,
2013 and subject to the overall limits approved by the Central Government.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and matter and things in its discretion
as it may consider necessary, expedient or desirable to give effect to this
resolution.

By Order of the Board
For Kohinoor Foods Limited
Sd/-
Place: Faridabad, Haryana Deepak Kaushal

Date: 14.08.2023 Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts concerning the business under
Item Nos. 3 to 7 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board
of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 14th August 2023
considered that the special business under Item Nos. 3 to 7, being
considered unavoidable, be transacted at the 34th AGM of the Company.

2. Generalinstructions for accessing and participating in the 34th AGM through
VC/OAVM Facility and voting through electronic means including remote e-
Voting

a. The Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has allowed
conducting Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) and dispended the personal presence of
the members at the meeting. Accordingly, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
issued Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020
dated 13th April, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and
Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 and Circular No. 21/2021
dated 14th December, 2021 and 02/2022 dated 5th May 2022 and latest
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being 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 (“MCA Circulars”) and Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 and
Circular No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated 13th May, 2022 and
SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January, 2023 issued by the
Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”) prescribing the
procedures and manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OVAM. In terms of the said circulars, the 34th Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) of the Members will be held through VC/OAVM. Hence, Members
can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only, without the
physical presence of Members at a common venue. Which does not require
physical presence of members at a common venue. The deemed venue for
the 34th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

In terms of the MCA Circulars since the physical attendance of Members has
been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies.
Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members under Section
105 of the Act will not be available for the 34th AGM. However, in pursuance
of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Members
may be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting, for
participation in the 34th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting during
the 34thAGM.

In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Notice of the 34th AGM
will be available on the website of the Company at www.kohinoorfoods.in, on
the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, on the website of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and also on the
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map is not
annexed in this Notice.

National Securities Depositories Limited (“NSDL”) will be providing facility for
voting through remote e-Voting, for participation in the 34th AGM through
VVC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting during the 34th AGM.

Members may join the 34th AGM through VC/OAVM Facility by following the
procedure as mentioned below which shall be kept open for the Members
from 11:00 a.m. IST i.e. 30 minutes before the time scheduled to start the
34th AGM and the Company may close the window for joining the VC/OAVM
facility 30 minutes after the scheduled time to start the 34thAGM.

Members may note that the VC/OAVM Facility, provided by NSDL, allows
participation of atleast 1,000 Members on a on a first-come-first-served
basis. The large shareholders (i.e. shareholders holding 2% or more
shareholding), promoters, institutional investors, directors, key managerial
personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
auditors, etc. can attend the 34th AGM without any restriction on account of
first-come first-served principle.

Attendance of the Members participating in the 34th AGM through VC/OAVM
Facility shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Act.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended),
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI”) and Regulation 44 of Listing
Regulations read with MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Company is
providing remote e-Voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to
be transacted at the 34th AGM and facility for those Members participating in
the 34th AGM to cast vote through e-Voting system during the 34th AGM. For

this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as
venue voting on the date of the 34th AGM will be provided by NSDL.

Inline with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020
dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 34th AGM has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.kohinoorfoods.in.
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and
the 34th AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency
for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

34th AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA
Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated
13th April, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and
Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 and Circular No.
21/2021 dated 14th December, 2021 and 02/2022 dated 5th May 2022
and latest being 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022 (“MCA
Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2021/11
dated 15th January, 2021 and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 dated 13th May, 2022 and
SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dated 5th January, 2023 issued
by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”).

Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual
shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes
member of the Company after the notice is send through e-mail and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 25th August 2023, may obtain
the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in
or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for
remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password
for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your
password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User
Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000. In case of Individual
Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares
of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending
of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 25th August
2023 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM under
“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.

Instructions for Members for Remote e-Voting are as under:-

The remote e-Voting period will commence on Tuesday, 26th
September 2023 (9:00 am IST) and end on Thursday 28 September
2023 (5:00 pm IST). During this period, Members of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
the cut-off date of Friday 22nd September 2023, may cast their vote by
remote e-Voting. The remote e-Voting module shall be disabled by
NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the
Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date,
being Friday, 22nd September 2023.

A person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this
Notice of 34th AGM for information purpose only.
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How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two
Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility
provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained
with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to
access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is
given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with

NSDL. 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-

Services website of NSDL Viz.
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on
a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. On the e-Services home
page click on the “Beneficial Owner”
icon under “Login” which is
available under 'IDeAS' section ,
this will prompt you to enter your
existing User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you
will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Vloting services and you will be able
to see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

2. Ifyouare notregistered for IDeAS e-
Services, option to register is
available at
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal”

or click at
https:/leservices.nsdl.com/Secure
Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL.
Open web browser by typing the
following URL:
https://lwww.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or

Type of shareholders

Login Method

on a mobile. Once the home page
of e-Voting system is launched,
click on the icon “Login” which is
available under
‘Shareholder/Member' section. A
new screen will open. You will
have to enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can
see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting
service provideri.e. NSDLand you
will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

Shareholders/Members can also
download NSDL Mobile App
“NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned
below for seamless voting
experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store

B Google Play

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL.

1.

Existing users who have opted for
CDSL Easi/ Easiest, they can login
through their user id and password.
Option will be made available to
reach e-Voting page without any
further authentication. The users to
login Easi /Easiest are requested to
visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on
login icon & New System Myeasi
Tab and then user your existing my
easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi /

Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

Type of shareholders Login Method

companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information
provided by company. On clicking
the evoting option, the user will be
able to see e-Voting page of the e-
Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the
meeting. Additionally, there is also
links provided to access the system
of all e-Voting Service Providers,
so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers' website
directly.

3. If the user is not registered for
Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on
login & New System Myeasi Tab
and then click on registration
option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly
access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN
No. from a e-Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page.
The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the
evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers.

authentication, wherein you can
see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting

during the meeting.

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode) login
through their depository participants

You can also login using the login
credentials of your demat
account through your Depository
Participant registered with
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
upon logging in, you will be able
to see e-Voting option. Click on e-
Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL

Depository site after successful

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in
demat mode for any technical issues related to login through
Depositoryi.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request
at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499
7000

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical
issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.co
m or contact at toll free no. 1800
225533

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting
for shareholders other than Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders
holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
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1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click
on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member' section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User

ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e.
IDEAS, you can log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-
Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote
electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding Your User ID is:
shares i.e. Demat (NSDL

or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold | 8 Character DP ID
shares in demat account | followed by 8 Digit Client
with NSDL. ID For example if your DP
ID is IN300*** and Client
ID is 12****** then your
user ID is

IN30O¥**{ 2*#x+s

b) For Members who hold | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
shares in demat account | For example if your

with CDSL. Beneficiary ID is
12************** then your
user ID IS 12**************

c) For Members holding | EVEN Number followed
shares in Physical Form. | by Folio Number
registered with the
company

For example if folio
number is 001*** and
EVEN is 101456 then
user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can
user your existing password to login and cast your
vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first
time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password'
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve
your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial
password' and the system will force you to change
your password.

¢) Howtoretrieve your 'initial password'?

(i) Ifyouremail ID is registered in your demat account
or with the company, your 'initial password" is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the
.pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf
file contains your 'User ID' and your 'initial
password'.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow
steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the *
Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?” (If you are
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password? (If you are holding
shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyou are still unable to get the password by aforesaid
two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password)
based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.
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7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and
Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-
Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General
Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all
the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares
and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active
status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your
vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed
under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Castyourvote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent
or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully”
will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by
clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not
be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
mankandassociates@gmail.com with a copy marked to
evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will
be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical
User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-Voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or contact, National Securities
Depository Limited, Trade World, 'A" Wing, 4th Floor,
Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower
Parel, Mumbai — 400 013, at the designated email id -
evoting@nsdl.co.in, who will also address the grievances
connected with voting by electronic means. Members
may also write to the Company Secretary at the
Company's email address info@kohinoorfoods.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set outin this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio
No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email
to info@kohinoorfoods.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-
CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to
info@kohinoorfoods.in. If you are an Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to
the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-
Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to
evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-
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voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. Interms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat
accountin order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON
THE DAY OF THEAGMARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as
the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be presentin the
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote
on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting systemin the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be
eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to
vote atthe AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any
grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of
the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE
AGMTHROUGH VC/OAVMARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM
through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above
for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you
can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to
click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute
rush.

2. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have
questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at info@kohinoorfoods.in. The same will be replied by
the company suitably. Members may also write to the Company

Secretary at the Company's email address
info@kohinoorfoods.in. You can also update your mobile number
and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be
used for sending future communication(s).

3. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops
for better experience.

4. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

a. Please note that Members connecting from mobile devices or
tablets or through laptops etc connecting via mobile hotspot, may
experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective
network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN
connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

b. Members can submit questions in advance with regard to the
financial statements or any other matter to be placed at the 34th
AGM, from their registered email address, mentioning their name,
DP ID and Client ID number /folio number and mobile number, to
reach the Company's email address info@kohinoorfoods.in
atleast 7 days in advance before the start of the meeting to the
Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company to
keep the information ready at the meeting.

c. Members, who would like to ask questions during the 34th AGM
with regard to the financial statements or any other matter to be
placed at the 34thAGM, need to register themselves as a speaker
by sending their request from their registered email address
mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID number/folio number
and mobile number, to reach the Company's email address
info@kohinoorfoods.in atleast 7 days in advance before the start
of the 34thAGM.

Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker
shall be allowed to ask questions during the 34th AGM,
depending upon the availability of time.

d. Institutional Investors who are Members of the Company, are
encouraged to attend and vote in the 34th AGM through
VC/OAVM Facility.

Other Guidelines for Members

a. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with
any other person and take utmost care to keep your password
confidential. Login to the e-Voting website will be disabled upon
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such
an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.comto reset the password.
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b. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and
becomes Member of the Company after the Company sends the
Notice of the 34th AGM by email and holds shares as on the cut-off
date i.e. Friday 22nd September 2023, may obtain the User ID and
password by sending a request to the Company's email address
info@kohinoorfoods.in. However, if you are already registered
with NSDL for remote e-Voting then you can use your existing user
ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c. Aperson, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members
or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the
facility of remote e-Voting or casting vote through e-Voting system
during the meeting.

d.Mr. Manish Kumar, Company Secretary in Practice
(Membership No. FCS 10248), Proprietor of M/s. Mank &
Associates, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize
the remote e-Voting process and casting vote through the e-Voting
system during the meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

e. During the 34th AGM, the Chairman shall, after response to the
questions raised by the Members in advance or as a speaker at
the 34th AGM, formally propose to the Members participating
through VC/OAVM Facility to vote on the resolutions as set out in
the Notice of the 34th AGM and announce the start of the casting of
vote through the e-Voting system. After the Members participating
through VC/OAVM Facility, eligible and interested to cast votes,
have cast the votes, the e-Voting will be closed with the formal
announcement of closure of the 34th AGM.

f. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting at the 34th
AGM, first download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter
unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a
consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or
against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been
carried or not, and such Report shall then be sent to the Chairman
or a person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours from
the conclusion of the 34th AGM, who shall then countersign and
declare the result of the voting forthwith.

g. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer
shall be placed on the website of the Company at
www.kohinoorfoods.in and on the website of NSDL at
www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of
Results by the Chairman or a person authorized by him. The
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

4. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view
of the prevailing situation, owing to the difficulties involvedin
dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 34th AGM
and the Annual Report for the year 2023 including therein
the Audited Financial Statements for year 2023, are being
sent only by email to the Members. Therefore, those
Members, whose email address is not registered with the
Company or with their respective Depository Participant/s,
and who wish to receive the Notice of the 34th AGM and the
Annual Report for the year 2023 and all other
communication sent by the Company, from time to time, can
get their email address registered by following the steps as
given below:-

For the Members holding shares in demat form, please
update your email address through your respective
Depository Participant/s. Members can also update their
mobile number and e-mailid in the user profile details of the
folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

5. The Notice of the 34th AGM and the Annual Report for the
year 2023 including therein the Audited Financial
Statements for the year 2023, will be available on the
website of the Company at www.kohinoorfoods.in and the
website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com. The
Notice of 34th AGM will also be available on the website of
NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

6. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books
of the Company will remain closed from Saturday 23rd
September 2023 to Friday 29th September 2023, both days
inclusive, in connection with the Annual General Meeting.

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act,
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(*IEPF Rules”) read with the relevant circulars and
amendments thereto, the amount of dividend remaining
unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the
due date is required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund (“IEPF”), constituted by the
Central Government. The Company had, already
accordingly, transferred the unpaid and unclaimed dividend
amount pertaining to Final Dividend, to the [EPF.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205 A(5) and 205 C of
the Companies Act, 1956, the Company has transferred the
unpaid or unclaimed dividends (remaining unpaid/
unclaimed for a period of 7 (Seven) years from the due
date), to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (the
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IEPF) established by the Central Government. Pursuant to the
provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund (uploading
of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying
with Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the
details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company
as on September 29, 2014, on the website of the Company
(www.kohinoorfoods.in), and also on the website of the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs.

8. Pursuant to the provisions of IEPF Rules, all shares in respect
of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven
consecutive years shall be transferred by the Company to the
designated Demat Account of the IEPF Authority (‘IEPF
Account”) within a period of thirty days of such shares becoming
due to be transferred to the IEPF Account.

9. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to
exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in
address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members
are also advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for
long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the
concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be
verified from time to time.

10. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN)
by every participant in securities market. Members holding
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the
PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

11. In terms of the Listing Regulations, securities of listed
companies can only be transferred in dematerialized form with
effect from 1st April, 2019. In view of the above, Members are
advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.

12. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are
requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of
name and e-mail address, permanent account number (PAN)
etc. to their Depository Participant only and not to the company's
registrar and share transfer agent, Skyline Financial Services
Pvt. Ltd. (RTA). The changes intimated to the Depository
Participants will then be automatically reflected in the Company's
records which will help the Company and Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent to provide efficient and better services. Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate such
changes to Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., having office at
D-153A, First Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-I, New Delhi-
110020.

L10)

13. As per SEBI circular No.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/DOP1/CIR/P/2018/73 dated April 20,
2018, the shareholders holding securities in Physical form
and has not updated PAN No., Bank Details, Email Id and
Mobile No / Telephone No. shall furnish self-attested copy
of PAN Card and original cancelled “Name printed Cheque”
falling which copy of Bank Passbook / Statement attested
by the Bank along with all the desired details to the
Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA), M/s
SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED at D-
153A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-1, New Delhi—
110 020, without any further delay.

14. Members holding shares in physical form are requested
to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form
to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
ease in portfolio management. Members can contact the
Company or Skyline Financial Services Pvt. Ltd., for
assistance in this regard.

15. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple
form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in
the same order of names are requested to send the share
certificates to RTA, for consolidation into single folio.

16. Members who wish to obtain any information on the
Company or view the accounts for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2023, may visit the Company's corporate
website www.kohinoorfoods.in.

17. Members who have not registered their e-mail
addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail
address with depository for receiving all communication
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. of the
Company electronically.

18. Electronic copy of all the documents referred to in the
accompanying Notice of the 34th AGM and the Explanatory
Statement shall be available for inspection in the Investor
Section of the website of the Company at
www.kohinoorfoods.in.

19. During the 34th AGM, Members may access the
scanned copy of Register of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts and
Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, upon Log-in to NSDL e-Voting
system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

20. Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of Regulation
36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard on
General Meeting (SS-2) of ICSI, in respect of the Directors
seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the 34th AGM, forms
integral part of the Notice of the 34th AGM. Requisite declarations
have been received from the Directors for seeking appointment/
re-appointment.

21. In compliance with the said Circulars, the Company has also
published a public notice by way of an advertisement along with
their electronic editions, inter alia, advising the members whose e-
mail ids are not registered with the Company, its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent (RTA) or Depository Participant(s) (DPs), as
the case may be, to register their e-mail ids with them.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL
BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 (“THE ACT”)

Item No. 3

The Board has approved the remuneration of M/s Cheena & Associates,
Cost Accountant Firm to conduct the audit of the cost records of the
Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024, on such
remuneration plus out-of-pocket expenses etc., as may be mutually
agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor has to be ratified by the
Shareholder of the Company.

Accordingly consent of member is sought for passing an Ordinary
Resolution as set out in item No. 3 of the notice for the ratification of the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending
March 31, 2024.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in this
resolution. The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set out at ltem
no. 3 for approval of the Members.

Item No. 4

In pursuance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
rules made thereunder and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
SEBI (LODR), the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 13th
February, 2020 appointed Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan (DIN No. 08699040) as
an Additional Director of the Company, approval by the members at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30.12.2020.

SEBI vide its notification dated 10 May, 2018 has amended the SEBI
(LODR) and, inter-alia, has inserted new Regulation 17(1A) which
mandates that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the
directorship of any person as a Non-Executive Director who has attained
the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years unless a Special Resolution is passed
to that effect by the members of the Company.

As Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan will attain the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years,
accordingly, in view of the above amendment in the SEBI Listing
Regulations, it has become imperative for the Company to seek
members approval by way of a special resolution, to continue his
directorship as an Independent Director, in terms of provisions of the Act
and the SEBI (LODR). Keeping in view that Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan have
rich and varied experience in the field of Management, Engineering
Maintenance, Project Management and Operations it would be in the
interest of the Company to continue the directorship of Mr. Yash Pal
Mahajan as a Non-Executive Independent Director.

Further, while evaluating the performance, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company and the Board has expressed
their satisfaction on the same.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on
14th August, 2023 has considered and approved their continuation as an
Independent Director till the expiry of their present tenure and has
recommended the same for the consideration and approval of the Board
of Directors of the Company.

Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan fulfills the criteria of appointment as an
Independent Directors under section 149(6) of the Companies Act and
Regulation 25 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and has provided requisite
declarations. Also, the Board may recall that while evaluating their
performance, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company and the Board has expressed the satisfaction on the same.

A brief profile of Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan is included as annexure to the
Notice.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives,
except Mr. Yash Pal Mahajan, is in any way, concerned or interested,
financial or otherwise, in this resolution. The Board commends the
Special Resolution set out at Item no. 4 for approval of the Members.

Item No.5.6 &7

The Board of Directors in its Meeting held on 14th August, 2023, on the
basis of recommendation by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee approved the reappointment of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, as
Chairman, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora as Jt. Managing
Directors of the company for next three years with effect from 26th
September, 2023 to 25th September, 2026 and also to renew the

remuneration of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Whole Time Director,
designated as ‘Chairman’, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora,
designated as Jt. Managing Directors of the Company with effect from
1st October, 2023, as may be decided by the Committee and Board of
Directors from time to time, subject to the overall limit approved by the
Central Government.:-

A.Basic Salary

SN Name of Chairman and Jt. | Proposed Basic Salary in
Managing Director the range of

1. Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora Rs. 8,00,000-75,000-
11,00,000

2. Mr. Satnam Arora Rs. 7,50,000-75,000-
10,50,000

3. Mr. Gurnam Arora Rs. 7,50,000-75,000-
10,50,000

Salary of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Chairman, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr.
Gurnam Arora, Jt. Managing Directors of the Company to be renewed
within the aforesaid range during the tenure of appointment, or such
increments, as may be decided by the Committee and Board of Directors
from time to time.

B.Perquisites and Benefits —:

i)Mediclaim facility for self & family.

ii)Two cars with chauffeur

iii)Facility of gas, electricity, generator, water and telephone at residence.
iv)Security Personnel, Gardeners Salary at residence.

v)Travel within India along with wife.

vi)Travel outside India along with wife twice in a year.

vii)Club Membership fees.

viii)Repairs & Maintenance of house as per actual.

ix)Any Other allowances if permitted by Board.

The total amount of perquisites payable to the Chairman and Jt.
Managing Directors may be decided/varied by the Board of Directors or
its Committee, from time to time as it may deem fit in its absolute
discretion, provided that total perquisites and other allowances to be paid
to Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora,
should not exceed 50% of the Salary.

The total remuneration consisting of Salary, Perquisites and other
benefits paid to the Chairman and Jt. Managing Directors shall not
exceed the limit stipulated in the Act and other applicable provisions
except with the approval of Central Government.

Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora are
deemed to be interested in their respective resolutions and being
relatives of each other may deemed to be concerned or interested in the
resolution of each other as it pertains to the re-appointment and
remuneration payable to them.

None of the other Directors of the Company are, in any way, concerned
or interested in the said resolution. Your Directors recommend these
resolutions for approval of the members.

A statement as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed
with the notice:

Profile of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking Appointment / Re-
appointment in the Annual General Meeting to be held on September 29
2023 pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Secretarial Standards -2
(SS-2) and other applicable requirements:

Name of Mr_. Jugal Mr. Mr. Mr. Yash
Director Kishore Satnam Gurnam Pal_
Arora Arora Arora Mahajan
DIN No. 00010704 | 00010667 | 00010731 | 08699040
" 23" 26" 04th Ma
Date of Birth / October, January, March, 1949 / 73‘/1’
Age 1943 /80 1949 /74 1950/ 73 years
years years years

1)
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th
Date of First | 26" July, | 26" July, | 26" July, Fegriary ?:fompa:;/e
Appointment 1989 1989 1989 2020 Terms _and
Expertise in Conditions of | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2;?:::: Business Business Business Business Appointment
Functional man man man man Note: Pursuant to Regulation 26 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, only two
area Committees viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders Committee have
e o Graduatio Masters " | Graduatio Marine been considered.
Qualification Economic ;
n s n Engineer Disclosure as required under Schedule V to the Companies Act,
Shareholding 2013 in respect of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr. Satham Arora and
in the Mr. Gurnam Arora
Company as | 10,53,484 | 57,49,191 62,89,204 -
on 31st I GENERAL INFORMATION
March, 2023
No. of Board Nature of Industry Rice Manufacturing
meetings and Food Processing
attended 4 6 6 4 Date or expected date of Commercial NA
during FY22- Production o
23 In case of new Companies, expected
Sachdeva | Indraprast | Satnam date of commencement of activities as NA
Brothers ha Haegens per project approved by financial o
Private Medical Limited institutions appearing in the prospectus
Limited Corps.
Limited Sachdeva Financial Performance
Kohinoor Brothers (Rs. In Lakhs)
List of | Foods Satnam Private Quarter ended
outside USAlInc. | Haegens | Limited Particulars 30.06.2023 | 2022-23 2‘;221' 2020-21
Directorship Limited (Un-audited)
s held (Public - Turnover 2546 7637 9578 3782
Limited and Sachdeva Operating (104) | (1158) (529) | (1179)
Subsidiary Brothers Profit
Companies) Private Extra Ordinary - 674 22) 853
Limited Profit before (104) (484) (551) (326)
tax
Kohinoor =
Foods Profit after tax (104) (412) (630) (515)
USA Inc. Foreign Investments or collaborations, if any
- (Rs. In Lakhs)
ogitman oé Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18
the Inves_,tment in _Shares of } ) )
Committee of Nil 1 Nil Nil subsidiary Companies
the Board of Investment in Shares of Joint B B R
Directors of Venture Companies
the Company
Chairman / Il. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEES
Member  of T 0
the r. Juga
Committee of Particular Kishore Mr.ASatnam Mr. Gurnam
h rora Arora
Directors of Arora
other Public 1.Background Mr. Jugal | Is the Jt. |Is the Jt
Limited Details Kishore Arora | Managing Managing
Companies Indraprast has been | Director of the | Director of the
in which he / ha appointed as | Company Company
she is a Medical Whole Time | since since
Director . Corporati ) . Director inception. inception.
Nil on Limited Nil Nil designated as
a) Audit — Member Chairman of
Committ the Company
ee . Indraprast ) . since
Nil ho P Nil Nil inception.
Medical
b) Stakehol Corporati 2. Past 96 90 90
ders on Limited Remuneration
Committ — Member (Rs. In Lakhs)
ee 3.Recognition - - -
He is | He is | He is and Awards
brother of | brother of | brother of 4. Job profile Information Information Information
Mr. Mr. Mr. and his X given under A
Satnam Satnam Satnam suitability glvenhunder the glvenhunder
Arora, Jt. | Arora, Jt. | Arora, Jt. .t e requirements .t e
Relationshi Managin Managin Managin reqU|rements of Regulation reqmremepts
P ging ging ging g
between the | Director Director Director of Regulation 36 of SEBI of Regulation
; N.A. 36 of SEBI 36 of SEBI
Directors and Mr. |and Mr. | and Mr. (LODR),
; (LODR), (LODR),
inter-se Gurnam Gurnam Jugal 2015 2015, 2015
Arora, Jt. | Arora, Jt. | Kishore o annexed with -
Managing Managing | Arora, annexefj with the notice of annexe_d with
] N the notice of the notice of
Director, Director, Whole- AGM AGM AGM
of the | of the | time
Company. | Company. | Director, 5.Remuneration | As mentioned | As mentioned | As mentioned
Proposed in the in the in the
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7. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of
company, profile of the position and person (in case of expatriates the
relevant details would be w.r.t. the country of his origin)

During last decade, the Indian economy has seen increased spending on
consumable eatables and various products. This had led to rise in the
organised manufacturer/processors in order to meet the consumer
demand and business competition. The size of the manufacturing
industry in India has increased manifold during the past several years
reaching to multi billions in terms of sales and revenues. With increased
size and turnover, it is also imperative for any manufacturing company to
have highly experienced persons having specialized knowledge and
skills to understand and project the market trend, consumer behavior,
consumption pattern and many relevant indicators for better product mix.
It also requires expertise for appropriate fund allocation, optimum
utilization of various resources in the business. Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora,
Mr. Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam Arora have successfully proved their
expertise in very effective manner and drove the Company towards the
growth over the period of time. Hence, the Board of Directors considers
that the present remuneration is being paid to them since 2012 and
further renewal on the same terms are justified commensurate with other
organisations of the similar type, size and nature in the manufacturing
industry.

. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Reason of loss or | The Board of Directors in its Meeting
inadequate profits held on 14"August, 2023 had
decided that where in any financial
2. Steps taken or | year during the currency of the tenure
proposed to be taken | of Mr. Jugal Kishore Arora, Mr.

for improvements Satnam Arora and Mr. Gurnam
Arora, the Company has no profits or

3. Expected increase in | profits are inadequate, the
productivity and | remuneration by way of salary,
profits in measurable | allowances and perquisites, as
terms detailed in Para II-5 above,

respectively payable to them shall be
the minimum remuneration, subject
however to the approval of the
Central Government, wherever
required. The Company had lastly
obtained the approval of the Central
Government in this regard vide letter
dated 23" October, 2018.

The Board of Directors in its Meeting
had also decided to pay the same
remuneration to them, subject to the
limits as may be approved by the
Central Government in this regard.

During the quarter ended 30"
September, 2023, the Company has
earned a Net loss of Rs. 104 Lakh
and is hopeful for better performance
its future.

The remuneration of Mr. Jugal
Kishore Arora, Mr. Satnam Arora and
Mr. Gurnam Arora may exceed the
limits laid down under Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Explanatory Explanatory Explanatory The Company is taking further steps
Statement to Statement to Statement to to improve the earning position of the
Notice of Notice of Notice of Company and is optimistic of earning
AGM AGM AGM good profits in coming years.
6. Pecuniary Apart from Apart from Apart from
relationship receiving receiving receiving V. DISCLOSURES
directly or managerial managerial managerial 1. The remuneration package of all the managerial persons are given
indirectly with | remuneration remuneration remuneration in the respective resolutions.
the Company, and and and
or relationship 10,53,484 57,49,191 62,89,204 2. Additional information is given in Corporate Governance report.
with the Equity Equity Equity The above explanatory statement (together with Annexure thereto)
managerial Shares, he is Shares, he is Shares, he is shall be construed to be memorandum setting out the terms of the
personnel, if | brother of Mr. brother of Mr. brother of Mr. appointment/re-appointment as specified under Section 190 of the
any Satnam Arora | Jugal Kishore | Jugal Kishore Companies Act, 2013.
and Mr. Arora and Mr. | Arora and Mr.
Gurnam Gurnam Satnam By order of the Board of Directors
Arora Arora Arora. Place: Faridabad, Haryana Sd/-
Date: 14.08.2023 Deepak Kaushal

Company Secretary & Manager (Legal)



